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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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MAIN OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE

ESEE S

As at 30 March 2023
R CEC—HFZF=+H

G

Cosmos Machinery
Enterprises Limited

RE#MEEBRD

Machinery Manufacturing

Business
/ MBS K

Plastic Products Processing
and Manufacturing Business

B M M RBEREK

Printed Circuit Boards Processing
and Trading Business

REBRZIMIREZEWR

\ Industrial Consumables
Trading Business

TEEERZEZ XK
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Manufacturing of
Injection Molding Machines

W SEERT

P\

byt

WELLTEL
Donghua Machinery Ltd.
RERWARLA
(Dongguan, the PRC F B + 555)

WELLTEL
Cosmos Machinery Technology
(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.
REEWEER (L&) BR AR
(Jiangsu, the PRC 1 + jT%)

Manufacturing of Extrusion Lines,
Rubber Injection Molding Machines
and Hydraulic Press

PR - BB RO 2 BUERTS

DEKUMANO
Dekuma Rubber and Plastic
Technology (Dongguan) Limited
ERERERR(RE)BRAR
(Dongguan, the PRC #E » &5%)

N

T

Processing of Plastic Food Packaging

RMERBEZ MTER

Karmay Plastic Products (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.*

FEPHREHDERAT E/

(Zhuhai, the PRC B * %)

T

Processing of Plastic Components
for Home Appliances

REERBEF 2 MTER

Cosmos Grand Plastics Co., Ltd. m
BIEARREEZEBRAT AEEEW
(Hefei, the PRC 1+ A1E) mwy

T

Manufacturing of
Mannequins and Display Items

AR R MR A 2 BUEET

Dongguan Cosmos Plastic

* Posh
Products Co., Ltd. o ept

REARZHARERAT rrany =i
(Dongguan, the PRC #1 & + B 55)

Processing of Printed Circuit Boards

ENRIARBER 2 INT 575

Trading of Printed Circuit Boards

LT,

Shenzhen Gainbase Printed
Circuit Board Co., Ltd.*
YN EZERAR AT
(Shenzhen, the PRC FE - #3ll)

KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited
R —EMBREBERAF

J
/
/
/
J

JOIC

N ITT

4 CEE
EplgEE R 2 B 5 %5 (Hong Kong &%)
Melco Industrial Supplies
Company Limited
EETEEIERAT -
(Hong Kong &%) -
Guangzhou Melco Industrial
Supplies Co., Ltd. "'
EHTERTEENERAT
(Guangzhou, the PRC 1 + f&/I) 59/
Melco Industrial Supplies
__ (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* ﬁ
LET2EM(ESEEAT b
(Shanghai, the PRC [ + E)§) 5'””“""j
* For identification purposes only * Xl

Note: The details of the shareholding of each subsidiary held by the 7. HAATIXEMBATNFTESHWBLATIN
Company or its subsidiaries, please refer to note 42 of the BHEFS F2RGEEMBRERMET420

consolidated financial statements.

— T~ 4 %R Annual Report 2022

5



6

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWS

During the year under review, we experienced severe trials and
challenges caused by unpredictable market conditions. The
Russia-Ukraine conflict has triggering global food and energy
crises and soaring commodity prices, leading to global inflation.
The Federal Reserve raised interest rates to curb inflation, causing
volatility of foreign exchange rates and consequently slowing
down economic growth.

This year, Shanghai and various provinces and cities had varying
degrees of outbreaks. The Chinese government imposed
lockdowns to strictly control of the pandemic, causing significant
disruptions to the entire supply chain. In order to comply with
the government’s quarantine requirements, the enterprises have
to suspend operations intermittently from time to time, and the
market has been impacted, thus inevitably affecting the Group’s
business operations.

We have not been discouraged when confronting with numerous
difficulties. Our teams relied on collective wisdom with flexibility
and adaptability to cope with difficulties, persevere and rise to
the challenges, and offer services and products to the customers
in the market with creativity and professionalism. In response
to the unique needs of the market, machinery manufacturing
business has consistently developed high-end specialized
products, which have been welcomed by the market, and sales
increased accordingly. The Group’s results have declined but not
incurred serious losses. Severe trials and challenges provided
opportunities for our teams to learn and grow.

Despite the market adversity, the Group executed our plan to
upgrade production equipment, improve our products’ quality,
and make additional investment in environmental energy-
saving facilities to fulfill domestic and foreign environmental
requirements. Regarding human resources, the Group has
pragmatically increased training for our employees. We firmly
believe our teams must have ability to enhance the soft and hard
skills, so they can overcome adversity in an agile manner and
thrive in prosperity.
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Geopolitical tensions will persist and become more chaotic. The
Ukraine crisis is deepening. The United States has continuously
announced new sanctions against Russia, which cause global
commodity supply imbalances. Commodity prices are not
anticipated to be normalized, inflation threats are even more
difficult to ease, and lending rate remains high. It is hard to
predict if the global economy will face stagflation or even
a recession. Sino-US confrontations are becoming more
complicated, its irrational and mutually damaging actions are
harmful to the global economy. The Group must carefully
consider and make judgment on new trials and challenges before
tackling them in an agile manner.

In Mainland China, there appears to be the dawn of the post-
pandemic age, and we hope for a sustained and orderly recovery.
China pushes forward the “Internal Circulation” and “Dual
Circulation” economic development models, which will be carried
out smoothly and help boost consumption and investment.
China has pragmatically promoted high-quality development and
formulated an “Outline to Improve Quality of Development”,
which proposed specific measures to promote the enterprises,
industries, products, projects, services, and modernization
of governance. The key competitive elements in the fierce
market competition are enhancement of the products’ quality,
performance, and other qualities. The Group should not only
invest aggressively in response to the country’s directives, but also
improve our own competitiveness. We will continue to optimize
performance of our production equipment and our detection and
measurement instruments. Additional photovoltaic system in our
other plants will be invested. We will also improve our digital
operations management and concentrate on employee training
to gain momentum for innovation. Hence, we can tackle new
trials and challenges. In order to initiate the above investments
and deal with the uncertain market dynamics, it is particularly
important to maintain healthy cash flows.

The difficulties and trials of the year are summarized as a
precious opportunity to hone our abilities. | am encouraged by
my colleagues’ continuous improvement and look forward to
their further advancement in ongoing training, and they can
perform well when coming through more challenging new market
conditions. | also express my gratitude to all Directors for their
support, advice and guidance.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ETREHS ()
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER KD

RESULTS SUMMARY

Revenue s A
Gross profit EF]
Operating profit &R A
Profit for the year FEHH

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Revenue

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
was approximately HK$2,339,898,000 (2021: approximately
HK$3,075,305,000), a decrease of 23.9% as compared to last
year, which was mainly due to the weak manufacturing demands
in China and globally, supply chain disruptions caused by
lockdowns in some China cities, and the Russia-Ukraine conflict
worsened market conditions.

Gross profit

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the gross
profit of the Group amounted to approximately HK$372,304,000
and HK$544,491,000 with gross profit margin of 15.9% and
17.7%, respectively. Raw material prices remained at high level
and insufficient capacity utilization caused the Group’'s gross
profit and gross profit margin to drop as compared with last year.

Profit for the year

The net profit of the Group greatly decreased from approximately
HK$84,205,000 for 2021 to approximately HK$18,837,000 for
2022. This decrease was primarily due to a drop in gross profit.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

EXEWE
2022 2021
—E-C - —F
HK$’000 HK$000 Change
FAET FAET EE
2,339,898 3,075,305 -23.9%
372,304 544,491 -31.6%
29,758 119,813 -75.2%
18,837 84,205 -77.6%
MBES
WA

BE_T__F+_A=+—HLEEE &
EENWALA2,339,898,0008 7T (ZF
——4 :493,075,305,000587T) > Lt EE T
T23.9% ZTEHRFEREREEEFTK
Z BT IR ~ R SR 36 T £ Ak A B AL E B
B M EEBSERSHREE -

EZF]
HE_Z-__HFRZZFEZ—%F+ZA
=t+—HIEFE AEENENIINE
372,304,000 7T 52 544,491,000 75 » EF
KRB A15.9%K%17.7% ° R RHBA& R
REUREEMNBERAR SEAEERNEFR
KERMZEEAFEMRLE TR

FEHF

REBEWF R HEZE - —5F4984,205,000
BT AR TERE _T - _4418,837,000/4
T ZBBEEEZHNRER R -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 was approximately HK$195,245,000, decreased
by 8.5% as compared to approximately HK$213,423,000 for last
year, which was mainly due to the implementation of effective
cost measures by the Group.

Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 amounted to approximately HK$170,462,000,
decreased by 13.7% as compared to approximately
HK$197,414,000 for last year, which was mainly due to a
decrease in sales commission.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to approximately HK$13,415,000, representing
a decrease of 24.4% as compared to approximately
HK$17,741,000 for last year, which was mainly due to the
Group's gradual repayment of bank borrowings. The Group will
continue to improve the efficiency of capital utilisation and strive
for the most favourable conditions of bank credits, so as to
reduce the overall finance charges.

Other income

The net of other income, gain and loss of the Group significantly
increased from approximately HK$6,646,000 for 2021 to
approximately HK$23,161,000 for 2022, which was mainly due
to an increase in rental income, government grants and exchange
gain incurred for 2022.

EEERL RO (&)

THREHR

BEZZ-_ -+ -B=+—HLEEFE K
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEERI KR ()

BUSINESS REVIEW

Machinery Manufacturing Business

The injection molding machine (“IMM") manufacturing business
endured a difficult market environment throughout the year.
It was a stark contrast compared to a vibrant growth market
during the previous fiscal year. Weak overall market demands for
machinery were exasperated by high raw material prices, weak
manufacturing demands in China and globally, and occasional
supply chain disruptions. Numerous lockdowns in Shanghai and
nearby cities early in the year, caused severe supply disruptions
of machinery components and production disruptions in our
Wuxi factory as large portions of staff had to stay at home
for numerous time periods. The Russia-Ukraine conflict caused
greater supply chain challenges globally and raised market
uncertainties which further hindered machinery users’ investment
plans. The massive COVID-19 infection in China toward the
end of year basically suspended most marketing activities and
production for a brief period of time. Thankfully, our staff
recovered relatively quickly and returned to work once their
health conditions allowed, to minimize the effect on production
disruptions and delivery of machines. In line with industry peers,
this business experienced a marked drop in sales caused by lower
than expected order intake. As a result, this business recorded an
operating loss for the year.

Orders from customer segments, such as infrastructures,
electronics and telecommunications, displayed the most
significant drops compared to the previous year. While our
industry-specific customized solutions in the fields of medical
supplies and daily necessities continued to demonstrate
relative strength in demands. Thin-walled food packaging and
Polyethylene Terephthalate (PET) preform applications also
displayed growth amid pandemic controls in China. Orders from
automotive and household appliance customers continued to
rebound from relatively low levels from last year. Our export
business remained steady despite challenges including high
freight costs, delayed shipment schedules, and much weakened
currencies relative to the US dollar. The export business was able
to obtain sizeable orders and growth from the Latin America and
East Asia regions.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

X H5[ORE

WHRIERE
TERREXBSFRNEBNTIHIRIE
oo B AR B R R T I5 R TIE R A SR
MELE-RMHERSE PEREHRRE
FBRES AR > DUB M FE 58 5 &R 14
HEBRETSERMERTBES - SEF
> EEMERINTEREZ XE RS EME
BHENHERESRE HANEHTHRDERE
ABHEIVARFERBERFUREES
o B S ERMA T 2 KM EFE B IE M
THENAREL  E—PERTHMAR
WREHE - SEFR > PEARERMRE
BRESEREAER LS RBHEHEHNE
EFLT—BFH MENE RMANET
PRAE 1S AR BR > I TE M FIAY (8 B AROR S T
TEI BHEEFHNEBIOINZERE
RV -HERERE FEHITEERNEAHR
CHEBRETH KRS FHRGLKERE-

HEAFMEL REER - BEFREMFTE
ERMETEHRABATA MEAMETERA
mMEBRT SN TEEREMCRRL R
EEZ2RVBYNER - EPENEIBEEE
ToEERRERENBE R R "R
(PEMBRITERAME R RERERRBIT
FEPHFITENFEREFRULA -BRE
BRPNHOEZBENEESH  RETEN
hEZRBEBREZTHRBERENRESH
B BHERIFREBEN T ZMNMEDH
EERFAHRNIEMER-



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

On the production side, along with a drop in production volume,
the elevated prices of raw materials, namely metal castings,
motion and drive components and electrical components,
increased pressure on our profit margins. Due to various
lockdowns in Shanghai and surrounding areas and later massive
outbreaks throughout China, our production teams responded in
an agile manner to minimize the impact of severe supply chain
disruptions and occasional understaff situations.

Despite the above-mentioned challenges, the Group is committed
to long-term investments in the IMM business in order to sustain
growth and to strengthen its competitiveness. In addition to
the world-class Computer Numerical Control machining centers
commissioned last year, we took delivery of the new Double
Column Type machining center. The fully automated welding
lines are now fully online, and will significantly boost productivity
and raise the quality of our machine chassis. New water-based
spray painting workshops are in the assembling and fine-
tuning phase, and will come online in around the first quarter
of 2023. Investments in digital smart factory technologies also
ramped up and upgraded to further improve digital production
management efficiencies. Green energy solutions were deployed
in our Wuxi factory, which installed solar panels on the roof
producing approximately 1,600,000 Kwh of electricity per year.
Such investments will not only significantly reduce our carbon
footprint, but also reduce our overall electricity costs and
reduce the risk of future electricity supply interruptions. Talent
recruitment, especially in engineering and technical departments
and frontline sales teams, continued as planned. The number of
internal and external trainings increased significantly throughout
the year, as talent development was one of our key priorities.

Our D series all-electric injection molding machines with greater
clamping forces were successfully launched and are well received
by our key customers ranging from medical, electronics and
automotive industries. Orders for PET industry tailored machine
series, multi-component machine series, higher end "“SEIlll" series,
and large-sized two-platen series were relatively robust.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEERI KR ()

For the extrusion and rubber injection molding machines and
hydraulic presses manufacturing business, it achieved only a
slight drop in operating results compared to last year, amid
challenging market conditions. In addition to the similar
difficulties confronted by the IMM business, this business was
highly affected by global economic uncertainties and especially
global supply chain disruptions caused by the Russia-Ukraine
conflict. Notable volume of critical components imported from
Europe experienced shipment delays, which prolonged machine
delivery to customers. Weak global growth and much weakened
currencies relative to the US dollar, caused our export customers
to prolong their order placements. Equipment investment
sentiments in China were also depressed, as customers postponed
key project investments, especially in the automotive industry.

Encouragingly, sales ramped up in the second half year as
specialty machines such as corner joint rubber injection
molding machines, five-layer oil pipe co-extrusion lines,
telecommunications extrusion lines, as well as automated
hydraulic presses for automotive braking systems achieved
strong growth. It is reassuring to see customers recognize our
competitive advantages in industry tailored machines amid such
uncertain economic conditions.

A number of investments and initiatives were launched despite
less than ideal market conditions. Development of customized
automation and unique technical applications for niche market
customers was ongoing. This business successfully launched
innovative online marketing and knowledge-based content
creation on social media platforms, as well as corporate value
rebranding campaigns. Talent recruitment, especially young
engineering talents, ramped up compared to previous years.
Resources deployed for internal and external trainings for
management teams and employees increased according to a
refined talent development plan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Plastic Products Processing and Manufacturing Business

The plastic processing plant for food packaging industry in Zhuhai
achieved satisfactory steady results, with only a slight drop in
sales, despite lockdown impacts and logistic disruption. Business
volumes from key customers in China dairy industry increased
due to successful commencement of new projects, as well as
stock piling measures in order to mitigate supply disruption risk
in response to the lockdowns in China. However, the export
business suffered as a result of prolonged elevated freight costs
and shipment delays.

Elevated and fluctuating plastic resins prices caused a slight
decrease in profit margins, as well as increased depreciation costs
associated with ramped up capital expenditures in previous years.

Our management team focused on enhancing the engineering
team, and achieved breakthrough in innovative product design
services for our customers. New project developments, especially
multi-colour and multi-component products should boost sales
from existing customers in the upcoming year. Customized
automation equipment and optical quality control systems
were further deployed. A successful upgrade in features and
functionality of our Group-developed Manufacturing Execution
System (MES) further improved management efficiencies and
traceability capabilities.

This business will ramp up design services and innovative
marketing initiatives in the upcoming year for China and overseas
markets. Expansion plans to better serve our Northern China
customers are being considered at the moment. The Group
expects steady performance from this business as demands
for dairy and health supplements should remain stable, and
customers remain satisfied with our products’ top quality and
delivery.

The plastic components processing plant for household
appliances in Hefei endured unprecedented challenges arising
from lockdowns and strict personnel controls due to outbreaks,
which severely affected its sales and operations. In mid-April
2022, our production plant was ordered to lockdown for 15 days
by the Hefei authorities due to suspected cases of COVID-19
within our vicinity. The city of Hefei was under strict personnel
control during October and November, which affected a portion
of staff attendance and delivery of products. The massive
outbreak in December temporarily reduced our normal production
volume.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEERI KR ()

Overall demands for household appliances in China continued its
steady drop from previous years’ peak demands. The weak real-
estate market in most of China cities throughout 2022 provided
no stimulus for new appliance purchases. Key market leaders
in household appliance experienced stagnated demands and
profitability. As a result, this business experienced further pricing
pressure from customers and intense competition from industry
peers. Meanwhile, relatively stronger export demands did provide
some relief.

In lieu of the challenges, the management team was able to
successfully bid for new project orders, especially those with
export specifications. Improvements in production efficiency and
cost control measures were materialized by full team effort. This
business was able to achieve slight profitability and a healthy cash
flow despite dire circumstances.

The blow molded mannequins production plant in Dongguan
achieved better than expected results despite non-favourable
market conditions. Overall global retail operations, especially
in Europe, has yet to recover substantially after the pandemic.
Online retail sales continue to affect in-store sales, which
implies less overall demands for display mannequins. However,
a favourable trend for this business is the on-going requirement
by European retailers to phase out non-environmentally friendly
and non-recyclable materials in display items such as mannequins.
As such, demands will continue to shift away from traditional
glass fibre mannequins to recyclable plastic mannequins that our
business specializes in.

Our major customer, a global leading sporting goods retailer,
continued to place high volume orders as it is satisfied with
our products’ top quality and timely delivery. This retail chain
continued its aggressive expansion plans globally and within
China, and should continue to do so in coming years. Another
achievement of our management team, is entering into a
strategic partnership with a world-class sports brand’s display
item supplier. This should be a source of further growth in this
business going forward.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Efforts to implement digitalization solutions for production
process achieved preliminary desired results, which increased
our production efficiency and reduced wastages. Our production
team also lowered production lead times and reduced minimum
order quantity requirements, that appeal to new and existing
customers. This business will keep investing in 3D printing
equipment and capabilities to serve lower volume orders, as well
as refining production techniques for 100% recycled plastic resins
catering to customers’ requirement.

Printed Circuit Boards (“PCB") Processing and Trading
Business

The PCB processing plant in Shenzhen’s performance suffered
massively throughout the year, and recorded a notable operating
loss. Demands from our European automotive customers were
extremely weak, orders from this important customer segment
thus dropped over 50% compared to normal levels. The
combination of unfavourable scenarios includes a notable shift
by European automotive parts manufacturer to conduct sourcing
outside of China, unfavourable currency movements, a supply
crisis of silicon chips made worse by the Russia-Ukraine conflict,
and depressed consumer confidence. In addition, our customer
in the Japanese gaming industry significantly cut orders as sales
of their gaming consoles stagnated, and orders migrated to
a number of our competitors. On the contrary, sales to China
automotive customers remained stable, and this business look
forward to ramp up sales with a newly developed key automotive
parts manufacturer in China. However, pricing competition is
intense with this customer segment.

The management team focused on production cost reductions
by realigning outsource orders, reducing frontline headcounts to
control direct labour costs, scaling down production capacities,
and shifting production schedules aiming to save electricity and
equipment running costs. As sales and profitability suffered this
year, this business managed to safeguard its cash flow mainly by
reducing its inventory levels and operating costs, and managing
external debts.

Sales development efforts, especially with the target customers
in China, will ramp up in the upcoming year. However, the Group
is not anticipating a quick turnaround for this business as major
customers’ order forecasts remain far from optimal level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEERI KR ()

The PCB trading business achieved relatively stable results in
terms of sales volume and profitability. Orders from one of our
major customer who specializes in office automation equipment
remained stable despite challenging economic conditions as well
as supply chain disruptions caused by lockdowns in China. Sales
efforts bidding for new projects with a number of renowned
Japanese automotive parts manufacturers achieved satisfactory
preliminary results, which serve as a foundation to project steady
growth for this business going forward. At the same time, pricing
pressure from suppliers and customers will continue.

The volatile fluctuation and a massive depreciating trend for the
Japanese Yen in the year provided a backdrop for some high-end
low volume PCB manufacturing orders to shift back to Japan. Our
Japan operation was able to and should further capitalize on this
“on-shoring” shift of orders. Trading of high quality PCB base
boards should resume to normalized levels in the coming year as
it was temporarily disrupted in the second half year due to a fire
incident suffered at our supplier's factory in Suzhou.

Industrial Consumables Trading Business

The industrial consumables trading business recorded a notable
drop in sales compared to peak levels achieved the previous year.
Various unfavourable macro-economic factors such as high raw
materials prices, weak demands in most manufacturing industries,
a troubled real-estate market, and a severe drop in exports,
caused the majority of our customers to decrease investments
and demands for industrial components. The two-month
lockdown measures in Shanghai massively affected our operations
and created supply chain crisis in the surrounding areas affecting
industrial enterprises across the nation. Customers anchored in
industries, such as electronics, household appliances, machineries,
gasoline automotive, elevators and infrastructures, displayed
notable weakness in demands and investment sentiments
throughout the year.

Our operation in Shanghai was virtually shut down for over
two months due to the lockdown. Deliveries to and from our
warehouse were halted and staff were forced to work from
home. Fortunately, the Shanghai operation resumed in June
and business volume rebounded shortly. Our cash flow quickly
returned to normalized levels thereafter.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

R BRIRE S EHEHENBNENHE
ESHEHEIREREE - BEREB R RERIE
DU R B 450 3 0 PR 6 R T > BREE A
EEHCERNEMZTRNAREM TET
B-ZM2UZRAANLABTHHRE
BHMEERE TSRS mEMR I
REBEEBRRRIERNER ; Ak
REHEBNERNEBERIRKARFE-

SE > HEWNEURBNMABRESRE
FAHENSHENR R ERIREET EED
Ba ERFANEEDBEBE-—TULERK
AL STEBR T ER - SFTHF
PRERIN RO FE s TR 3 £ > BB B ENR)
BERERESEFEYRITE AR
FREMEEEREKTF-

IXEHERZEZER
ITX¥HEREZEBNHERBEREFS
BXFREZFE - EMHERESA T KZH
REXFBRZE FHEDHEE > LIk H
ORETHRSIAHNEZELCERER B
MARZEERBLOTRERBIEZZTRMH
BYER K o L5 By My 8 53 B9 3 30 458 I BR S 4T
ERMNEE THEBMEEMHEEL
W RETEENIXEX: -NBEAFE B
FRE-BA AE - BRRERSTEER
FPRBERMRE M BRREKSS

BN EEEERS MM EELLEERR
MER  EMREEHBE BETRE
RIfEoZHENAMEBEER SEBR
REFH > MBEMBIRERIABERREREBEE
EEKFE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The standout bright spot for strong sales volume of this business
is the lithium battery industry. With favourable government
directives to stimulate electric vehicles growth in China, alongside
the mega trend of lower emissions for clean energy, our lithium
battery customers continued to place more orders for our motion
and drive components and solutions. Our medical industry
customers also placed steady orders for specialized imported
metal wires as growth prospects for medical applications continue
to climb, although price hikes and foreign currency fluctuation
have an impact on our margins. Nonetheless, this business
achieved a reasonable operating profit despite challenging
circumstances within most manufacturing sectors in China.

Business prospects for this segment for the upcoming year are
cautiously optimistic. Our customers from industries, ranging
from lithium battery, renewable energy and medical applications,
should maintain steady growth. In addition, project development
efforts for our automation and robotics customers specializing in
welding robotics, should provide growth for our new partnership
with an up and coming manufacturer for motion and servo drive
components. This business would also further explore export
opportunities particularly in South East Asia markets for our
metals and fasteners product lines.

Subsequent Events
There is no material event after the end of the reporting period.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's total outstanding bank
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$227,595,000
(31 December 2021: approximately HK$301,167,000), which
comprised mainly bank loans and trade finance facilities. The
bank borrowings repayable within one year and in the second to
the fifth year amounted to approximately HK$225,127,000 and
HK$2,468,000, respectively (31 December 2021: approximately
HK$289,469,000 and HK$11,698,000, respectively).

EEERL RO (&)

AEBRSRENBREEEMITENRY
HE-BENGRATEEAETHER

BYEER H = - 0 £ B R BB B R B IR AL
mAEE RANEENITET R EELRE
BB ETHEBRES AT BRI R -HRNE
REBNIERAKIFEBY BEBRER
MEX RS HRMNFEERTZE BBE
TEERNMAREM T ETERERMANE
RENSBEEM -BENI  EFEKRZH
SEERTEHERBMNIRE T AEBD
BEEVAS 14 PRI BOAR =R

BN EEBRFARTFEELREE -
REBBEM AIBEERKBREBNITE
ERFERFREER IS HMAEFSRE
MR ARME R RERIFEHESE AR
B REARME-—KWENETAGRE
AN REBFNNSIFEHRARB R
REBRGE-—TRRHOZK FHEFK
IR BANRE 1 Em BRI ERMEDIHHY
=i

EHEARER
RREEEAR IEFLEERFEREE

MEBEERMBER
RIE__H#+_RA=+—H ' &x&EBZX
EBIRITERAEEEA A227,595,0008 T (=
Z - —F+ZHB=+—H:#301,167,000%
) FECRERTERMESMEEE F
R—ERPUERRE _EFHEDHES
ZIRITERERED A A225,127,00048 7T
22,468,000 7w (CE-_—F+_-_F=+—
H: 9 RI#%289,469,0005 75 % 11,698,000
BT °

ZZEZ ZHFF3R Annual Report 2022

17



18

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEERI KR ()

After including lease liabilities of approximately HK$40,704,000
(31 December 2021: approximately HK$51,469,000) and
deducting cash and bank balances and bank time deposit
of approximately HK$560,913,000 (31 December 2021:
approximately HK$406,057,000), the Group's net cash amounted
to approximately HK$292,614,000 (31 December 2021:
approximately HK$53,421,000). Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company as at 31 December 2022
was approximately HK$1,322,122,000 (31 December 2021:
approximately HK$1,410,809,000).

The gearing ratio of the Group is measured as total of bank
indebtedness and lease liabilities less cash and bank balances and
bank time deposit divided by net assets. The Group had a net
cash position as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. As a result, no
gearing ratio was presented.

The Group's financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group carried out its business transactions mainly in
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United States dollar and Japanese
Yen. As the Hong Kong dollar remained pegged to the United
States dollar, there was no material foreign exchange risk in this
respect. The Group continues to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure in Japanese Yen and Renminbi, and enters into forward
contracts when necessary. The Group’s long-term bank loans were
denominated mainly in Hong Kong dollars and carried interest
at floating rates. Credit risk was hedged mainly through credit
insurance.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
There were no material acquisitions and disposals by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the total number of issued Shares for
the year ended 31 December 2022. The total number of issued
Shares remained at 861,930,692 shares at 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICY AND
TRAINING SCHEME

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 2,381
employees (31 December 2021: 2,523 employees) located in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, the ratio of women to men
in the workforce was 33:67. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
gender diversity for industrial business segment in which
the Group operates may be less relevant due to the nature
of work. The Group has formulated the remuneration policy
of employees. The remuneration of employees is based on
their qualifications, competence and performance as well as
market trends. Employees’ benefits include retirement benefits,
medical insurance coverage, and various leave entitlements. The
overall remuneration packages, which include an element of
discretionary bonuses, are reviewed annually.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
based on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
with reference to individual performance, qualifications and
experience of the Directors, the duties and responsibilities of
the Directors in the Company, the Group's performance and
profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market condition.

The Group had provided training programmes or courses for
employees of the Group, including employees at all levels from
different departments in Mainland China and Hong Kong, and
also for Directors, respectively, so as to further enhance their
technical skills, professional skills and knowledge in production,
operation and management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEERI KR ()

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

The Group anticipates improving operating conditions for 2023,
as China lifted its COVID-19 pandemic related restrictions for
the past three years. A normalized flow of people will allow
resumption of business development activities and stimulate
consumption. The flow of goods and logistics will also revert
to normalized levels, so that supply chain and delivery of
goods should not face sudden disruptions due to pandemic
related uncertainties. The lifting of border control restrictions
will hopefully re-attract overseas business partners, capital and
consumption. All enterprises in China will pay special attention to
government policies and stimulus towards economic growth and
recovery. In summary, we believe as China closed the chapter on
pandemic restrictions, it will help boost domestic consumption
and overseas business cooperation, and help drive demand
recovery for industrial goods and equipment.

The world, however, must confront a series of complicated
challenges. Global economic recovery is likely to remain weak
across Western developed countries and most developing nations.
The fight to combat high inflation with tightening monetary
policies affects businesses worldwide as we are experiencing
interest rate hikes and weakened currencies relative to the US
dollar. Western developed economies have a realistic chance
to face recession or stagflation in the near term. The most
concerning situation is the escalating Sino-US confrontations,
and the world is increasingly divided. Such geopolitical tensions
between the world’s top two countries are definitely not
conducive to business cooperation among China and Western
countries. On top of that, the Russia-Ukraine conflict seems likely
to escalate. Business wise, it harms the trading and supply of
commodities, dampens consumer demands, and wrecks havoc to
a global supply chain. Top management within the Group must
be highly alert and adapt in an agile manner if and when global
major incidents occur to protect our and customers’ interests.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Nevertheless, we believe ample opportunities exist within
China and overseas for those who are well positioned. The
Group believes those industries riding on megatrends, such as
renewable energy, lithium battery, electric vehicles, automation
equipment and eco-friendly materials, will continue to stand
out. Strong sustainable demands should keep driving industries
such as medical applications, food packaging and necessities.
Industries that were under pressure in the last several years, such
as automotive parts, infrastructures and household appliances,
should rebound from their lows. Our machinery manufacturing
business is positioned to capture opportunities in the above-
mentioned industries by dedicating our efforts and resources to
provide industry-specific customized solutions for our customers.
Our plastic products processing and manufacturing business is
positioned to compete for sustained demands from the food
packaging industry and eco-friendly materials application of our
blow molded mannequins, and reap benefits if and when the
household appliance industry rebounds from its bottom. Our
industrial consumables trading business will continue to focus
on providing packaged solutions to serve vibrant industries such
as lithium battery, renewable energy, medical applications and
automation robotics.

The Group will keep investing in key capabilities in order
to sustain long-term competitiveness. Additional capital
expenditures of renewed machineries and equipment for our
machinery manufacturing business can further improve our
automation, machining capabilities and overall product quality.
Our ongoing research and development investments will focus
on novel technical differentiators to enhance our industry-
specific customized solutions, as well as energy efficient
solutions. Additional investment in solar panels will continue
after successful deployment in 2022. Talent recruitment and
development will continue with a focus on technical engineers
and frontline business development talents. Lastly, most of our
subsidiaries will invest in varying degrees of digitalization systems
that suit their needs. Launches and upgrades of MES, Customer
Relationship Management, Enterprise Resource Planning, Product
Life Cycle Management, and other office automation systems are
planned for the upcoming year. At the same time, the Group will
focus on overall financial health by maintaining a healthy balance
sheet and sound cash flow. Bank financings will also be optimized
and be kept at a conservative level.

EEERL RO (&)

BENL RFIREEEFEMERNDFEESE
FERIIETANEE - FEER R/ HB
FRERVEBM BEIE - BFEREM
BREMHESRFTERSKAEE ; 2HA
FELTERECEGHDBRRERA EmE
EROGTBEMETE, BELEEZENNA
BEREHF BERERREFITEYIEREMLR
Fro-MMREXEBRENEK T RABS
BAOMERRA LAITENSTRREBITEER
ERMERRA R T BEAMIT RBIEER
RFELERMBETERERRFEMEIAIR
BARBBEUNFERR URFRETER
AERBEFED THEREERBEZEDTRKE
MES IR RMH BRI T ERES
BT PIENERE|M s AT B LR - BRI
REBCHEAF-

FEEMBE-BERERZOEIUREF R
BMEH -AEMASERBREMAREM
BANBIINEEARS  E—FPHERMUE
FE-MIENMEREREE -HAHEE
FEN D RER SR =82 (il
BILFINITEE R ESICER S ZEMET AR
REB-HEZZT T FRINRAKXBIES M
W B SHEFHBEBNBEIINEE -
EATHREASE T TERMASN
BEXBEOATEERXRENEIES -
B HMPAABINMNBLADRBEMMNEE
MBAFTERENEELCRY LEAER
REMEMARNENTRS TEBERE
BRF -CEERBIRAK EREDEY
BEAG UREMBAZEEESHCRLG A
IR AEEBEENEBEFERNS
EBBERNEE2NBESAARRREEMEE
B NEHERTREERSE TRFNEERE
Ko

ZZ T ZHF £ Annual Report 2022

2]



22

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EEkEREEASHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang To, aged 74, was appointed as an executive Director
and the chairman of the Board on 14 July 1988 and 18
September 1997, respectively. He is the chairman of each of the
Nomination Committee and Committee of Executive Director,
and a member of the Remuneration Committee. He also acts as
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. On 28 May
2010, he was appointed as the director of Suzhou Sanguang
Science & Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed on the National
Equities Exchange and Quotations and an associated company
of the Company. Mr. Tang has around 50 years of experience
in manufacturing and trading businesses. Mr. Tang is the father
of Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman. As at the date of this annual report,
Mr. Tang is a director of certain substantial Shareholders within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman, aged 45, joined the Group in 2006 and
was appointed as an executive Director and chief executive officer
of the Company on 18 March 2011 and 1 July 2013, respectively.
He is a member of each of the Nomination Committee and
Committee of Executive Directors. He also acts as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Tang had worked in various commercial banks. Mr. Tang
graduated from The University of Western Ontario in Canada
and holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and a Diploma
in Financial Planning. Mr. Tang is the son of Mr. Tang To. As at
the date of this annual report, Mr. Tang is a director of certain
substantial Shareholders within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kan Wai Wah, aged 65, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 22 May 1998. He is a member of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Kan holds a High Diploma in Accountancy.
Mr. Kan has over 40 years of experience in corporate strategy and
corporate management. Mr. Kan is the son of Ms. Law Kit Fong, a
substantial Shareholder (as defined under the SFO). As at the date
of this annual report, Mr. Kan is a director of certain substantial
Shareholders within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Qu Jinping, aged 65, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 8 September 2006. Mr. Qu is currently the
professor and doctoral supervisor in the School of Mechanical
and Automotive Engineering of The South China University
of Technology. He acted as vice president of The South China
University of Technology and elected as an academician of The
Chinese Academy of Engineering in 2011. He obtained a Bachelor
degree and a Master degree in Engineering from The South China
University of Technology in 1982 and 1987, respectively, and a
Doctorate degree in Engineering from The Sichuan University in
1999. He has been engaged in scientific research and teaching
in polymer dynamic plasticizing processing technology and
equipment for over 30 years and achieved a number of world-first
scientific and technology achievements.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan,
independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2004. She is a

aged 57, was appointed as an

chairman of each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, and a member of the Nomination Committee.
Ms. Yeung holds a Master degree in Business Administration.
She is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (AICPA),
The Chartered Governance Institute (CGI) and The Hong Kong

and an associate member of each of

Chartered Governance Institute (HKCGI). Ms. Yeung held senior
financial positions in several companies. She has over 30 years of
experience in the finance sector.

Mr. Huang Zhi Wei, aged 84, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 2 November 2012. He is a member
of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Huang graduated from
The Huazhong University of Science & Technology, majoring
in electrical engineering. Mr. Huang worked in the Chinese
government authorities for over 10 years. From 1993 to 2000, he
served as the deputy director general of Guangdong Commission
of Foreign Trade & Economic Cooperation and the director of
General of Guangdong Board of Investment. From 1984 to
1992, he served as the executive officer of Foshan Economic
Committee. He worked as the engineer at power plant in Foshan
for almost 10 years. From 1981 to 1984, he served as the chief
engineer and deputy general manager of a household electrical
appliances corporation in Foshan.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

BIFRITES
BRIFLL 57w R ZZEEFERA TN
E%é&%ﬁi#ﬁ“%$°ﬁﬁgﬁéé
FMFMBEGZIFE UKRELEES
&thﬁihﬁlméﬁﬁiﬁhvﬁ%

EFFEM TR EAICPAAZEE » LIKRE
BRFRERIEAG(CCH BB ARARE
NEHKCGNZE LT - BRTERHR AT E

EERYBBA - REFH=TFENHBE

BERELE 84 R ZE—ZF+—FBZ
HEZXABIUFNTES HABZEZE
B R EEERIMNEEG B &k
AEENEFRFARE FEERIER
BHAEABAEPEBNEEATHBETF

H—AN=FE_ZTTFHHE REEE
RENICEZRTAEMREREIBERER

BE; B—hA\HAEFEE-NAZFHHE K
EEBUTEEZEGTE-RENELD
HEMEMIEMOATF-H—NAN—FE
—NN\EERRE REEGLTREQS R
TiEbmaE R BAcE -



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

Mr. Lam Kwok Ming, aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 24 November 2022.
He is @ member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Lam holds
a Master of Science in E-commerce for Executives from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and a
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales (ICAEW). He has over 30 years of experience in finance,
business and management in different sectors. He is currently the
managing director of a plastics and chemicals trading and own
branded personal care products company, Jacobson van den Berg
(Hong Kong) Limited, which is a subsidiary of Chinney Alliance
Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed in the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code 385.

Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin, aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 24 November 2022. He
is @ member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Lee obtained
a Degree of Bachelor of Science in Business Administration
(Management) from San Jose State University in the United States
of America in 2001. He has over 20 years of experience in the
information technology industry. He serves as the chief executive
officer of Armitage Technologies Limited since 2011. He is
currently the chairman of the Information and Software Industry
Association and the vice chairman of Hong Kong Electronic &
Technologies Association.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Man Chi Fai, Bruno, aged 61, joined the Group in 2013.
He is currently the general manager of various subsidiaries of the
Company which are engaged in the plastic products processing
and manufacturing business. He also holds directorship in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Man holds a Bachelor of Science
(Mechanical) from The University of London and a Master Science
in Engineering (Industrial Management and Manufacturing) from
The University of Hong Kong. He is a member of each of The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (HKIE) and The Institution
of Electrical Engineers in the United Kingdom (IEE). He had
worked in various sizeable corporations. He has over 20 years of
experience in plastic injection molding, metals manufacturing,
molds design and manufacturing, manufacturing assembly
process management and project management.

Mr. Ye Yueran, aged 49, joined the Group in 2002. He is
currently the general manager of various subsidiaries of the
Company which are engaged in the extrusion lines, rubber
injection molding machines and hydraulic presses manufacturing
business. He also holds directorship in certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Ye has over 10 years of experience in
manufacturing of machinery.

Mr. Yip Kar Shun, aged 75, joined the Group in 1994. He is the
managing director of various subsidiaries of the Company which
are engaged in the printed circuit boards processing and trading
business. He also holds directorship in certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Yip has over 40 years of experience in electronic
production and management.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to submit their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of
the Group are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
and the financial position of the Group at that date are set out
in the audited consolidated financial statements on pages 137 to
288.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded net profit of approximately HK$18,837,000
for the year (2021: approximately HK$84,205,000). Further
details in respect of the fair review of the Group’s businesses,
please refer to the sections of “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The operational complexities inherent in the Group’s businesses
together with the commercially competitive environment
exposed to some notable risks which may affect the Group’s
financial position and business operations. The Group believes
that an effective risk management is critical to achieve our
long-term strategic objectives and enhance the sustainability
of value creation and business growth. The Board has overall
accountability to ensure that risks are effectively managed across
the Group. The Group recognizes that adopting a proactive
approach and establishing a robust business management
system for risk mitigation must be balanced with a degree of
flexibility, so that we can safeguard the interests of Shareholders,
customers, employees and other stakeholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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During the year under review, the most impacted risks are the
COVID-19 pandemic inducing slow global economy recovery, and
the Russia-Ukraine conflict caused oil and commodities prices to
surge and directly led to high inflation globally. The impact of the
pandemic has demonstrated the interconnected nature of risk
which includes business interruption risks, supply chain exposure
and economic risks. The principal risks and uncertainties of the
Group are known as set out below:

Market Risks

Slow Global Economic Recovery and Concentration Risk

The Group’s businesses are sensitive to the slow-paced global
economic recovery environment. Deterioration in global economic
outlook may have a material impact on our financial position.

During the first half of 2022, the pandemic embedded with
highly transmissible variants has effected on governmental public
health policies and customer behavior, which severely hindered
economies across the globe. The variants were indeed a source
of concern holding down China’s economic growth and weak
manufacturing demands, where our major business situated. The
massive COVID-19 infections in China suspended most marketing
activities and prolonged lockdown displayed notable weakness
in investment sentiments. Subsequent to the elimination of
quarantine requirements and inbounding restrictions, travel
between Hong Kong and Mainland China has been resumed
normal in January 2023. Throughout 2022, the Group strictly
adhered to the Chinese and Hong Kong governmental policies
that avoids business interruption threats.

Simultaneously, the global economic sentiment and commercial
activities affected by the Russia-Ukraine conflict are still clouded
by uncertainties prevailing in the external environment and
induces unfavorable effect on manufacturing industries and
depressed consumer confidence. The Group has continually
implemented penetration strategies on customers and product
portfolios through internal development and business model
adjustment to improve businesses’ competitiveness and agility
from slow economic recovery and to reduce the dependency on
specific customer segments.
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Keen Market Competition and Commodity Price Risk due
from Scarcity of Materials

The disruptions to manufacturing activity along with temporary
transportation interruptions led to shortage of materials and
commodities resulting in surging up their prices. The Group
has to compete on both price and product innovation as multi-
national and regional or niche competitors attempt to enlarge
their market share. Intensive competition and supply crisis of core
materials may impede the profitability of the Group. Additionally,
customers were also affected by the competitive pressure and
their sales will fluctuate. The Group owns comparative resilience
and then strives for agility by implementing cost-effective
solutions through digitalization of production process and refined
techniques to enhance productivity and efficiency.

Operation Risks

Confronted by the national climate governance, the Chinese
government has adopted carbon neutral policy and low-carbon
approach especially on manufacturing enterprises to control
the extensive use of fossil fuels, i.e. electricity. In August 2022,
our Wuxi factory has adjusted the working hours which were in
line with local supply of electricity restrictions, and fitted with
national carbon reduction strategies and hence advocated the
global eco-environmental and sustainable gain.

The risk of operation loss caused by logistics bottlenecks and
disruption in supply chain may result in unfavorable impact
on businesses. The Group has experienced difficulties in a
sudden shortage of materials which led to delay in delivery
and inability to procure substitutes at reasonable prices on
a temporary basis resulting in loss of sales opportunities
and non-fulfillment of customers’ expectations. The Group
minimizes these occurrences with supply chain management
including strictly selecting suppliers with quality assurance,
good reputation and high credibility who are honest in co-
operation, and extending sourcing channels and strengthening
inventory control management. The Group continues to monitor
raw materials price movements efficiently by implementing
detailed cost tracking and examining various scenario of hedging
opportunities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Risks

ESG risks are environmental, social and governance variables
that affect the Group’s financial and operation performance.
Environmental, climate and weather-related risks arise in different
ways both outside and inside the Group’s control. The Group
adopts a proactive ESG strategies and manages ESG-related risks
through appropriate response and control measures.

The Group faces environmental risks in production process and
business operations including carbon footprint, water sewage,
waste disposal, greenhouse gas (GHG) emission and climate
change, etc. We strictly monitor and control the generation
of wastes and GHG, etc., and comply with the applicable
environmental regulations. The controlling measures include use
of waterborne paint as replacement of oil borne paint to reduce
in producing activated charcoal and releasing volatile organic
compounds (VOCs) in the production lines of manufacturing of
machinery business, installation of solar panels on the roof of
the plant to generate electricity for energy conservation, and
purchase of inverter electric fans to reduce energy consumption
and emission reduction, as well as installation of activated
charcoal filter programmable logic controller monitoring system
at waste gas treatment facilities and flame ionization detector for
monitoring the emission of waste gas.

Social risks include pay equality, workplace safety, supplier
practice, diversity, equity and community contributions. The
Group advocates “people-oriented, foothold in industrial, value
pragmatism, continuous learning, innovation”, maintains a
highly-efficient workforce with caring interpersonal relationships
and provides safe and pleasant working environment, which are
indispensable to support our sustainable development.

Political Risks

Sino-US relationship inevitably become the top geopolitical
risk for the Group’s businesses. Since the Sino-US trade war
began in 2018 with tit-for-tat tariffs, tension between China
and the United States have negatively affected investment
sentiments, and also brought our business operations with a level
of vulnerability. Rivalry between two countries continues in a
gradual process.
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The Russia-Ukraine conflict carries huge risks to global economy
that has not yet fully recovered from the pandemic shock. The
impacts of the Russia-Ukraine conflict are of great significance
globally — commodities prices jumping to a record-high level,
supply chain disruption, high inflation, and slow economic
growth lowering business and investment expectations. These
pose considerable challenges to global economic recovery in the
post-pandemic era. For the Group's businesses, ratcheting up
energy prices leads to ripple effect on retail gasoline and diesel
prices, undoubtedly passing onto producers and consumers. It
would push up the Group’s production cost and then narrow
down our profitability.

Legal and Regulatory Compliance Risks

The Group has various production plants and offices across
Mainland China and Hong Kong. Any failure to comply with
the latest regulations in these territories may result in penalties
and even temporary production suspension. Failure to ensure
compliance with laws and regulations could have an adverse
effect on the Group’s reputation and bring about potential risks
impacting on the operations and profitability of the Group.
Maintenance of legal and regulatory compliance is a core value of
the Group. The Group would monitor the changes in engagement
of legislation with legal consultation services from time to
time and has internal control procedures in place to ensure the
compliance of regulatory provisions and the implementation of
internal policies.

Financial Risks

The Group is exposed to financial risks, including foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk
arising in the normal course of its business and the commitment
of its financial instruments. The details of such risks are set out in
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

Certain measures to manage the impact of these potential risks
and uncertainties are described in the heading of “Business
Review"” of the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report.
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The financial key performance indicators of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are summarized as

follows:

Operating Performance

Revenue

Operating profit

Profit before tax

Profit for the year

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

Key Financial Information

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Financial Ratios

Current ratio

Gross profit margin

Earnings before interests, taxes,
depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) margin (note)

Net profit margin

AERHET

T
2022
g
HK$°000
FAET
«( X ;E}E
u&)\ 2,339,898
EEF 29,758
FRIR A F 33,071
FERF 18,837
SREXRBF CE) 2.83
RIS ER
RERIRTTA R 560,913
EEMBE 2,625,450
BERE 1,087,054
KABRERFEA
FE{L R 42 (E 1,322,122
BAFEEE=E
MENEEE 1.8
ETIES 15.9%
RETFEREBE-ITER
ﬁﬁm%%ﬂz
(f1&2) 5.3%
FRME 0.8%
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2021
—EC—F
HK$000
FET

3,075,305
119,813
113,119

84,205
10.41

406,057
2,967,885
1,327,361

1,410,809

1.7
17.7%

6.8%
2.7%

=+—HLEFENMBRRRRERBLN

Change
28

-23.9%
-75.2%
-70.8%
-77.6%
-72.8%

+38.1%
-11.5%
-18.1%

-6.3%

+5.9%
-1.8ppE D4

-1.5ppE D
-1.9ppE B



Note:

EBITDA margin is calculated as EBITDA divided by revenue. The following
table sets forth the calculation of EBITDA:
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RETHE RIS T EE SR S AT BV B A F LUK 5t F)
BMENTERBHANENRUBASE T

=1
2022
g
HK$°000
FHET
Profit before tax B AR Al v A 33,071
Add: e
Finance costs MBER 13,415
Depreciation and amortisation on: T R -
— Ownership interest in leasehold land and —EREETHREFNAMEEER
buildings held for own use 16,275
— Other owned assets —HMBEE&EE 43,423
— Intangible assets —mEEE 1,383
- Right-of-use assets —ERREEE 16,041
EBITDA FRetFEMIETERBEHATNERT 123,608

KEJIARFAHE - RIE TERBERINET 25

2021
B4
HK$'000
FHET

113,119

17,741

15,990
43,945

1,383
16,086

208,264
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP’S
BUSINESSES

The Group anticipates improving operating conditions for 2023,
as China lifted its COVID-19 pandemic related restrictions for
the past three years. However, in light of the global economic
uncertainties, the Group will keep investing in key capabilities in
order to sustain long-term competitiveness, and will be highly
alert and adapt in an agile manner if and when global major
incidents occur to protect our and customers’ interests. Details
of future development of the Group’s businesses, please refer
to the sections of “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to complying with the applicable
environmental laws, rules and regulations of China and Hong
Kong on the prevention and control of waste generation, waste
gases emissions and sewage discharges during the production
process. The Group has implemented various measures to save
energy and reduce emissions, including improvements on plants’
equipment to reduce air, greenhouse gas and other emissions,
measures on effective energy conservation to reduce the use
of energy and water, and measures on managing the reduction
of waste. Detailed discussion on the environmental policies
and performance of the Group is set out in the section of
of this annual

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”

report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the year under review, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to
the Group. Apart from complying with Hong Kong laws such
as the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules, SFO, Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Anti-
Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance
(Chapter 615 of the Laws of Hong Kong), we have also complied
with laws of the PRC, including the Company Law of the PRC,
Labour Law of the PRC, Labour Contract Law of the PRC,
Measures on Enterprise Annuities, relevant laws, rules and
regulations in relation to child and forced labour including the
Regulations on Forbidding the Employment of Child Labour and
the Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors, as well as other
environmental laws, relevant rules, ordinances and regulations on
the prevention and control of wastages, waste gases and sewage
emission. These laws, ordinances and regulations include but not
limited to the Law of Environmental Protection of the PRC, the
Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC, the Law of the PRC
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, Law of
the PRC on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the Waste
Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the
Product Eco-responsibility Ordinance (Chapter 603 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), Environmental Quality Standards for Surface
Waters, Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal
Sewers, Measures for the Administration of Permit for Operations
Involving Hazardous Waste and Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, etc..
The above environmental laws will have impact on the Group’s
operation since if we do not dispose all wastages, discharges and
waste gases properly, we might have to bear heavy environmental
protection tax which will lead to an increase in the disposal cost
or temporary production suspension until the fulfillment of the
emission standards.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise of employees, customers, suppliers,
Shareholders, government and regulators, as well as banks.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. Most of the management have been serving
the Group for a long period of time. The Group offers competitive
salaries and benefits and also provides training programmes
or courses for employees of the Group, including employees
at all levels from different departments in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, and also Directors, respectively, so as to further
enhance their technical skills, professional skills and knowledge
in production, operation and management, and at the same
time, make continual contribution to the Group. From time to
time during the year, different activities such as annual dinner,
celebration of staff's birthday and ball games had been organized
by various business units of the Group for general staffs together
with the management to participate in, in order to strengthen
their partnership and communication. In light of social distancing
measures due to the continuous outbreak of the pandemic in
2022, the Group suspended most of our activities, but continued
to celebrate festive seasons with our employees, and distributed
gifts to them as a token of appreciation for their hard work over
the year.

Customers

The major customers of machinery manufacturing business,
plastic products processing and manufacturing business, printed
circuit boards processing and trading business, and industrial
consumables trading business are the plastic pipe manufacturer,
washing machine manufacturer, supplier of printed circuit
boards for home appliances and automotive and lithium battery
equipment manufacturer, respectively. Most of them have been
customers for more than 3 years and we provide high quality
products and after-sale services in return for their loyalty.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

BT EFHMENRME
AEBNANEKRBEIEFNENIR &
B EE-FER -HEB RR - BAREE
A8 LU IRTT -

B&
EERGATEEREERABENEE-
ABPEEECRTEERT T RERE-
AEBREHARF D B9R B R ER > 770 5l
mAEEES  SFE B R R E BB
BREE Uk EBRRHEII B 3RS
HMmE—FRAMMPAETEE - EENEEL
AU BE s BRI IGAAH > W [ B A & F
FHFHBREM -cEBIRAEHEUSFA
RAEBTREZE NAEHRE - EELEHE
MRKELES B—RESEREERE—
S EMMBRILRN S ERERBE -
FEER - _FPHAREFERERR
RN BRI B RIT R0 IEE
BiIHEEEEMNE B I8 X2 Y LU H
FI—F R FE T (Fe

xR
WHMREEST - TERMZ M I RREE
BRI IR M IR EZEB R TEH
ERZBREBNEIEZER DA BHEE
REM ARKRED KERERER
REREEEREENRERER - RMA
REBONERESFEBE=F  HMARHE
B9 E MmN & % AR LUCER M FIBY 85 o



Suppliers

The major suppliers of machinery manufacturing business,
plastic products processing and manufacturing business, printed
circuit boards processing and trading business, and industrial
consumables trading business are supplying the injection
molding machine castings, plastic raw material particles, printed
circuit boards, and stepping motor and servo motor suppliers,
respectively. Most of them have been suppliers for more than 3
years and have maintained good relationship with them in order
to achieve cost effectiveness and obtain long-term commercial
benefits.

Shareholders

The major Shareholders are Cosmos Holdings and its controlled
corporations, China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and
minority Shareholders. It is grateful to have Shareholders who are
being supportive to the Group for a long period of time.

Government and Regulators

It is important for us to pay close attention to the regulatory
trends of local governments and regulators to anticipate legal or
regulatory changes or community developments that may affect
our business.

Banks

Banks serve as the lenders of the Group in providing finance in
our businesses operation and development, include trade finance
and fixed assets purchasing. We maintain stable relationship with
them through regular meetings and visits.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out in the section of
"Five Year Financial Summary” of this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” of and in notes 31 and 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s distributable reserves,
as calculated in accordance with Sections 291, 297 and 299
of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to approximately
HK$388,349,000.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made HK$29,000 of donation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
of “Directors and Senior Management'’s Biographies” on pages 22
to 25 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Messrs. Qu Jinping and Huang Zhi Wei agreed to waive their
Directors’ fees under their letters of appointment. No payment
shall be made by the Company to such Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2022. Further details of the Directors’
emoluments are set out in note 10A to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Tang To (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kan Wai Wah
Mr. Qu Jinping

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin

(Resigned with effect from 24 November 2022)
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei
Mr. Lam Kwok Ming

(Appointed with effect from 24 November 2022)
Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin

(Appointed with effect from 24 November 2022)

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with Article 102 of the Articles and the CG Code. Messrs. Tang To
and Kan Wai Wah and Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan will retire from office
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The newly appointed Directors shall hold office until the next
following general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling
a casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition to the
existing Board), and shall then be eligible for re-election pursuant
to Article 93 of the Articles. Messrs. Lam Kwok Ming and Lee Wai
Yip, Alvin will hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, be eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the same meeting.
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EFRERS

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS'

(nﬁ)

INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in

information of the Directors are set out below:

(M

Mr.
non-executive Director due to the health reason, and

Cheng Tak Yin has ceased to be an independent

accordingly he has also ceased to be the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee, with
effect from 24 November 2022;

Mr. has been
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee with

Kan Wai Wah, a non-executive Director,

effect from 24 November 2022, and his director's fee has
been revised to HK$100,000 per annum with effect from 1
January 2023; and

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan, an independent non-executive Director,
has been re-designated from a member to the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, with effect from 24
November 2022.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 23 November 2022.

Save for the above, there is no other information of the Directors

required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing

Rules.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, the persons
who served as directors of the subsidiaries of the Company are as
follows:

Messrs. Cao Xiaowei, Ching Wang Ho, Diao Junde, Du lJiang,
Fang Xirong, Ho Kwong Sang, Hu Ping, Hui Oi Chun, Jiang
Shufeng, Liu Dangwei, Li Haihua, Lu Hank, Man Chi Fai, Bruno,
Mei Zheqi, Miao Hongliang, Tang To, Tang Yu, Freeman, Tsutsumi
Keiji, Wong Yiu Ming, Xie lJie, Yatsugi Atsushi, Ye Qingzhong,
Ye Yueran, Yip Kar Shun, Yip Kin Keung, Zhang Xiaochen* and
Zhu Wenguang, and Mses. Ching Shuk Kwan, Yu Hong and Yu
Yaqing.

The persons marked with an asterisk* are no longer the directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract
with any members of the Group that is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the headings of "Directors’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Debentures or Underlying Shares
under the SFO”, “Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares or Underlying Shares under the SFO” and “Related Party
Transactions” of this report, and in the heading of “Subsequent
Events” of the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report, at no time during the year or at the end
of the year has been/was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a letter of appointment
setting out the key terms and conditions of his/her appointment
as Director with the Company for a term of three years. They are
all subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least every
three years at annual general meeting in accordance with the
Articles.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Although two of the independent non-executive Directors,
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan and Mr. Huang Zhi Wei have been serving
the Board for more than nine years, they have not engaged in
any executive management of the Group. Their familiarity and
extensive experience with the Group’s businesses place them in a
better position to contribute independent views to the Company.
Taking into consideration of their independent scope of works
when performing duties as independent non-executive Directors
over the past years, there is no evidence that length of service is
having an adverse impact on their independence. For the other
two independent non-executive Directors appointed during the
year under review, the reasons of their independence are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 23 November
2022. Therefore, the Company considered all independent
non-executive Directors (including Ms. Yeung and Mr. Huang) are
independent throughout the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

Saved as the related party transactions as disclosed in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements and in the heading of
“Related Party Transactions” in this report, no Director and his/
her connected entity has or had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract or any
proposed transaction, that is significant in relation to the Group’s
businesses to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year.

INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE
As permitted by the Articles, every Director or other officer or
auditor of the Company shall be entitled to indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against any losses or liabilities which
he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit
of the Directors as required by Section 470 of the Companies
Ordinance when this report is approved in accordance with
Section 391 of the Companies Ordinance and at any time during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage in respect of legal actions brought
for committed or alleged wrongful acts against the Directors
and officers of the Group throughout the year, but exclude any
criminal, dishonest or fraudulent acts or omission.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, DEBENTURES OR UNDERLYING SHARES
UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the shares, debentures or underlying shares of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which had to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he was
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange herein pursuant to the
Model Code, were as follows:

Long Position in Shares or Underlying Shares:

Number of Shares Held
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Personal Family Corporate Total Number of

Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Total Issued Shares
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Tang To 4,970,005 226,000 445,617,458 @ 450,813,463 52.30
ik

Tang Yu, Freeman - - 442,157,052 @ 442,157,052 51.30
'R

Kan Wai Wah 136,400 - - 136,400 0.02

B ES
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Notes:

(M

2)

The 226,000 Shares were held by Mr. Tang To and his spouse jointly.

Mr. Tang To was deemed to be interested in the 445,617,458
Shares under the SFO, comprising (i) 3,460,406 Shares held by
Ginta Company Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong) which is
approximately 99.999% owned by Fullwin Limited (incorporated
in the Republic of Liberia), which in turn is owned as to 50% by
Mr. Tang To and 50% by his spouse respectively; (i) 405,907,052
Shares held by Codo through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Tai
Shing, Hung Cheong and Cosmos Holdings; and (iii) 36,250,000
Shares held by Saniwell (as the trustee of The Saniwell Trust, the
beneficiaries of which include Mr. Tang To and certain of his family
members) which in turn is owned as to approximately 57.14% by
Mr. Tang To.

Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman was deemed to be interested in the
442,157,052 Shares under the SFO, comprising (i) 405,907,052
Shares held by Codo through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Tai
Shing, Hung Cheong and Cosmos Holdings; and (ii) 36,250,000
Shares held by Saniwell (as the trustee of The Saniwell Trust, the
beneficiaries of which include Mr. Tang To and certain of his family
members) which in turn is owned as to approximately 42.86% by
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the

Directors, chief executives of the Company and their associates

had any interests or short positions in any shares, debentures or

underlying shares of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or

as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES
UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2022, so far was known to the Directors,
the following persons had an interest or long position or short
position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the

register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long Position in Shares or Underlying Shares:

Name of Shareholder

REta

Tai Shing

Cosmos Holdings
AEER

Codo
BE

Law Kit Fong

Saniwell

China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited

EH (£E) BRAF

CRC Bluesky Limited

China Resources Co., Limited

EBRMERAT

Capacity in which
Interests are Held

RERD 250

Beneficial owner

BaEAA

Beneficial owner and interest of
controlled corporations

EREEARREEMZ RE

Interest of controlled corporations
SEEBZER

Interest of controlled corporations
SEEBZER

Beneficial owner and interest of
controlled corporations

BaRBARX BBz R

Beneficial owner

BEEAA

Interest of controlled corporations
REFBZER

Interest of controlled corporations
REFBZER

Direct Interests

B

170,104,452

235,802,600

36,250,000

169,649,046
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Number of Shares Held
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(BHERHEEM ) EEXVERE 2 K39 21X
BEARABPEZ AN TFERRE > IR
B(ESMPBERA) F336KBEFEFENE
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Approximate %

BERAEE of the
Total Number of

Deemed Interests Total Issued Shares
EERTRM

REMEREZEG ay By ZBAEAL
- 170,104,452 19.74

170,104,452 405,907,052 47.09
405,907,0527 405,907,052 47.09
405,907,0527 405,907,052 47.09
405,907,052 442,157,052 51.30

- 169,649,046 19.68

169,649,046 169,649,046 19.68
169,649,046/ 169,649,046 19.68



Notes:

(M

Tai Shing was wholly-owned by Hung Cheong, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Cosmos Holdings. By virtue of the SFO, Cosmos
Holdings was deemed to be interested in the 170,104,452 Shares
held by Tai Shing.

Cosmos Holdings was owned as to approximately (i) 99.999%
by Codo; and (ii) 0.001% by Glad Season Investments Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong), which was owned as to 50% by Codo
and 50% by Cosmos Holdings (as trustee for Codo). By virtue of the
SFO, Codo was deemed to be interested in the 405,907,052 Shares
held by Cosmos Holdings.

Codo was owned as to approximately (i) 8.37% by Elegant Power
Enterprises Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong, “Elegant Power”);
and (ii) 30.25% by Friendchain Investments Limited (incorporated in
Hong Kong, “Friendchain”), which was owned as to 40% by Elegant
Power. Elegant Power was owned as to approximately 0.002% by
Mr. Kan Wai Wah, a non-executive Director (as trustee for Ms. Law
Kit Fong), and approximately 99.998% by Ms. Law Kit Fong. By
virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law Kit Fong was deemed to be interested in
the 405,907,052 Shares held by Codo.

Codo was owned as to approximately (i) 25.06% by Keepsound
Investments Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong), which was owned
as to 94% by Saniwell; and (ii) 30.25% by Friendchain, which was
owned as to approximately 57.42% by Saniwell. By virtue of the
SFO, Saniwell was deemed to be interested in the 405,907,052
Shares held by Codo.

By virtue of the SFO, CRC Bluesky Limited (incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands) was deemed to be interested in the
169,649,046 Shares held by China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong), which was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CRC Bluesky Limited.

By virtue of the SFO, China Resources Co., Limited (incorporated in
the PRC) was deemed to be interested in the 169,649,046 Shares
held by CRC Bluesky Limited, which was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Resources Co., Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors
are not aware of any other persons who had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with those regarded
as “Related Parties” under applicable accounting standards.
These transactions mainly relate to the contracts entered into
by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business
which were negotiated on normal commercial terms and on an
arm’s length basis. Further details are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Directors confirmed that the related party transactions do
not fall under connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of subsequent event occurring from the end of the
reporting period to the date of this annual report, please
refer to the heading of “Subsequent Events” of the section of
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that requires the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares was entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors is considered to have
interests in the businesses which are considered to compete or
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with businesses of
the Group pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group's corporate governance practices and procedures are
set out in the section of “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the remuneration policy of employees and the
emoluments of the Directors, please refer to the heading of
"Employees, Remuneration Policy and Training Scheme” of the
section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the respective
percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers and revenue attributable to the Group's five largest
customers, on a combined basis, was less than 30% of the total
value of the Group’s purchases and revenue.

None of the Directors, their associates or Shareholders (who to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the total
number of issued Shares) had any interest in the Group's major
suppliers or customers noted above.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
Information on the main works of Audit Committee and its
composition are set out in the heading of “Audit Committee”
of the section of “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report.

AUDITOR

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 have been audited by Ting Ho Kwan & Chan,
which will retire from office, and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

By order of the Board

TANG To
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board is committed to practicing and maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance for the enhancement of
Shareholders’ value and safeguarding interests of Shareholders
and other stakeholders, and reviews corporate governance
practices and procedures of the Group from time to time.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has made detailed disclosures in relation to the
accounting period covered in this report in compliance with the
requirements of the Corporate Governance Report as set out
in the CG Code. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with all the applicable code provisions of the CG Code
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board has established the purpose, values and strategy of the
Company to align with the Company’s culture, and

promoting it across different business segments
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decisions and operations.
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and development momentum KA RBE7 > AR
to enhance our core businesses ZEER FEAMIER A
rooted in Mainland China, B A 3 BN Ao FE
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and services to our customers Continuous Value BERRHEBEES
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realise and maximize value for the b BEKAERAEESR
stakeholders, thereby building a strong BE HMEILEZEERN
reputation. EERFE R
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THE BOARD
Composition
The Board currently consists of eight members who are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Tang To (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kan Wai Wah
Mr. Qu Jinping

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan

Mr. Huang Zhi Wei

Mr. Lam Kwok Ming

Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin

The Directors’ biographical details and the relationships among
the Board members, if any, are set out in the section of “Directors
and Senior Management's Biographies” on pages 22 to 25 of this
annual report.

Mechanisms for ensuring independent views and input

The Company recognises that the Board independence is pivotal
in good corporate governance and Board effectiveness. The
Company has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board, and will review the
implementation and effectiveness of such mechanisms annually.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Such mechanisms are set out as follows:

The Board must include at least three independent
non-executive Directors, representing at least one-third of
the Board;

The Nomination Committee assesses the independence,
cross-directorships, any material relationships with other
Directors, qualification and time commitment of a candidate
who is nominated to be a new independent non-executive
Director before appointment, and also the continued
independence of existing independent non-executive
Directors and their time commitments annually;

The Company must confirm annually that the written
confirmation of independence have been received from
all independent non-executive Directors, and disclose the
reasons they are independent, pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules;

All Directors are encouraged to express freely their
independent, constructive and informed comments during
the meetings of the Board and Board committees;

The chairman of the Board holds an annual meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors;

The Company should assist the individual Directors and/or
the Board committees perform their duties if they reasonably
request for seeking the external independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances;

No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements is granted to independent non-executive Directors;
and

Any Director shall not vote on any Board resolution
approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which he/she or any of his/her close associates
has a material interest nor shall he be counted in the
quorum present at the meeting.
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The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Although two of the independent non-executive Directors,
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan and Mr. Huang Zhi Wei have been serving
the Board for more than nine years, they have not engaged in
any executive management of the Group. Their familiarity and
extensive experience with the Group’s businesses place them in a
better position to contribute independent views to the Company.
Taking into consideration of their independent scope of works
when performing duties as independent non-executive Directors
over the past years, there is no evidence that length of service is
having an adverse impact on their independence. For the other
two independent non-executive Directors appointed during the
year under review, the reasons of their independence are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 23 November
2022. Therefore, the Company considered all independent
non-executive Directors (including Ms. Yeung and Mr. Huang) are
independent throughout the year under review.

Furthermore, all Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should retire from office by rotation and, if eligible, be
re-elected at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting of the Company and the reasons the Nomination
Committee and the Board believe that each independent
non-executive Directors, who will be re-elected in the annual
general meeting of the Company, to be independent are set out
in the relevant circulars.

In addition to the disclosure in the section of “Directors and
Senior Management'’s Biographies” of this annual report, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship among members of
the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Board Diversity

A revised board diversity policy of the Company has been
adopted on 21 November 2022. The Company maintains that
Board appointment will take into account gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and term of office of the selected candidates,
and any other factors that the Board might consider relevant and
applicable from time to time towards achieving a diverse Board.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
Nomination Committee will review the said policy annually to
ensure its effectiveness and discuss any revisions that may be
required and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

The Board is currently composed of Directors of different genders,
ages and length of service, the existing Directors come from
diverse backgrounds and have diverse expertise in academic
and professional experience. Presently, the proportion of female
representation at Board level is 12.5%. The Board is of the view
that the current diversity of the Board is appropriate and targets
to maintain at least the current level of female representation.
The Board will continue to seek opportunities to increase the
proportion of female members over time as and when suitable
candidates are identified.

An analysis of the Board’s current composition is set out as
follows:
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Employee Diversity

At workforce level (including senior management), our approach
to diversity concentrates on talent acquisition, progression and
retention. We have formulated talent development plan in
delivering a more diverse representation and endeavor to provide
equal opportunity in recruitment, career development, promotion,
reward and training to all employees.

As at 31 December 2022, the ratio of female to male in the
workforce of the Group (excluding Directors) was 33:67.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, gender diversity for industrial
business segment in which the Group operates may be less
relevant due to the nature of work. However, the Group still
managed to promote appropriate gender balance.

Nomination Policy

The nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”)
was recommended by the Nomination Committee and approved
by the Board, and adopted on 29 November 2018. In considering
the nomination of new Directors, other than the elements of
board diversity, the members of the Nomination Committee will
also be subject to the Nomination Policy.

The Nomination Policy is summarized as follows:

e state the objectives of the Nomination Policy, including
ensuring the Board members have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Group’s businesses;

e set out the procedure for the selection, appointment and
reappointment of Directors;

° set out selection criteria, including but not limited to
qualifications, skills, experience in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate and the requirement for the Board
to have independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates for
independent non-executive Directors would be considered
independence with reference to the independence criteria or
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules; and

e |ist out the applicable laws and procedures regarding
appointment of Directors.
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The Nomination Committee then put forward the recommendation
in respect of the above factors, where appropriate, to the Board for
consideration and adoption according to the Nomination Policy.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee made
recommendations on re-election of Directors and assessed the
independence of all the independent non-executive Directors, and
approved by the Board. The Board considered all independent
non-executive Directors are independent throughout the year
under review.

On 30 March 2023, after taking into account the Board's
composition and in accordance with the Nomination Policy, the
Board considered and proposed the nomination of Mr. Tang To,
Mr. Kan Wai Wah and Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan, who shall retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, and Mr. Lam Kwok Ming and Mr. Lee Wai Yip,
Alvin, who shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. They will be eligible and willing to
offer themselves for re-election. Each of the above Directors has
abstained from voting on his/her own nomination when it was
being considered.

Proceedings

The Board should hold at least four meetings annually. A
notice is given to all Directors at least 14 days before the date
of all regular Board meetings, and they can include matters
for discussion in the agenda if the need arises. The company
secretary of the Company assists the chairman of the Board in
preparing the agenda for Board meetings and ensures that all
relevant rules and regulations are followed. The agenda and the
accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors at least 3
days before the date of Board meeting so that they have the time
to review the documents and make informed decisions in the
meeting. Queries raised by Directors will receive a prompt and full
response, if possible.
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A Director is required to abstain from deliberations and decisions
of the Board on matters where he/she is the interested party,
and he/she does not put under pressure the Board in respect
of the matters. In the event a corporate proposal is required to
be approved by Shareholders, interested Directors are required
to abstain from voting on their Shares held on the relevant
Shareholders’ resolutions, and will further undertake to ensure
that persons connected to them similarly abstain from voting on
the relevant Shareholders’ resolutions.

Minutes of each Board meeting record in sufficient details the
matters considered and decisions made, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft of
minutes is circulated to all Directors for their comment. Final
version of minutes is signed by the attending Directors as a
correct record of the proceedings of the meeting and kept by the
company secretary of the Company, and are open for inspection
by Directors.

Every Board member is entitled to have access to Board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the company secretary of the Company to enable
them to discharge their duties effectively. Also, they can seek
external professional advice if so required, and such cost will be
borne by the Company.

During the year, four regular Board meetings and one annual
general meeting were held.
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Attendance Record of Directors at Meetings Held During the

Year

The details of Directors’ attendance at the meetings (including
the Board meetings, Audit Committee meetings, Nomination
Committee meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings and
annual general meeting) held during the year are set out in the

following table:

Name of Director

Exiy

Executive Directors
HITES

Tang To

EiES

Tang Yu, Freeman
L5

Non-executive Directors
EHTES

Kan Wai Wah"

wiEE"

Qu Jinping

Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHITES
Yeung Shuk Fan

L nitsy

Cheng Tak Yin®
BEH

Huang Zhi Wei
TR

Lam Kwok Ming®
HREIBR®

Lee Wai Yip, Alvin®
FREY

Notes:

Board
Meetings
EFEE;

4/4

4/4

4/4

3/4

4/4
3/4
4/4
0/0

0/0

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

%

TRINTEENEAFERET
EXCER BEREZECTR RLEEE
R FMEEETRRRRBERE) 2
i sF M 1B T -

Attendance/Number of Meetings Entitled to Attend

HERY ARULEN

Audit Nomination
Committee Committee
Meetings Meetings
BRZEEEE RLZEEEE
N/A 212
TEA
N/A 212
TEH
212 N/A
TEA
N/A N/A
TEA TEA
4/4 212
212 212
4/4 1/2
N/A 0/0
TEH
N/A 0/0
TEA
izt :

=3
@ 21

R
Remuneration
Committee
Meetings
FHZEEEE

2/2

N/A
TER

N/A
TER
N/A
TER

22
212
12
N/A
TER

N/A
TER

Eams (@

EENFFERBTHERLFCER

nE® (85

Annual
General
Meeting

BREAFEAE

17

il

"

17

il
"
"
0/0

0/0

(1) Mr. Kan Wai Wah has been appointed as a member of the Audit (1) fEELER_ZT__F+—H _+HHIE

Committee with effect from 24 November 2022.

EZEREREZEEGME-

(2) Mr. Cheng Tak Yin has resigned as an independent non-executive (2) BEBRXF*R _FT-__F+—F°-+@0HH

Director, and ceased to be the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the

Nomination Committee with effect from 24 November 2022.
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(3) Mr. Lam Kwok Ming has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the Nomination Committee
with effect from 24 November 2022.

(4)  Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the Nomination Committee
with effect from 24 November 2022.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the CMEL Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code as the
Company’s code of conduct and rules governing dealing by
all Directors and relevant employees in the securities of the
Company. The Board will revise the CMEL Code from time to
time in order to keep it in line with the changes brought upon
by the relevant amendments to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code and CMEL Code for the year ended 31
December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director (if any) receives a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package to ensure that he/she
is sufficiently aware of his/her duties, responsibilities and
obligations as a Director under the Companies Ordinance, Listing
Rules and other regulatory requirement and ensure he/she has a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and business.

The Company provides all Directors relevant reading materials
from time to time on the latest changes and development in
the industry, legal, regulatory in which the Group operates
its business to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
relevant. In addition, all Directors are encouraged to attend
external seminar or training on relevant topics for their
continuous professional development. Certain Directors have
attended external trainings and seminars during the year.
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The individual training record of each Director who held office

during the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

Name of Director

EREnY

Executive Directors
BiITESR

Tang To

BBz

Tang Yu, Freeman
&

Non-executive Directors
ERITES

Kan Wai Wah

RGeS

Qu Jinping

BE¥

Independent Non-executive Directors
BIFEHITES
Yeung Shuk Fan

Lz N

Cheng Tak Yin®
ifeg= 0

Huang Zhi Wei
=EJE

Lam Kwok Ming®?
HREIBR®

Lee Wai Yip, Alvin®
FREEO

Notes:

Induction

Programme for Newly
Appointed Director
WIEEEMW

AT

(1) Mr. Cheng Tak Yin has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 24 November 2022.

(2)  Mr. Lam Kwok Ming has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 24 November 2022.

(3) Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 24 November 2022.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate
and performed by different individuals to reinforce their
independence and accountability. Mr. Tang To is the chairman
and Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman serves as the chief executive officer.
Mr. Tang To is responsible for providing leadership to and
overseeing the functioning of the Board to ensure that it acts in
the best interest of the Group; while Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman, who
is the chief operating decision maker, is responsible for managing
the business of the Group, attending to the formulation and
implementation of the Group’s policies and strategic operating
plans, and assuming full accountability to the Board for the
Group's operations.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are appointed for a term of three years. Their terms
of office are: (i) Mr. Kan Wai Wah (non-executive Director) and
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan (independent non-executive Director), who
were appointed for a term commencing from 1 January 2023 and
expiring on 31 December 2025; (ii) Mr. Qu Jinping (non-executive
Director), who was appointed for a term commencing from
8 September 2021
(iii) Mr. Huang Zhi Wei (independent non-executive Director), who

and expiring on 7 September 2024;

was appointed for a term commencing from 2 November 2021
and expiring on 1 November 2024; and (iv) Messrs. Lam Kwok
Ming and Lee Wai Yip, Alvin (both independent non-executive
Directors), who were appointed for a term commencing from 24
November 2022 and expiring on 23 November 2025. They are
all subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least every
three years at annual general meeting in accordance with the
Articles.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely the
Committee of Executive Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee to manage particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs and aid in sharing the
responsibilities of the Board. Except the Committee of Executive
Directors, all committees have their specific written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the CG Code.
All resolutions passed by the committees will be reported to the

Board at the forthcoming Board meeting.

No corporate governance committee has been established but
respective committees (as disclosed below) are responsible for
performing corporate governance functions set out in code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

Committee of Executive Directors

The Committee of Executive Directors was established on 15
August 1997 which comprises all executive Directors. They meet
frequently and are responsible for the management of day-to-day
business operation of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 30 October 1998
and consists of three members with a majority of independent
non-executive Directors. They are:

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan (Chairman)
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei

Non-executive Director
Mr. Kan Wai Wah

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively.

During the year, the Audit Committee performed the duties and
responsibilities under the terms of reference and other duties as
required under the CG Code.
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During the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings and
performed the main works as stated below: (i) review of the
final results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021;
(i) review of the interim results of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2022; (iii) review of the progress and completion
level of the internal audit plan for 2022 and the internal
audit plan for 2023,
of anti-corruption and bribery policy; (v) recommendation on

(iv) recommendation on establishment

amendments to whistleblowing policy; (vi) review of 2022 audit
plan; (vii) recommendation to the Board on re-appointment
of external auditor for Shareholders’ approval and review the
audit fees; and (viii) review of terms of reference of the Audit

Committee.

The Audit Committee meets with the financial controller and
external auditor of the Company, where applicable to discuss
their respective audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, legal and regulatory compliance,
internal control and risk management systems, and financial
reporting matters (including annual financial statements
before recommending them to the Board for approval). The
Audit Committee also meets with the head of Internal Audit
Department separately without the presence of management. The
Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities
for maintaining effective risk management and internal control
systems. It reviews the Group's annual internal audit plan
together with the necessary resources and considers the report
submitted by the head of Internal Audit Department to the Audit
Committee on the results of risk assessment and effectiveness of
internal controls in the business operations of the Group.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee members is set

out in the heading “Attendance Record of Directors at Meetings
Held During the Year” on pages 59 to 60 of this report.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 29 March 2012
and consists of six members with a majority of independent
non-executive Directors. They are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Tang To (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei

Mr. Lam Kwok Ming

Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
respectively.

During the year, the Nomination Committee performed the duties
and responsibilities under the terms of reference and other duties
as required under the CG Code.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings
and performed the main works as stated below: (i) review of
current structure, size and diversity of the Board; (i) assessment
and review of the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; (iii) recommendation on amendments to Board
diversity policy; (iv) recommendations on the renewal of letters
of appointment of a non-executive Director and an independent
non-executive Director; (v) nomination of two candidates to be
appointed as independent non-executive Directors; and (vi) review
of terms of reference of the Nomination Committee.

The attendance record of the Nomination Committee members
is set out in the heading "Attendance Record of Directors at
Meetings Held During the Year” on pages 59 to 60 of this report.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 27 June 2005
and consists of three members with a majority of independent
non-executive Directors. They are:

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan (Chairman)
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei

Executive Director
Mr. Tang To

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
respectively.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee performed the
duties and responsibilities under the terms of reference and other
duties as required under the CG Code.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings
and performed the main works as stated below: (i) consideration
and review of the remuneration package of executive Directors;
(ii) review of directors’ fees of non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors); (iii) consideration of the
directors’ fees of a non-executive Director and an independent
non-executive Director during their re-appointment period,
(iv) consideration of the directors’ fees of two newly appointed
independent non-executive Directors; and (v) review of terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
based on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
with reference to individual performance, qualifications and
experience of the Directors, the duties and responsibilities of
the Directors in the Company, the Group's performance and
profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market condition. The Directors do not participate in
the determination of their own remuneration. Details of Directors’
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in

note 10A to the consolidated financial statements.
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The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members
is set out in the heading "Attendance Record of Directors at
Meetings Held During the Year” on pages 59 to 60 of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis, and the Audit Committee reviews their
effectiveness at least annually with the assistance of the Internal
Audit Department. The Group’s risk management and internal
control systems, are systems of process performed by the Board
and management to provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in
achieving the established corporate objectives, safeguarding
assets of the Group, providing reliable financial reporting, and
complying with applicable laws and regulations. The purpose of
the risk management and internal control systems is to identify
and manage various risks of the Group, which are categorised as
strategic, operational, compliance, financial and environmental,
social and governance risks, so as to reduce, mitigate, transfer
or avoid them. However, these systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminating risk of failure in operational system, and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

Internal Audit

To comply with the CG Code in relation to the requirements of
the establishment of internal audit function and appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems,
the Internal Audit Department is responsible for preparing an
annual internal audit plan with use of appropriate risk-based
methodology, evaluating the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control processes through a systematic and
disciplined approach, reviewing financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions, and
reporting the findings with recommendations to the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee takes the responsibility to
review the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems, and ensure the internal audit function and its duties are
in compliance with the CG Code.
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EEERKRS (B

The internal audit function is carried out by the Internal Audit
Department and its purpose, authority, roles and responsibilities
were formalized under internal audit charter adopted by the
Audit Committee.

Confronting the travel restrictions and quarantine measures
implemented by the Chinese and Hong Kong governments,
the Internal Audit Department continuously conduct remote
auditing on certain selected business units in Mainland China by
agile audit techniques with the use of technology, collaborative
working and video conferencing. It includes the prioritization of
operational resilience and assessment of any emerging risks that
support the provision of risk-based and reasonable assurance for
maintaining an effective risk management and internal control
systems of the Group to enhance and protect the organizational
value.

Internal Audit Department prepares an annual internal audit
plan based on a risk assessment methodology, and upon the
Audit Committee’s approval, carries out audit works pursuant to
the approved plan. During the year under review, Internal Audit
Department issued reports covering operational, financial and
environmental, social and governance reviews of the Company
and also special reviews of areas of concern identified by
Management, to senior management. Internal audit reports with
audit findings and recommendations are prepared for the Audit
Committee’s review and discussion from time to time.
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Risk Management

Our risk management process is embedded in our daily
operations, financial activities, compliance, strategy development
and business planning, investment decision and external factors.
The risk management process includes:

Risk Identification
e identifying the risks through department heads and general
manager of each business;

e identifying the risks that may have a potential to negatively
affect the business strategic plan of the Group;

e  considering the materiality of the impact of the risk; and

e accessing the relevancy to the business strategic plan and
the level of potential impact of the delivery of the business
strategic plan.

Risk Analysis
e conducting a quantity measurement to evaluate the risk
level;

e assessing the risk severity according to its level of
consequence and the likelihood of the risk event becoming
actual event; and

e determining the risk severity with reference to the historical
data, industry norms and own judgment.

Risk Evaluation
e identifying the risks and assess the options available to
accept, mitigate, transfer or avoid the risks; and

e deciding the appropriate response in terms of its
effectiveness and establishing the priorities.

Risk Treatment
e selecting the risk treatment options; and

e preparing and implementing risk treatment plans and
reporting to the Audit Committee regularly.
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Internal Control
The internal control system consists of a set of rules, policies and
procedures and organizational structures, which aims to:

e ensure the corporate strategies are properly implemented;

e achieve the effective and efficient corporate processes;

e safeguard the value of corporate assets;

e ensure the reliability and integrity of accounting and
management data; and

e ensure the business operations comply with laws, rules,

policies and regulations.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control, and
Corporate Governance Compliance

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has concluded a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2022,
covering all material financial, operational, compliance controls
and risk management functions, and therefore considered that
In addition, the

Audit Committee also reviewed the adequacy of resources,

such systems were effective and adequate.

staff qualifications and experience of staff and the training
programs and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, as well as those relating to the Company’s
environmental, social and governance performance and reporting.
During the year under review, the Audit Committee was not
informed of any audit findings that indicated material weaknesses
in the internal control system or the risk management system.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

Py R B 42
2 ﬁ*;“/% meEs—ERI BRNERFK
EERE B

o MREFERBLENIT;

o ERAUKSMNEEREFR;

s MRELXEENERE;

e HWRE
"R

SAREEBENAESENTE

e HMREBEE
R o

FFaERE R -BRR

B ERBREERANIBEE UKET
VAN
EXECABBELZEERNEE_S
F+ZTRA=+— E¢$V$$@ﬂﬁmﬁ&
WEREIER Y BEFRBEEAMH EE -5
ﬁ&ﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%%’ﬁﬁ%af%ﬁﬁ
MkEH M BEREEETERANEAER
Tt MM BERRBAE  URARFIRE
HEREARRNERTEESARENSE
R RBEERERKE UkEEFMESRRE
MEINRERERRE -RALEFER
B ZEGARETENSEFNRTRARE
BRARPEFEEEAERRBENETER

E¥EE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

PROCEDURES FOR HANDLING AND
DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside
information in compliance with the Listing Rules, SFO and other
regulatory requirements, the Company has adopted a policy
on disclosure of inside information (the “Inside Information
Disclosure Policy”) to regulate procedures and internal controls
in handling of inside information. The Directors and senior
management of the Company are obliged to take all reasonable
measures stipulated in the said policy to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent the Company from breaching
the statutory disclosure requirement. The Inside Information
Disclosure Policy covers the following:

e setting out the processes for identifying and assessing
potential inside information, and convening a Board meeting
to consider and discuss potential inside information;

e setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving the
confidentiality of inside information; and

e identifying who the Company’s authorized spokespersons
are and their responsibilities for communications with the
stakeholders of the Company.

The Board considers that the Company's existing measures
and compliance mechanisms are effective and appropriate to
safeguard the Company and its officers in discharging their
disclosure obligations in respect of inside information.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

A revised whistleblowing policy of the Company has been
adopted on 26 August 2022 for employees and those who
deal with the Company (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise
concerns, in confidence, with the Audit Committee about the
possible improprieties in any matters related to the Company.

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND BRIBERY POLICY

An anti-corruption and bribery policy of the Company has been
adopted on 26 August 2022 in order to provide information and
guidance to all employees of the Group on how to recognize
and deal with corruption and bribery, and prevent corruption and
bribery in any business dealings.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the fee paid/payable
to the external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditor to the Group were as follows:

Services rendered FTie (it AR 75
Audit services Z B RS
Non-audit services JEIZ AR 75

Total AET

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting and
financial reporting standards to enable the presentation of these
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. The Directors will subject to
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards,
select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,
make prudent, fair and reasonable judgments and estimates and
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Lai Tong acts as the sole company secretary of the
Company. She is a full-time employee of the Company and
reports to the chairman and/or chief executive officer. During the
year, she has duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT

ShES % S EMEN <&
REBEE_E__F+_FA=+—HILEE">
BB B INEZ BT A A EEIREZ
HRIIEZBBRH MW T

Fee paid/payable
et/ BYER
HK$'000

FET

2,848

2,848

MUKREZRMBHRERZEE

EFNERSAESERBEIETERRER
S RUBREERGRAERGESME
m& o UERILEMBRERT§RRFHE
RMEFERERRAL - EFHRHIIOETE
EXRKRBERZEENT  BETEHER
BEMNESHER FRBER 2P RGEZ
HE R EE TRFECSERERRUYBTR
*o

NSIEDE
TRBELLEERRBDE—RATNE RS
AABZEHEEREROEIER HMBIT
BABHER NAEFER KEBT(LHR
) B3 29F B RAE XEEINZRE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company has opportunities to directly communicate with
Shareholders at annual general meeting and other general
meetings where Shareholders are encouraged to actively attend.
In addition, the chairman of the Board and the chairman of
each of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee were present to answer any attending
Shareholder’s questions at the annual general meeting. The
auditor had also attended the said meeting to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor’s
independence.

Furthermore, the Company provides information in its annual
reports, interim reports, and announcements. All Shareholders’
communications are also available on the Company’s website at
http://www.cosmel.com.

Convening of a General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights
of all Shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings
can request the Directors to call a general meeting. The request
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with
at the general meeting and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the
meeting. Such request must be authenticated by the person(s)
making it and sent to the Company at its registered office in
hard copy form or in electronic form to ir@cosmel.com for the
attention of the company secretary.
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Shareholders’ Power to Request Circulation of Statement
Pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all Shareholders or at least 50 Shareholders who have
a relevant right to vote at a general meeting, may request the
Company to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to receive
notice of a general meeting, a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution or other business to be dealt with at that meeting. The
request (i) must identify the statement to be circulated; (ii) must
be authenticated by the person(s) making it; and (iii) may be
sent to the Company at its registered office in hard copy form
or in electronic form to ir@cosmel.com for the attention of the
company secretary at least 7 days before the meeting to which it
relates.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at an
Annual General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all Shareholders of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at
annual general meeting or at least 50 shareholders who have
a right to vote on the resolution at an annual general meeting
to which the request relate, may request the Company to give
to the Shareholders notice of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting. The request
(i) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given;
(ii) must be authenticated by the person(s) making it; and (iii) may
be sent to the registered office of the Company in hard copy
form or in electronic form to ir@cosmel.com for the attention of
the company secretary no later than 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting; or if later, the time at which notice of the
meeting is given.
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Procedure for Shareholders and Other Stakeholders to Send
Enquiries and Concerns to the Board

Shareholders and other stakeholders are invited to access the
Company’s website at http://www.cosmel.com for up-to-date
information of the Company. They are advised to send enquires
and concerns to the Board:

(i) by post at the registered office of the Company; or

(i) by email to ir@cosmel.com; and

for the attention of the company secretary.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the shareholders’ communication policy of the Company at the
Board meeting held on 26 August 2022, and adopted a revised
shareholders’ communication policy on the same day which is
available on the Company's website. Shareholders and other
stakeholders can read the said policy at the Company’s website
for details.

DIVIDEND POLICY

A dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) was
adopted by the Board on 28 November 2018, which sets out the
factors in determination of dividend payment of the Company,
the frequency and form of dividend payments.
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When considering the decision on dividend declaration, the Board
will take into account, among other things, the following factors:

(i) financial performance and financial conditions of the Group;

(i) cash flows position of the Group;

(iii) capital requirements for business plans of the Company;

(iv) investment opportunities available with the Company;

(v) borrowing capacity of the Company so as to capture any
growth opportunities;

(vi) expected commitment of the research and development on
new products and technology; and

(vii) future outlook of the macro economic environment that
have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group.

The dividend shall be paid in the form of (i) cash; or (ii) a scrip
dividend; or (iii) a combination of partly in (i) and partly in (ii)
above.

The Board may declare interim dividends at its absolute discretion
in line with the Dividend Policy and may recommend final
dividend payable to the Shareholders who are qualified to attend
the annual general meeting in line with the Dividend Policy,
subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the annual general
meeting. The Company may recommend a special dividend in
special circumstances.

The Dividend Policy would be subject to revision and amendment
from time to time under the Articles and the Hong Kong law,
including the Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited (the “Company” or
“Cosmos Machinery”); together with its subsidiaries collectively
the “Group”) issues its environmental, social and governance (the
“ESG") report (the "

2022. The Report expounds the Group’s ESG management

Report”) for the year ended 31 December

strategies and performance in 2022.

Reporting Scope

The Group principally engages in the manufacturing of
machinery. Hence, the Report covers the ESG information and
data for the year ended 31 December 2022 of the Group's (i)
headquarters in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Headquarters”); (ii)
“IMM
("Donghua

injection molding machine manufacturing business (the
Business”), including Donghua Machinery Ltd.
Machinery”) in Dongguan and Cosmos Machinery Technology
(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. and (iii)
extrusion lines, rubber injection molding machines and hydraulic

("Jiangsu Machinery”) in Wuxi;

press manufacturing business (the “Extrusion Machine Business”),
including Dekuma Rubber and Plastic Technology (Dongguan) Ltd.
(“Dekuma”) in Dongguan.

In light of the plastic products processing and manufacturing
business, printed circuit boards processing and trading business,
and industrial consumables trading business separately attributing
a relatively small proportion to the Group's total revenue, the
Report does not cover those businesses.

Reporting Standards

The Report follows all the “comply or explain” provisions set
out in the ESG Reporting Guide (the "ESG Reporting Guide”)
of Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
"Stock
Exchange”), and reports certain recommended disclosures for

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

the purpose of providing our investors and stakeholders with
comprehensive and comparative non-financial information. The
figures of 2022 and 2021 have not been assured by third party.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRIE-HERERERS (B

In preparing of the Report, the below four reporting principles
outlined in the ESG Reporting Guide formed the backbone:

Materiality

To determine the focus of the Report, materiality assessment
was conducted through stakeholder engagement to identify the
material issues of our core business units.

Quantitative

Environmental and social responsibility data were collected from
core business units to evaluate and validate our environmental
and social responsibility initiatives and management systems.

Balance

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) reviewed
the Report and confirmed there were no omissions of any
information related to material ESG topics. The Report was
prepared without bias.

Consistency

The Report adopted consistent methodologies to allow a fair
comparison of our performance over time. Where applicable,
we disclosed the changes to the methods or key performance
indicators (“KPIs”) used.

In addition to following the ESG Reporting Guide, reference
has been taken from international standards or guidelines in
preparation of our ESG report. The scopes of emissions and their
emission factors are defined in accordance with Hong Kong and
the international reporting framework published as shown below
and retrieved from relevant websites:

e the Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department’s (the
"EPD") Vehicle Emission Calculation model;

e  Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse
Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial,
Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong (2010
Edition) published by the EPD and the Hong Kong Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department (the "EMSD");
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

e 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas
Inventories and Fifth Synthesis Report (2014) published by
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (“IPCC");

e 2022 Sustainability Report of CLP Holdings Limited;

e 2020/21 Annual Report of Hong Kong Water Supplies
Department;

e Emission Factors of the Regional Power Grid Baseline of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) of 2019 and
Corporate Greenhouse Gas Emission Accounting Methods
and Report Guidelines — Power Generation Facilities issued
on 29 March 2021, published by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC;

e The International Civil Aviation Organization (the “ICAQ")
Carbon Emissions Calculators;

e  Energy Statistics Manual issued by the International Energy
Agency; and

e How to prepare an ESG report, Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs, published by the Stock
Exchange on 25 March 2022.

Contact us
If there are any comments or suggestions relating to the Report,
please share by post or email at the addresses as below:

Postal address: 10t Floor, Billion Plaza 2
No. 10 Cheung Yue Street
Cheung Sha Wan
Kowloon, Hong Kong

E-mail address: ir@cosmel.com

The Report can be downloaded from the websites of the
Company at http://www.cosmel.com and the Stock Exchange at
https://www.hkexnews.hk.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRIE-HERERERS (B

ESG reporting structure and responsibilities

Parties

2875

The Board
o=

Company Secretarial Department and
Human Resources and Administration
Department
REMEBRANNERRITEED

ESG Working Group
RIE-HHEREALFE

Principal business units/subsidiaries

TEEBBEU HWERR

Statement of the Board

The Company attaches great importance to sustainable
development. The Board has established an effective ESG
management mechanism to form an ESG governance structure

with clear hierarchy.

The Board is accountable for our ESG strategies and reporting, as
well as responsible for overseeing and managing our ESG-related
risks. The Board, assisted by an ESG Working Group, formulates
strategies and oversees our ESG performance to ensure the
Group's operations in compliance with the relevant ESG policies
as well as applicable laws, rules and regulations.

RBE-HEREABRSFRBEBNEE

Responsibilities

BE

Monitor corporate governance practices and procedures
BERGEERERAER

Maintain appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems of
the Group to ensure compliance with applicable rules and regulations
HEAERNRAREERAREERABEEREIN URFRETEANRA KRG
Review and approve the ESG report

BRTHERRE - HEREARS

Review the principles regarding ESG

ERERRE -HEREBNRA

Monitor the progress on ESG and community engagement programs
BERERE - HERERERNHTRSHEE

Ensure good corporate governance standards and practices are maintained

BARERFREFNEEERRENIEHR

Prepare the ESG report

RERE - HEREARS

Prepare a list of key internal and external stakeholders, and identify their main
concerns and expectations

BE—MEIBORMMIINBRFNELE  THAMPIN T RRENIAE

Data input, collection and analysis, and computation of all relevant KPls

FEWmA S WEM D U5t H A E R RERIER

Organize and implement community engagement programs
ERNERTE2HE5E

Collect ESG related data and input data
WEIRE - 1t & KR EAHERE BN & A BIR

Formulate, improve and implement related ESG aspects policies/guidelines/procedures
FFT mEMEHMEREBE HEREAHENBE 153 BF

EXTEH
ERBARSEERAIFEER - EFIE
BUAMMRE - HERELEEKT A
BTRIE-HERERQEEHE

EEgaEARANERE -HEREAKRE
MRS UAERNERRE - HERER
HEARR EFGTRE - HERERIEF
BB THERE  TEEARINIR
B e kELARE MERAEENES
ARG - HERESBRURER
BOETR AR B

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Recurring COVID-19 outbreaks in Mainland China and Hong
Kong in 2022 and global geopolitical tensions have led to some
uncertainties in our business environment. Amidst road transport
being restricted by local anti-epidemic measures during regional
outbreaks in Mainland China, our plants enhanced their health
and safety measures and ensured to provide our customers high
quality products and services during this challenging period.

In terms of the environment, in order to achieve a set of targets,
we continue to enhance our energy efficiency as well as reducing
our waste generation, saving energy and water, and lessening
greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions during the year.

For our society, we strived to foster a safe and healthy
workplace by offering a rest day to employees following the
completion of third dose of COVID-19 vaccine and implementing
flexible working hours arrangement to reduce the risk of virus
transmission in the community.

During the year, the Board has reviewed and assessed the ESG
issues, and discussed, reviewed and confirmed the ESG work of
this year. The Report has been reviewed and approved by the
Board.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We believe feedback from our stakeholders could help us to
navigate towards sustainable development and are dedicated
to build up long-term relationships of mutual trust with our
stakeholders through internal and external communication
channels to ensure our business is responsive to their suggestions.

RIE-HERERHRS (B

RIZEZZF > PERMANEBERBREN
BRRRBFEE MEE2KMEBEREBER
RO LHEMUERREHE-EFHAR
ZoAPEAMIREEE TR IFHAB BB
BRHZIEMEERRS > HARKE
Mmea T REMZ2HER > I ARTEEE W
REHFRASRMANT A RHEEERTR
7o

FIRBEFE REI—RIER HMARE
FERNEBRAE RS @ RV EYESE
A BERA A K I BRI R EREEBEK

ERMEE RARNNEERE2RENT
FIRIR BEEEEES -AHEERES
EEBAR LETEE LR LURE
REELEREENHE-

REFER EFETCERATGTMIR
B HEREAFER WENR BRKER
AEENRBE - HERERATIERR FK
SCHEFEER MM E-

BHESE
KRB EMENS RERAREEES T
FEEE BRMEBZBRNE RIINRARER
FHEER MREFBIULRESAESR X
NEFHERIRENE(SERE-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE-(E8RELARS ()

We identify any individuals or entities having significant FHMEFABERAEETEERESTANEN
interests in principal activities of the Group as our stakeholders. EANBEAZBRMNFMHE  LEFMHEH
These stakeholders are classified as shareholders, employees, FRISFiEAKRE - RBE -ZL - HE®F BUFK
customers, suppliers, governments and regulators, and banks ESEEE  URIBTRESmMEE - RMER
and financial institutions. We engage with stakeholders through /M E&E/BBEEBWT !

communication channels categorised as follows:

Stakeholder category Communication channels
R EER BRERE
Shareholders 3 Emails, telephone calls and postal correspondence
BE=R B EBiERENT
3 Company website
NIE i
3 Annual general meeting and general meetings
KRREBFAEGRBREARS
3 Annual and interim reports
FHRKRPHARE
. Circulars, announcements, notices and publications
BERAE-BERNY
3 Investor relations enquiries
KREEMBRES
Employees 3 Annual appraisal
(=] FETZ
. Trainings
sl
3 Department heads communicating with their subordinates
B TEERETEESR
3 Company internal notices and communications
REIREB S KB
3 Team building activities
E X REH
Customers 3 Face-to-face and virtual meetings and visits
s BEERERGEKRRED
3 Day-to-day communications via frontline staff
BBRGEENERESB
o Industry exhibitions
XRRE
3 Customer service hotline and email
EFRRBRG R ER
3 Feedbacks on product quality and service from time to time
RN EREBMRBH R E
Suppliers . Emails, telephone calls and postal correspondence
HEERE Bm- BEREN
3 Face-to-face and virtual meetings and visits
ERREREERES

3 Assessment of their product quality, delivery date and price provided

ERARMNERERE REARER

Government and regulators 3 Emails, telephone calls and postal correspondence
BN & E S B BiERiEH
3 Face-to-face and virtual meetings and visits
ERRERGERES

. Reports and submissions pursuant to regulatory requirements
HREEREERBERRERER

Banks and financial institutions 3 Emails, telephone calls and postal correspondence
RIT TR B BEMEN
3 Face-to-face and virtual meetings and visits
EERERGEKRESD

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE-HERERARS (8

Materiality Assessment BEEMTG

The Group has carried out a number of stakeholder engagement AEBPR - - —FEHTLIEFTNED LT
exercises and updated the materiality assessment in 2022 B WEEHRSFTEM T EH MR EKEHEN
to determine the importance of topics and prioritise the ZEEREWABEMBETEBLERFE-
corresponding topics.

Cosmos Machinery — Materiality Matrix

REHW - BB

=
& 1"
=
VE 10
>
8
. = 18
@ =
k=] T 12
S 8 14
wa 15
ox
)
v
c i
£ 21
[} — 7 ?
13 =
£ 1=
Y 17 8 16 :
w 1
> 20 13 9
5 19" 2
a 6
3
s
Low Priority 1&/& 5t 4% Bl High Priority =18 545!

Importance to Cosmos Machinery

HAREMHNERME
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRIE-HERERERS (B

The Group reviews the material topics regularly and a stakeholder
survey has been conducted to seek stakeholders’ feedback on the
level of materiality of the topics. The materiality assessment was
updated in 2022 and a materiality matrix was developed from the
results of stakeholder questionnaires. Material topics related to
the Group’s businesses and daily operations have been prioritised.
Their materiality to stakeholders and the Group is shown below:

FEBEHBNEERE TEETRHNE
BERE RERFNEHIREEENREE
NER - RZE__F RMEMTEEN
FEREFNEBEHREERBENEE
MERE THINRAAEREXBRABEE
HASEEZENELARF LEZEHF
PEREFEEBNEZEIHNT

Level of Impact within Impact outside
Materiality the Group the Group
Aspect #HE EEMEE HAEBANTE HAEBRINE
Environmental IR
1. Air pollutants emission BE RBE DA
2. Greenhouse gas emission mEREHIN
3. Hazardous waste BEEY pie
4. Non-hazardous waste FFEEEY
5. Energy consumption BEJRUHFE m bAe bAe
6.  Water consumption FEIK
7. Packaging consumption BEEFEM
8. Other impacts on environment HIBE Hthe 2
9.  Climate change RIZEAME
Social e
10.  Employment 44 mn * *
11.  Occupational health and safety BERBEREZSE m * PAd
12.  Vocational training B 2E 3 m * *®
13.  Child labour and forced labour BT RaEIET
Operating practices EEEA
14.  Supply chain management TR SR m pAS *
15.  Product safety EmZ: PAe
16.  Customer satisfaction ERmEE
17. Intellectual property N EE
18. Quality of products EmEE mn PAe PAY
19. Data protection and privacy BERHMREM AR
20. Anti-corruption practices and REFBORERRZR
whistleblowing procedures
Community HE
21.  Community investment HeiRE w®
Low & Il High &
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ENVIRONMENT

The Group is committed to protecting environment proactively
and complying with relevant environmental laws, rules and
regulations in Hong Kong and Mainland China in which it
operates its businesses. We have implemented proper measures
to reduce wastes and GHG emissions in our plants in Mainland
China and office in Hong Kong so as to mitigate wastes, and
use energy and resources wisely. Employees have been nurtured
and encouraged to have energy conservation and environmental
protection awareness.

EMISSIONS

We are consistently and strictly monitor and control the
wastes, GHG emissions and sewage discharges generated from
production process and ensure all wastes disposal, GHG emissions
and sewage discharges are within the applicable environmental
laws, ordinances and rules and regulations as formulated by
the local government in which our businesses operate. These
laws, ordinances and regulations include but not limited to
the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, Environmental
Protection Tax Law of the PRC, Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the PRC, Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter
354 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Product Eco-responsibility
Ordinance (Chapter 603 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Environmental Quality Standards for Surface Waters, Wastewater
Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal Sewers, Measures
for the Administration of Permit for Operations Involving
Hazardous Waste and Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. These environmental
laws will have impact on the Group’s operation since if we do
not dispose all wastages, discharge sewage and emit waste gases
properly, we might have to bear heavy environmental protection
tax and so increase the cost of disposal of wastages.

RIE-HERERHRS (B

IRIE

REBAEIHMRERE  URETES
R B At (BN ELAS & 2 F5 P12 ) BYARREIR
RER N RURRH - HAEERMEE K
EERMAZTHRKEBERRLUR LD BN AR
SUBE BRI U TR L BE W A 5 BA 8 R BE R AT
BER UREBENXEEESEABHENIRR

HER A

R —BEERREEEEBRRETEENEY
B E RS B R 5 KRR > AR FE AR P B g
YERE R E RIS KR E R
IS ERFAEMBERRRFRER RHIX
FAFANF RG> BFEE R (P EIRE R
R N (PERBFRERE) - (PEIARS
RBaE) ~ (REASRFAZE) - (BEYIER
BIRG) (EBEAIE354E) (ERRRFRE
EEAD) (BHEEAFIFE603E) ~ (MFRAKIRIER
mERE) S O5KPFAWE T KEKER
Z) (CREMEEFAEEEIE) k(R
B B S B4 5 RIRIEBIAER) - BEHMITZ
EREFMABEYRIFBISKMER FIER
AR ERVIRIE R EE TR 1L AN BR & BE ) BY AY
T RFRFEREREAEBNEELSNFE
%,
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRIE-HERERERS (B

Climate Change, and GHG and Other Pollutants Emissions

In the face of frequent extreme weather around the world,
governments around the world have set targets to reduce the
environmental impact of climate change. Climate change affects
our business operations significantly. An increase in temperature
may lead to higher electricity consumption for cooling and
extreme weather such as storms and floods may result in financial
loss and cause physical damage to infrastructure of our plants.

In August 2022, as a scorching heat wave swept across the
cities in China, such as Anhui, Zhejiang, Jiangsu, Sichuan, etc.,
the power shortages existed. The power companies issued the
“Proposal to End-Users in the City for Conservation of Electricity”
(Be2hmENRRBHNAE

non-production and non-essential power consumption through

2185 £ )) imposing reduction of

peak shifting, so as to relieve the pressure on power supply
during peak hours. Jiangsu Machinery was affected and adopted
staggered working hours for a few days. Other employees work
in office made use of natural light in the daytime and elevators,
air conditioners, water heaters and other non-essential electrical
appliances were also suspended operations. In view of this,
Jiangsu Machinery invested in installing a solar photovoltaic
system on the roof of the plant to generate approximately
1,600,000 kWh of electricity per year for own use in December

2022, and it was completed in mid-January 2023.

In 2022, Donghua Machinery renovated its no. 2 workshop,
built a processing center for parts and plate welding, and
purchased 16 energy-efficient inverter electric fans to enhance
product quality and reduce energy consumption, so as to achieve
energy saving and emission reduction. In addition, Dekuma
has also renovated its staff dormitory. For details, please refer
in the section of

to the heading of “Our People and Safety”

“Employment” of the Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Jiangsu Machinery installed energy monitoring and control system
and activated charcoal filter programmable logic controller
monitoring system at waste gas treatment facilities for monitoring
the operation of those facilities and replacing activated charcoal
in time, and ensure those facilities at a high efficiency and GHG
and air and other pollutants’ emissions are in compliance with
the standard requirements as set out by the PRC environmental
regulatory authority. In 2022, Jiangsu Machinery has installed an
online monitoring system for stationary pollution source, so as to
ensure the discharge of volatile organic compounds (“"VOC(s)")
generated from the production process under standards. It also
installed a waste gas collection and treatment equipment in
the machine processing workshop, upon collection of waste
gases volatile at high temperature from every equipment using
cutting fluid, the waste gas shall be released after adsorption
in fume separators and activated charcoal to greatly reduce the
generation of waste gases, dust and air pollutants. Moreover,
Jiangsu Machinery engaged a qualified inspection organization
to draft a “one enterprise, one policy” integrated control plan
to conduct inspection on waste gas treatment facilities, and the
said plan has been checked and passed by the PRC environmental
regulation authority accordingly.

Both Donghua Machinery and Jiangsu Machinery use waterborne
paint for replacement of solvent borne paint to reduce the release
of VOCs as well.
emissions are set out under the headings of “Air Emissions” and

Details of the air emissions data and GHG

"GHG Emissions”, separately.

Sewage Discharge Management

The Group rigorously complies with the standards under
the Environmental Quality Standard for Surface Water and
Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal
Sewers of the PRC to discharge sewage to sewer. To reduce
water consumption, a water recycling system was set up in the
industrial paint booth at both Donghua Machinery and Jiangsu
Machinery. During the spray painting process, we used water for
paint stains removal to keep the tanks and pumps of the paint
booths clean. Water is filtered from the paint stains and recycled
several times before being replaced.

RIE-HERERHRS (B
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRIE-HERERERS (B

In 2022, Jiangsu Machinery has installed a sewage treatment
equipment at the water recycling system to remove foaming
substances during sewage treatment for reduction of sewage
generation.

We engaged qualified disposal enterprises to dispose of industrial
sewage properly and regular engages local organization which
provides environmental certifications to detect the pH value,
chemical oxygen demand (COD), ammonia nitrogen, total
phosphorus, total nitrogen, etc. of industrial sewage in the sewer
to ensure all discharges are in compliance with the standard
requirements as set out by the PRC environmental regulatory
authority. Water saving reminders were placed in our plants’
kitchens and lavatories for our employees.

Waste Management

We have formulated a waste treatment procedure to collect, store
and dispose of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes generated
in production lines. We reported information on the generation,
storage, transfer, utilization and disposal of hazardous wastes to
the hazardous wastes monitoring and control system established
by the PRC environmental regulatory authority timely and
engaged qualified disposal enterprises, in accordance with the
Measures for the Management of Transfer of Hazardous Waste
(EEYEBEEPE)) and Law of the PRC on Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, to dispose
of hazardous wastes properly. Most of the non-hazardous wastes,
including kitchen wastes, were handled by recycling enterprises
for recycling and reusing. Further details in respect of the disposal
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are illustrated in the
heading of "“Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes” in the
Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Air Emissions

The air emissions data @ of Hong Kong Headquarters, IMM
Business and Extrusion Machine Business for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

RIE-HERERHRS (B

FBE R
BE_Z__ER-_E_—FE+"-_/F=+—

HIEFE BB ETBHREBRFELHE
EHEERBEREIEWT

Unit: kg
Bl Tz
Sulphur oxides (SOx) maEity (Z|1Em)
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) Ea= (k]
Respiratory suspended particles (RSP) R3S
Total air pollutants ERSRMEE
Total air pollutants intensity ERSRYBERE
(kg/HK$ million sales) (Fr EEEETHELE)

(1) The air emissions data are generated from petrol and diesel
fuel combustion in vehicles and forklift, and the emission
factors are based on the EPD Vehicle Emission Calculation
model and the United States Environmental Protection
Agency's Vehicle Emission Modeling Software.

(2) In the second half of 2022, Dekuma increased use of
vehicles to visit a number of customers for strengthening
communication with customers and striving sales growth,
resulting in an increase in air emissions in 2022 as compared
to last year.

N

(1

2022 2021
0.64 0.77
200.78 198.50
16.20 16.23
217.62 215.50
0.27 0.20

BE R B BUR Ty R B A X EHFE S OH
RACHFIES  ZEHB R ERIR
REABHNGERE R EHIRIERE
E fYVehicle Emission Modeling Software
CREBEHIURBLE ) 5t 8 o

N ZEZZFETEERNENBAKE
PREFZEEL MBRATENBE
RERHEERE BT "FHE
R EE RSB o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE-(E8RELARS ()

GHG Emissions

The GHG emissions (" of Hong Kong Headquarters, IMM Business

and Extrusion Machine Business for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Unit: tonnes COz-e
By W _gltkEE

Scope 1 Direct GHG emissions®?

=

BEREHM

BHE

TR CERIEC—F+ZR=1+—

BIEFE BERAGM ETBREFRFEDHE
EHREREHREWT !

#E—- EREEREHNE?

Scope 2 Energy indirect GHG emissions®
Scope 3 Other indirect GHG emissions®
Total GHG emissions (Scopes 1+2+3)

Total GHG emissions intensity
(tonnes COz-e/HK$ million sales)

#£E " sEREZREREHNES
HE= HtEEREREHREY
BEREHNEE EE—+Z+2)
RERBHNEERE W _abH
E8 BHEETHELR

2022 2021
223.88 236.617
4,644.93 4,800.457
84.50 85.04 7

4,953.31 5,122.09

6.05 4.71

(1

GHG emissions were calculated based on Guidelines to
Account for and Report on GHG Emissions and Removals for
Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes)
in Hong Kong (2010 Edition) published by the EPD and
EMSD, unless otherwise stated.

Scope 1 emissions comprise vehicle fleet that runs on petrol
and diesel as well as our forklift that runs on diesel, natural
gas and HFC and PFC emissions from the use of refrigerants.
GHG emission factors were also calculated with reference
to emission factors stated in the 2006 IPCC Guidelines for
National GHG Inventories and Fifth Synthesis Report (2014)
published by IPCC.

Scope 2 emissions are generated from the electricity
consumption. Emissions were calculated with reference to
emission factors stated in 2022 Sustainability Report of CLP
Holdings Limited, and the Emission Factors of the Regional
Power Grid Baseline of the PRC of 2019 and Corporate
GHG Emission Accounting Methods and Report Guidelines
— Power Generation Facilities issued on 29 March 2021,
published by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
PRC.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Scope 3 emissions are generated by paper consumption,
water consumption and business travel by air. Emissions
were calculated with reference to emission factors stated
in 2020/21 Annual Report of Hong Kong Water Supplies
Department, 2022 Sustainability Report of CLP Holdings
Limited, the Emission Factors of the Regional Power Grid
Baseline of the PRC of 2019 and Corporate GHG Emission
Accounting Methods and Report Guidelines — Power
Generation Facilities issued on 29 March 2021, published
by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC, and
ICAO.

Emissions from our fleet only include employee
transportation service as we do not have our own fleet to
transport/deliver our products to customers of IMM Business
and Extrusion Machine Business.

GHG emissions from purchased electricity were calculated
with reference to national grid average emission factors
from Corporate GHG Emission Accounting Methods and
Report Guidelines — Power Generation Facilities published by
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC on 29
March 2021.

The consumption of natural gas, electricity and water of
Jiangsu Machinery in 2021 has been restated, therefore
the emissions of Scope 1 and Scope 3 in 2021 have been
restated accordingly.

Total GHG emissions in 2022 reduced as compared to last
year. However, since the production volume of both IMM
Business and Extrusion Machine Business in 2022 dropped as
compared to last year, total GHG Emissions intensity in 2022
hence increased.

4
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE-HHERERHRS (&

Measures have been taken to Mitigate Emissions, Energy
Use and Water Efficiency Initiatives, and Results Achieved
We have implemented a number of energy saving measures,
such as using energy efficient equipment and reducing electricity,
water and paper consumption in offices and plants, to achieve
energy saving and emission reduction. We have taken the
following actions for the efficient use of resources in the
production lines:

(1) Using waterborne paint for replacement of waterborne paint
to reduce production of activated charcoal and release of
VOCs in the production lines of IMM Business;

(2) Replacing high volume low pressure (“HVLP”) spray gun to
improve the paint transfer efficiency;

(3) Installing VOC monitoring and treatment facilities at our
plants;

(4) Using new Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP”) system to
achieve paperless office;

(5) Using solar photovoltaic system to reduce the carbon
emission;

(6) Delivering products with minimal packaging; and

(7) Switching from diesel forklifts to electric forklifts gradually.

The Group has also implemented energy saving measures in
offices as stated under the heading of “The Environment and
Natural Resources” in the Report. With our concerted efforts in
2022, the total water consumption of Hong Kong Headquarters
decreased by 7.73% compared to 2021. We actively implement
energy-saving and use energy efficient equipment, and aim to
reduce 2% of our energy intensity by 2024, compared with 2019
baseline.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

B EREUR D BE K ~ BETR 16 AR B AR 7k 8wk Y 38
It 0 EX 1S BY B R

~HBERMERE RAEEARLAERTIRE
H % IRENAEFE I - B W1 (s FB BN BE AR - 2
WAEMTRE D KFRRAHFE - K
MEEER ERERUTTBHURRMERE
P

(1) FREBHEFNEER D ERKMERR
AR MR BURCD E A M B AN
BUBR MR RIEEY

2 BEHsEEREER B @®RLR

() MEBEZEEHEARICEYER KRR
BRI

(4) ERMEFEREIZRM BEREME
i /NE

(5) BERICIREBAERR M LUR BRI 5

(6) ARVHBERIMEM; K

\|

(7) BYEHMTEHRBUBMASARE -

NEBTERANEEMEBER > RIS
HINARENIRIERRAERIZER-
BN _FEB0HD SBEIBR
BKERZIZEI—FTME7.73% BMABEER
EEAEE R EREERE THEET
T UFERIRREREERLD2% UZE—N
FHIRIELER) ©



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, Hong Kong
Headquarters did not produce any hazardous wastes, and the
hazardous wastes generated by IMM Business and Extrusion
Machine Business are as follows:

IMM Business and Extrusion Machine Business

RIE-HEREARS (B

BEERIEEEEY

BE_ S E/h_E_—F+"HB=+—
HEEE SBRFUEESEENESE
Mo MABHERRIBRNREREENEE
BEYIENT -

FEHEBRELEER

Unit: tonne
B 2022 2021
Solid wastes EREREY)

Wasted oil containers and oil paint B 2 A K H A 10.61@ 10.76 @
containers

Others (e.g. waste filter, activated Hith (MEE@IEAR B MR 4.05 7.34
charcoal, waste paint residue and BEmR A R EER )
waste rag)

Total solid wastes EfEEYEE 14.66 18.10

Total solid wastes intensity EfEENRERE 0.02 0.02
(tonne/HK$ million sales) (M, 55 & AT &)

Liquid wastes TRESEEY)

Waste oil [B% M 14.68 5.90
Waste oil paint BE MR 0.52 =
Waste cutting fluid BEI B R 8.00® -

Industrial sewage TEEK 380.00 @ 305.49

Total liquid wastes RESEEY R E 403.20 311.39
Total liquid wastes intensity REENRERE 0.49 0.29
(tonne/HK$ million sales) (i EHEETHELE)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRIE-HERERERS (B

(1) The captioned wastes are defined as hazardous wastes
in accordance with the National Catalogue of Hazardous
Wastes formulated by the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. All
the hazardous wastes generated were disposed of properly
by those qualified disposal contractors to mitigate the
impact on the environment.

(2) In 2022, the quantity of wasted oil containers and oil paint
containers were calculated in aggregate.

(3) Donghua Machinery did not dispose the waste cutting fluid
in 2021 and disposed of all the waste cutting fluid to a
qualified disposal enterprise in 2022. Therefore, there was
no waste cutting fluid in 2021.

(4) Due to the scorching heat wave during 2022 and equipment
aging, the number of cleanings of the spray booth was
increased, resulting in an increase in the quantity of

industrial sewage.
The non-hazardous wastes generated by Hong Kong
Headquarters, IMM Business and Extrusion Machine Business for

the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Hong Kong Headquarters

Unit: kg
&y Fz

[E] e s 4%

Paper wastes for recycling

Paper wastes for recycling included shredded paper and old
newspapers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

IMM Business and Extrusion Machine Business

Unit: tonne

==Y

Paper wastes BEAR

Plastics BB

Metallic wastes TBEEY

Others wastes HMEEM

Kitchen wastes BT &R

Total non-hazardous wastes FEEENEE
Total non-hazardous wastes intensity FEEEYNAERE

(1

(tonne/HK$ million sales)

The captioned non-hazardous wastes are defined as non-
hazardous wastes in accordance with the National Catalogue
of Hazardous Wastes formulated by the Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste.

Since the production volume in 2022 was decreased
compared with last year, all the non-hazardous wastes
were reduced as compared to last year. Most of the non-
hazardous wastes generated were properly disposed of by
those qualified contractors to mitigate the impact on the
environment.

W GEEETHELR)

3

(1

RIE-HEREARS (B

HEBERBELEFER

2022 2021

14.11 24.17

2.54 4.58

683.77 833.01

213.74 363.82

22.60 22.50

936.76 1,248.08

1.14 1.15

FHRRERIFAESEMHRE(TEE
RS RIRE AR HIEN(ERE
REYRER) EE -

MR -E-_"FEELEFETEH At
FREFEEREMBEREFAEMMD -
RBOBIFESEDEXHGEREM
BEZERE LUV HIRIENTEE-
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RIE-HHERERHRS (&

Disposal and Reduction Initiatives of Hazardous and Non-
hazardous Wastes, and Results Achieved

The Group has entered into contracts with qualified disposal
enterprises in respect of the disposal of the waste oil, industrial
sewage, waste paint residue, waste oil containers, waste paint
containers and activated charcoal. These hazardous wastes
generated in production lines of the IMM Business and Extrusion
Machine Business were reported through the hazardous wastes
monitoring system established by the PRC environmental
regulatory authority and disposed of properly by those qualified
disposal enterprises in accordance to the Standard for Pollution
Control on Hazardous Waste Storage regulated in the PRC. The
Group also has entered into contracts with recycling enterprises
in respect of the handling of the non-hazardous wastes, such
as scrapped iron, scrapped cast iron, metal scrap, scrapped
iron and steel, scrapped aluminum sheets, wasted wires, waste
plastics and waste wood for recycling or reusing. Hong Kong
Headquarters have arranged the disposal of paper waste to
recycling enterprises for recycling or reusing, and also donated
some computer equipment to the Caritas Computer Workshop,
details of which are set out under the heading of “Caring for
the Environment” in the Report. We set a target to reduce office
paper consumption by 5% by 2024, as compared to the 2019
baseline.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has implemented various measures to reduce the use
of papers, water and electricity consumption in our plants and
office and has been encouraging employees to have practices for
energy and resources conservation. Details of the green measures
are set out under the heading of “The Environment and Natural
Resources” in the Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Direct and Indirect Energy Consumption

The direct and indirect energy consumption” of Hong Kong
Headquarters, IMM Business and Extrusion Machine Business for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

Unit: GJ

B/ FHEH

Direct energy consumption BEREREE
FUBRRL— B X
SOmRKL— B X
SRR — X B

Petrol fuel — vehicle fleet
Diesel fuel — vehicle fleet
Diesel fuel - forklift®

Natural gas AR
Indirect energy consumption BEAERFES
Electricity B9

fERMBFEE

ERBEERE

Total energy consumption

Total energy consumption intensity
(GJ/HK$ million sales)

(1) Energy consumption was measured based on the data
of consumption of electricity, fuels and gas and energy
conversion factors had taken reference from Energy Statistics
Manual issued by the International Energy Agency.

(2) The office of Hong Kong Headquarters is co-used with
a wholly-owned subsidiary which engages in industrial
consumables trading business. We consider sub-meter for
individual office is not feasible. Hence, the data of electricity
consumption of Hong Kong Headquarters included that
business.

(3) The consumption of natural gas and electricity of Jiangsu
Machinery in 2021 has been restated, the total energy
consumption in 2021 has been restated accordingly.

(4) In order to use water-based paint, IMM Business installed a
set of drying equipment that consumes natural gas. Hence,
the natural gas consumption in 2022 was increased as
compared to last year.

RIE-HERERHRS (B

B K EEERES

BE_T - _&#R-F-—H#+"A=+—
HIEFE BB ETBHREBRFELHE
EHNERNBEEREEIIRUOT

2022 2021
660.42 732.11
66.66 72.90
799.30 1,031.76
1,415.88 1,054.66
27,637.43 28,555.710
30,579.70 31,447.14
37.33 28.92

(FHAER BHEETHER)

(1) BERFEENKREEND ME KREER
FEAERERBRAMESZEREE
RE M (BERA ST T )

2) EBRHA-—BREIFXHEMZES
EFBENEEMBLRRHEAMAE - K
507 7 BRI A = 3 830 R BT 47 0 [EIE
EBBENESENREECETZE
7o

(3) IEHEMR _ZE - —FNRATEEN
HEEEMIM LR T - —F8
FERBFEECEY -

(4) BTERKER TEMEFRRT —
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE-(E8RELARS ()

Water Consumption

The water consumption of Hong Kong Headquarters, IMM

Business and Extrusion Machine Business for the years ended 31

December 2022 and 2021 is set out as follows:

Unit: m?
17 AN

Total water consumption

Total water consumption intensity
(m*/HK$ million sales)

(1

BEEKE

BEKERE

The office of Hong Kong Headquarters is co-used with
a wholly-owned subsidiary which engages in Industrial
Consumables Trading Business. We consider sub-meter for
individual office is not feasible. Hence, the data of water
consumption of Hong Kong Headquarters included that
business. Also, only the data regarding drinking water was
collected given that the property management office is
responsible for water supply and discharge of in that office.

The data of water consumption is quoted by the water
consumed as stated in the bills received.

The water consumption of the Hong Kong Headquarters,
Jiangsu Machinery and Dekuma in 2022 was similar to
last year. However, a large amount of water was used for
cleaning floor and laying new floors during the renovation
of no. 2 workshop of Donghua Machinery, the water
consumption of Donghua Machinery in 2022 was more than
last year.

The water consumption of Jiangsu Machinery in 2021 has
been restated.
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(LR GEHEETHELE)

(1

(2)

BARME-—BREIEEERIES
EBN2ENBRARHAMAE - HM
507 A BRI A = 53 830 A FT 1T 0 EIE
BEERBHEKEBEREEETZER-
FH R EEERESZMAEN
HoKABEK > RILREERERBKZH
e

5K 2 BB T 1 5 W) 40 O B 5117
KB

ERBBE T IHEMEENERZS
T FWNFEKENREFEE  HERER
1T B0 T SR R B2 BRF 0 O %k T R S
MR IGFE B ARE K AL REHR R
TR CFNEKELEFS-

TEHEHN S - —ENEKEENT
it o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RIE-HHERERRS (@

Packaging Materials for Finished Products Sk P A e M

Our finished products would be packed by stretch films properly FEFfIMNEE RERAFEZE 6K LIS
so as to avoid any damage during transportation. The data of HTEHBRETEEMERE - HE_T_—
packaging materials for respective IMM Business and Extrusion K_ZE_—F+_HB=+—HILFE T8
Machine Business for the years ended 31 December 2022 and & F5H B4 25509 B E M U D B

2021 are as follows:

IMM Business

Unit: tonne
B
Stretch films

Total stretch films intensity
(tonne/HK$ million sales)

REE
B
2022 2021
L R fE 7.58 15.23
NEEEHERE 0.01 0.02

(W GEEETHELE)

Since the production volume of IMM Business in 2022 dropped HRTHBMEEFZN _ S - _FHNESLESE
as compared to last year, the usage of stretch films decreased TRk hAIfHEAERTREL o

accordingly.

Extrusion Machine Business L E

Unit: tonne

B I 0F 2022 2021

Stretch films $ii R R 3.00 2.00

Total stretch films intensity HRREHERE 0.02 0.01
(tonne/HK$ million sales) (W5, S EEETHER

Metallic pallets TEITER 30.00 25.00

Wooden box and wooden pallets RFEMAITELE 8.00 10.00

Total wooden box and metallic and wooden A UKkE&BNALBEEHETE 0.20 0.16
pallets intensity (tonne/HK$ million sales) (0, G5 EETHEEE)

Notwithstanding the sales amount of Extrusion Machine Business RBEEEBERN S - _ENHERELE
in 2022 was decreased as compared to last year, the production & &k » g B H i (1% B8 0% 57 AR BY # R S
volume of both machineries (rubber injection molding machines EE{#&) MESHLL X E BT EFF > WA E
and hydraulic presses) were increased as compared to last K&EBFEBEINBESRMIEM -

year, the usage of stretch films and metallic pallets increased

accordingly.
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RIE-HHERES

wE (8

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES RIERKXARER

We aware that our business would have an impact on the MBI KMANEFSTHIRIZENBERAER
environmental and natural resources. Hence, we must implement  #Z&g2 2 FIERMM BT IMAPBLAEE
various measures in our plants and offices to reduce carbon  HEZIEHE M > LUB/ B B BF K R (B HHRIE HY
footprint and environmental impact. Continuing to the idea FZ HMIFETWLAETHEERRELS K
of “go green” in our offices, we encourage all employees to FISEIZEEE SR TFIRRIGH :
implement the following green measures:

Electricity 3
==
B

Water .
X

Waste .
EE4)

Office equipment e
MAERME

Air-conditioning e
24

Others 3
Hih

Energy saving labels are placed on all electrical appliances and light switches to remind employees to
conserve energy.

TEFRBEE BIEHEAEN LHAVERERE REREBHNER-

To reduce electricity consumption, all computers are set to auto energy-saving mode.
REMRERBBERERN BINHAE -

Employees are reminded to switch off all lighting, air conditioning and electrical appliances before leaving
the workplace.

R E SRR TIFE AR A BIE SRk ER -

Lighting would be switched off during non-business hours, unless for safety and security purposes.
MRAZERELIER TAEIEHARE AR =R

Water saving labels are in place to remind employees not to leave the tap running in the pantry.

RN RAKEE  REREFEZEIKENKEBERIBMAE -

Strengthen the daily maintenance of water supply equipment. Employees should inform Human Resources
and Administration Department for arranging repairing work promptly once water supply equipment is
damaged.

et kLENEBEE - BE—BEREKRFEBIR BERBIANERRITHEZHEETIZ

Recycling bins are placed at the office to encourage employees to separate recyclables, such as paper, plastic
and metal.

PR E R EIGE S EE 8 D ERI MAR BB REE -

Used envelopes and folders and eco-friendly reusable bags are collected in recycling bins for reuse.
RECWBEWEEEHNMXGRRIRERRMHER

Employees are encouraged to purchase environment-friendly stationery and office equipment as a priority.
Stop purchasing those with potential adverse environmental impact.
SEEEEBARBRERNARMAZTRE FTERHEABTRBEBEENCARPRERE

Affix “Save Energy” stickers near the main switches as a reminder to our employees.
HFEESRARENMIEM FTHNERINERE URREFRIET

Individual air-conditioner can be adjusted manually to suitable temperature, and recommended to adjust the
temperature to 24.5°C or above to save energy.

BUEREFHRANESENEBE > WEZRREREE24.5°Ca L L LIEIE R

The last-man-out should switch off the air-conditioning of all areas of the office. Individual office users
should ensure that the air-conditioner is turned off before leaving.
RERAMAENEERMERAZEMERENER - BUMAETEAERTREMAANBRAREFDRE

To reduce paper consumption, employees are encouraged to adjust document margins and font size before
printing, use double-sided copying, and reduce colour printing.
SEEETHNABERX G ERMFENNRRBERZMNLUR VRS > URBDF BT

The Group’s annual and interim reports are printed with environment-friendly (FSC-certified) paper.
KARR GMEEZE G700 BRiNNAERFRRFARS -

Employees should reuse stationeries, e.g. paper clips, folders, binders and envelopes.

EEGERAXEA  FIMNMATR Xk EERREH -

Use reusable utensils and refuse to use disposable cups, plates, forks and other utensils.

ERPERMSRE TERERNERF BF X FHNHEMEBE

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Through implementing the aforesaid measures, we believe that
we can manage the negative impact on the environment and use
resources effectively and efficiently to the greatest extent. We
also continue to improve our environmental performance in our
production lines by the installation of more environmental friendly
machines.

EMPLOYMENT

Our People and Safety

Guided by our corporate philosophy of “being people-oriented
and pragmatic, and continuous learning”, the Group maintains a
highly-efficient workforce with caring interpersonal relationships.
Provision of safe and pleasant working environment to our staff
and attracting talents are integral in supporting our sustainable
development. As a responsible manufacturer, we actively
manage our supply chain to ensure that our suppliers adhere
strictly to the Group's sustainable business practices and make
every effort to maintain product quality. Apart from minimizing
environmental impacts, discharging social responsibility is also
one of our commitments. In 2022, the Company continued to
be awarded the 15 Years Plus Caring Company Logo under the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service's Caring Company Scheme,
in recognition of our having demonstrated good corporate
citizenship, and “Happy Company” by Promoting Happiness Index
Foundation.

The Group continues to organize the “Best Staff Award in 2022”
to recognise and commend employees who have excellent
performance with a positive and enthusiastic working attitude
and are loyal and dedicated to their work, as well as to promote
employee initiative and stimulate a working atmosphere that
strives for improvement, so as to enhance the belongingness to
the company.

We aim to create an environment where our employees will be
healthier, happier and more productive. Dekuma renovated the
staff dormitory in 2022, replacing bed frames and mattresses,
tables and chairs, wardrobes, lighting, etc. for providing
employees a clean, comfortable and safe place to rest.

RIE-HERERHRS (B

WBBERL LB HABETUERARE
ELEFRRENEETEE MUksWmit
ERER - HMTTEETEERLLESE
ZIRFEEM RO LS HANIRRE -

& 1&

BANEERZE
FEBRBRTUARES BEER FEZ
BINWEXEESR AAT-ZEEESES
SHEK BEREFEZEEMEBIERKRR &
MHBAOBEERHZE2RERHTIFRE
WEEZRMANT » HAEBEN A FEERE
BER-FREEXNRER 2EERE
EEEMOHERE BREBHBREETEX
EENDFBERES TR B NMERFE
mEE RAEROHRENEERF 4
BBETHEEE - RIEZ_F > ARF
BMEERETBLERFTH S BRERMAR G
BI15FPIusRSS UREHRMEBERR Y
EERARBE RATERESBIRAIRE
BHREERTFIRAOERIZRER-

FAEBREBEN _Z__FEEBFET]
BRURGEEFILFERREESH -BER
BB ZAGAY TAFREE ~ B R M R ARV
B UKESEENTHMMEE IREY
WIERE UIRSHARNEBR -

HZPAOAIE—EEBREEERE Rt
IFERRESVENIRE B THTES
BE - TERZENKREM T BRIERZ
T THEPMTBIBES BT IRRRIK
B 2fa B REAAESFRE.
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BRIE-HERERERS (B

Celebrating Festive Seasons with Our Employees

While most of our activities were suspended considering the
health concern during pandemic, we continue to celebrate festive
seasons such as Christmas, Mother's Day and Father’s Day with
our employees. We presented gifts to employees as a token of
appreciation for their hard work over the year.

Management Systems for the Employees of the Group

The Group has prepared human resources policies, which are
stipulated in employees’ handbooks, notices, and codes of
conduct, in its business units. The said policies cover the area
of relevant rules and regulations in respect of compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, and other benefits and welfare. Regulations and rules
set out in those publications are in line with the applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC, including the anti-
discrimination ordinances (e.g. Sex Discrimination Ordinance
(Chapter 480 of the Laws of Hong Kong)), Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509
of the Laws of Hong Kong), Company Law of the PRC, Labour
Law of the PRC, Labour Contract Law of the PRC, etc.. During
the year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
those applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Compensation and Dismissal

We have formulated procedures in the employees’ handbooks to
deal with those violate any regulations set out by the Group. An
oral warning or written warning notice will be given or immediate
dismissal will be imposed to those employees according to the
level of severity of each case. The Company should consult
with Human Resources and Administration Department prior
to the proposed dismissal of any employee so as to ensure the
compliance with the legal requirements. We will pay sufficient
compensation to those employees subject to the aforesaid laws
and regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Working Hours and Rest Periods

The employees’ handbooks and employment contracts have
stated the working hours of employees. Employees who require
to work on irregular hours or public holidays are offered
overtime pay and additional compensation as defined in their
job description. The Group has complied with the relevant
employment laws and regulations in respect of working hours
and rest periods in Hong Kong and Mainland China, respectively.

Remuneration Policy

The emoluments of the directors of the Company (”Directors”)
are determined by the Board based on the recommendation of
the remuneration committee of the Company with reference
to individual performance, qualifications and experience of
the Directors, the duties and responsibilities of the Directors
in the Company, the Group's performance and profitability,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing market
condition. The Group has formulated remuneration policy of
employees. The remuneration of employees is based on their
qualifications, competence and performance as well as market
trends. The overall remuneration packages, which include an
element of discretionary bonuses, are reviewed annually. In
addition to salary payments, other employee benefits including
medical insurance, in-patient hospitalization scheme and
a defined contribution provident fund stipulated by State
Regulators of the PRC, Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
stipulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other retirement
scheme or other similar defined contribution provident fund
have been provided as retirement benefits to employees in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. There are also other holiday
benefits provided to the employees in Mainland China subject
to the Labour Law of the PRC. The Group also offers employees
various leave entitlements, including annual leave, marriage leave,
maternity and paternity leave, bereavement leave, examination
leave, sick leave and injury leave.
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BRIE-HERERERS (B

Equal opportunity, Abuse and Harassment, and Recruitment
and Promotion

The Group fosters a diverse and inclusive working environment
and strictly prohibits any discrimination, harassment, victimisation
or vilification in terms of age, gender, marital status, pregnancy,
disability, family status or race, nationality or religion for
protection of human rights. Hence, procedures regarding
recruitment, promotion and retention of talents are implemented,
according to the equal opportunity principles under the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 487 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and Race Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter
602 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance (Chapter 527 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Law of the
PRC on the Protection of Rights and Interests of Women and Law
of the PRC on Protection of Disabled Persons.

Moreover, a nomination policy of the Company has been
adopted, which sets out the procedures for the selection,
appointment and re-appointment of Directors containing the
selection criteria, including but not limited to considering the
potential contributions a candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and
gender diversity.

Personal Data Privacy

The Group respects personal data privacy and is committed to
implement and comply with the data protection principles, all
relevant provisions of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong), and codes of practice
and guidelines issued by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner
for Personal Data, Hong Kong for collection of employees’
personal data for the purpose of provision of welfare and
compensation, salary payments, performance assessment,
promotion, etc..
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Diversity and Gender Mainstreaming

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy to attract and
retain talented people as Board members, mainly increasing
diversity at the Board level, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and term of office, as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of the Company's
objectives and its sustainable development. A summary regarding
the Board diversity policy and measurable objectives can refer
to the heading of “The Board” of the section of “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 52 to 60 of this annual report.

Total Workforce

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
work location of Hong Kong Headquarters, IMM Business and
Extrusion Machine Business for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 is as follows:

Unit: Number of persons

B A&

Total number of employees RERH

By gender tededilE Ibs)
Male 5
Female %

By employment type RERERE D
Full time 28
Part-time ey

By age group RERRAR B S
30 or below =+RIUT
31 to 50 =t+—REL TR
Over 50 E+mMUE

By work location BRIEMEE S
Hong Kong 58
Mainland China FRED Py i
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EERH
BE_S__HERET—HF+ZA=1+—
BLEFE BAE TBEREBRIFEHE
EBRER BREE  FHRAR R ITEH
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2022 2021
692 699
586 596
106 103
692 698

0 1
116 119
433 447
143 133

28 28
664 671
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BRIE-HERERERS (B

Employee Turnover Rate

The turnover rate of employee by gender, age group and work
location of Hong Kong Headquarters, IMM Business and Extrusion
Machine Business for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 is as follows:

Unit: %

B FHH

Total turnover of employee BEARE

By gender ZERE D
Male 5
Female £

By age group RERERN B 5D
30 or below =+EEUT
31 to 50 =t—REL TR
Over 50 Et+mMdE

By work location RIEMEE 5
Hong Kong B
Mainland China FRED Ay i

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Safe workplace and occupational health are priority issue and
we are committed to maintain a safe, healthy and productive
workplace for its employees. We provide orientation training and
ongoing safety trainings to our employees, in particular to those
work at workshops and production lines of the plants to raise
their awareness of occupational safety and help mitigate the risk
of accidents.

During the year, the Group introduced the vaccination leave to
employees at Hong Kong Headquarters, they were entitled for
one day leave after receiving the third dose of COVID-19 vaccine.
Since the pandemic situation remained volatile, we continued
to implement a number of anti-pandemic measures, such as
implementing work-from-home arrangement, enhancing cleaning
and disinfection of premises, providing hand sanitisers and
measuring body temperature for employees at the workplace to
minimize the risk of virus transmission.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Both IMM Business and Extrusion Machine Business have
formulated various production safety regulations, which provide
clear guidelines on handling personal work injuries and operating
equipment accidents in case of occurrence, handling dangerous
chemicals and operating machines in accordance with the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases, and Production Safety Law of the PRC.
A safety production committee comprising of safety officers has
been put in charge of monitoring and managing safety initiatives
and preventing work accidents to estimate and reduce the risk of
occupational diseases.

The Group continues to focus on providing production
safety training for employees to raise employees’ awareness
of occupational safety. They must take and/or wear full set
personal protective equipment provided by the Group when
handling dangerous chemicals or operating machines to protect
their health and safety. They should check if the machines
or equipment operate properly and safely before use. All the
machines and equipment have been inspected regularly to ensure
safety.

The Group has regulated that all new employees in Mainland
China must receive production safety trainings before taking
up their duties. Employees who have special job duties, such as
electricians, crane operators, welders, forklift operators, etc.,
must follow the operation safety rules. We also provide trainings
to Hong Kong and the PRC employees, aiming to deliver a
message of the importance of occupational health and safety in
offices. Apart from providing intensive trainings to employees, we
have also arranged complimentary annual physical body check for
all employees at manufacturing sites to ensure their health and
well-being.

In 2022, Donghua Machinery held an emergency drill for a
limited space operation in industrial paint booth. This drill
simulated a staff suffered shock and coma suddenly during
work. The participating personnel had to initiate emergence
procedures and perform cardiopulmonary resuscitation, etc.. This
drill could greatly improve the ability of employees to deal with
these emergencies, and prevent the occurrence of production
accidents. In addition, we have also held a number of trainings,
such as procurement and storage of dangerous goods, basic
assembly knowledge, forklift operation safety, lifting operation
safety, hydraulic and electrical knowledge, etc., to strengthen risk
awareness among employees.
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BRIE-HERERERS (B

Our employees’ safety and health remain as our first priority.
We have established and updated from time to time a number
of preventive measures to ensure health and well-being of our
employees, such as implementing work from home arrangement
occasionally, enhancing cleaning and disinfection of premises,
providing hand sanitisers, measuring body temperature for all
employees and visitors at the workplace, minimizing business
travel and attending virtual meetings instead of physical meetings
as far as practicable since the outbreak of COVID-19.

Number and Rate of Work-related Fatalities and Lost Days
due to Work Injury

Pursuant to Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group should take out a policy
of employees’ compensation insurance for employees to cover
its legal liabilities for work injuries in Hong Kong under both
the Ordinance and common law. All employees working in the
PRC are protected from work injury and work-related disease
under China’s social security system. If an employee has suffered
from work-related injury, disease or fatalities in his/her course of
employment, we must report in writing to the Labour Department
of Hong Kong or Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security
of the PRC within the period stipulated by the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurances of the PRC
and The State Council of the PRC.

HTEEBANESRIMRE

Number (rate) of work-related

fatalities (EE=)
Number of work injury incidents TEEHFH
Number of working days lost due to E T {5184 TEHH

work injury incidents

Reportable work injuries refer to work-related accidents of
employees resulting in incapacity for a period exceeding 3 days
in Hong Kong under the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
(Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the number of
days as defined under the Regulation on Work-Related Injury
Insurances in the PRC.
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Compensation for Work Injuries

The Group complies with the laws, rules and regulations in
relation to compensation for work injuries or occupational
diseases in Hong Kong and China, which include the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Compensation Standard for Work Injury ((T{582{EE
#£)), Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurances, Social
Insurance Law of the PRC and Regulations on Work-Related Injury
Insurances in Guangdong Province ((EER& THERERIEH)),
to pay compensation to employee who has suffered from work
injuries or work-related diseases.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group provides all Directors and employees with continuous
development training programmes/courses which are designed
to further enhance their technical skills, professional skills and
knowledge in production, operation and management. Moreover,
the Group has implemented a refined talent development plan,
which sets out training structures to provide internal and external
training programmes/courses to all levels of employees of the
Group, including managerial staff, general staff and frontline
production workers. These training programmes/courses include
orientation training, on-the-job training, safety education, on-site
training, simulation training, vocational training.

In 2022, the training hours completed by employees provided
by Jiangsu Machinery had increased significantly. It held
environmental protection trainings to enhance employees’
awareness on that aspect. Moreover, a new ERP system was
launched, Jiangsu Machinery provided courses to employees
to learn how to use the new system. By using the new system,
we can manage the operation process effectively and enhance
competitive advantage in the future.
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RE-(E8RELARS ()

Percentage of Employees Trained ZillEEE AL

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the percentage of employees N CE T TERZE I —F+ A =4+—
trained by gender and employee category of Hong Kong H > EHEMEIL LB EEFRETELKERR
Headquarters, IMM Business and Extrusion Machine Business isas 4RI REEHEFE SN ZIEE T DLW

follows: e
Unit: %
B BAl 2022 2021
Total percentage of employees who RillEELEELHE N 97.54% 96.42%
took part in training
By gender ZERE D
Male % 98.98% 96.14%
Female £o4 89.62% 98.06%
By employee category REBENE S
Senior level BHRAE 91.67% 51.85%
Middle level e N 87.32% 54.93%
General staff —RERES 98.99% 103.33%
Average Training Hours Completed per Employee BRESRAIBININFEYRH
During 2022, the total training hours completed by employees W _-_E - "&£ - BETHENIBRH A

were 29,160.20 hours (2021: 8,542.80 hours). As at 31 29,160.20/N\B (Z&E - —4 : 8,542.80/
December 2022 and 2021, the average training hours completed B) R _E-_"ER_-_ZE-_—F+_H
per employee by gender and employee category of Hong Kong Z=+—H > BHEARI0 - F B 275 KI5 %
Headquarters, IMM Business and Extrusion Machine Business are  *#(#5& MR R ESMHEFIZONELREE S

as follows: SN FERENT -
Unit: Hours
--F .53 2022 2021
Average training hours per employee SR EEFIIENREH 42.14 12.22
By gender ZERNE D
Male 2] 45.83 11.86
Female %z 21.72 14.31
By employee category REBENE 7
Senior level SHMAE 31.49 7.09
Middle level S ON=| 59.47 19.67
General staff —RERES 40.51 11.57
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

LABOUR STANDARDS

We have formulated a comprehensive set of human resources
policies, including but not limited to stipulating rules on
recruitment, and also formulated a strict recruitment policy to

prevent employment of child and forced labour.

Management Systems for Recruitment

We ensure that applicants and employees are treated equally in
respect of recruitment, assignment, development, evaluation and
reward. The Group has taken all practical measures to ensure that
applicant is lawfully employable subject to the relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and China and request new employee
truthfully fill in their personal information in the personal data
form, and provide identification documents and/or working visa
(if any) to Human Resources and Administration Department in a
fair and equitable manner and also under legitimate procedures.
The procedures include but not limited to verification of identity
to prevent the Group from employing illegal workers.

Prevention of Child Labour and Forced Labour

In accordance with the Regulations on Forbidding the
Employment of Child Labour of the PRC and the Law of the
PRC on the Protection of Minors, the Group prohibits to recruit
persons under the age of 16 and forced labour. During the year,
the Group was not aware of any breach of or non-compliance
with applicable laws and regulations in relation to child labour
and forced labour.
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BRIE-HERERERS (B

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group maintains good and long-term business relationship
with suppliers and conveys our concern on environmental issues
to them to guarantee better procurement and suit our production
requirement, as well as cooperating with us to fulfill our social
responsibilities. We aim to choose suitable suppliers with high
quality raw materials and good services, and we are committed
to deliver fine quality injection molding machines, and extrusion
lines, rubber injection molding machines and hydraulic press
to our customers. Both IMM Business and Extrusion Machine
Business have implemented a series of procedures on supplier
management, which manage the verification of suppliers and
purchased products. An evaluation procedure is in place for the
selection of new suppliers and regular rating on those existing
suppliers, to strictly monitor the quality of raw materials, such
as castings and steel, and to ensure the suppliers and supplies
quality fit our production requirement. We rate supplier’s
qualification based on a number of factors, including price,
guality, convenience in transportation, reputation, financial
condition, philosophy of environmental protection and social
responsibility, etc. to select suppliers. Besides, we mainly
procure locally or in nearby places rather than overseas so as to
reduce carbon emissions from transport and the risk of delay in
shipment.

Moreover, we constantly evaluate the performance of the existing
suppliers based on quality, on-time delivery, price, service,
etc. All approved suppliers are incorporated into our qualified
supplier list. If any unsatisfactory practices are identified, we
will communicate with those suppliers and encourage them to
improve their practices. Unqualified suppliers will be excluded
from our qualified supplier list to ensure the quality of products
and services provided by the suppliers up to our requirements and
standards.

Number of Suppliers by Geographical Region

The number of suppliers by geographical region for Hong Kong
Headquarters, IMM Business and Extrusion Machine Business for
the years of 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

Unit: Amount

B &5

Hong Kong i
Mainland China A g
Total e
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group pays utmost importance to the provision of products
with high quality and safety standard to its customers, aiming
“Welltec”
injection molding machines, and extrusion lines, rubber injection

to maintain our and “Dekuma” brands recognition in
molding machines and hydraulic press industries. We monitor the
quality of different specifications of injection molding machines
constantly to ensure that customers are pleased with our products
and obtain their long-term support and trust and thus raise the
profitability of the Group. To maintain the customers’ confidence
in our product quality, the Group provides after-sale services to its

customers.

In 2022, a renewal QMS Certificate of Registration was issued
to Dekuma by Vouching Technical Inspection Ltd., a commercial
services company specializing in third-party certification
business, providing quality management systems certification to
domestic and international clients, which will be valid until 28
November 2025. In 2021, the QMS Certificates of Registration
were issued to Donghua Machinery and Jiangsu Machinery by
Vouching Technical Inspection Ltd. and Beijing ZhongDaHuaYuan
Certification Center (a third-party certification body with an
independent legal status which is authorized by Certification
and Accreditation Administration of the PRC (CNCA) and
accredited by China National Accreditation Service for Conformity
Assessment (CNAS) and ANSI National Accreditation Board
(ANAB)), which will be valid until 16 December 2024 and 14 July
2024 respectively. These certificates are intended to build up or
enforce the confidence of customers towards product quality
control, in particular for the design, development and production
of injection molding machines, extrusion lines, rubber injection
molding machines and hydraulic presses.
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BRIE-HERERERS (B

For IMM Business, it has customers’ complaint procedures and
customer complaint form for customers to make complaints.
When customer complaints are received, customer service
department will first communicate with our customer and
arrange technical personnel to visit customer’s site for inspection.
Then, we will fine tune the products to suit the requirements
of customers (if necessary). Any corrective actions will then
be recorded and continued to follow up. All products must be
carefully tested and inspected by relevant departments before
delivery to customers. Unqualified or detective products will be
repaired or scrapped, and shall not be shipped to customers,
and relevant departments will make analysis and take corrective
actions. In addition, customers’ satisfaction surveys are conducted
every year to collect comments from customers about our quality
of products, efficiency on delivery and after-sale service. During
2022, IMM Business did not receive products and service related
complaint.

For Extrusion Machine Business, it has pre-product quality
control procedures and a compliant channel for customer to
make compliant. All products must be inspected and approved
by the relevant departments before shipment to customers.
If a complaint about quality of product is received, relevant
department will conduct an investigation. Follow up actions
and feedback on the status will be reported to the customer to
ensure that the complaints are effectively handled. During 2022,
Extrusion Machine Business received one products and service
related complaint.

In addition, in order to provide customers with perfect product
after-sales service, both IMM Business and Extrusion Machine
Business are provided with after-sales service including repair,
replacement and return within the warranty period of the
machine.

There are no products of the Group sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons for the year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

We recognise the importance of intellectual property rights
protection. Intellectual properties are our Company’'s critical
assets, so we put effort to safeguard their rights and interests.
We sign confidentiality agreements with our customers and
adhere to our stringent policies to protect customers’ information
from unauthorized access, usage and leakage and maintain their
data properly. When we develop a new product or technology,
we will register a patent from the local or relevant intellectual
property administration to protect our rights and interests.

There was no issue regarding material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have any significant impact on
the Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters during the year.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

Ethics and Integrity

We are committed to maintaining high ethical standards and
integrity in our business and operations. The Group strictly
regulates the behaviour of employees, and requires all employees
to obey national and local laws and regulations on preventing
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, including but
not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Anti-money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong, the anti-corruption laws of the
PRC, the Law of the PRC Against Unfair Competition and Interim
Regulations on Prohibiting Commercial Bribery.

We have formulated anti-corruption and bribery policy and
whistleblowing policy, which are applicable to the Directors,
senior management and employees at all levels of the Group, and
as appropriate, the third parties doing business with the Group,
including but not limited to shareholders, customers, suppliers,
etc. and have been published on the Company’s website. The
Group did not provide anti-corruption training to Directors and
employees during the year, but all new-joiners receive training
on anti-corruption on their orientation and must declare in
compliance with both policies.
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BRIE-HERERERS (B

Whistleblowing Mechanism

The Group has zero tolerance for corruption or bribery in
our operations. We have put in place preventative measures
on whistleblowing policy among the Company and all our
subsidiaries. This policy provides procedures to whistleblowers
who have concerns about any form of suspect misconduct or
malpractice identified across our operations. Various reporting
channels are provided to employees who are allowed to submit
information anonymously. Following a report, the investigation
process will start and the Company will prepare an investigation
report and then submit to the audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) upon completion of the investigation.
The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring and reviewing
the implementation of the whistleblowing policy and providing
any recommendations attributable from the investigation of
complaints.

During the year, the Group has complied with relevant laws and
regulations with significant impact relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering, and was not informed of any
litigation of corruption involving the Group or its employees,
or the involvement in or occurrence of any violations related to
corruption.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group actively promotes and engages in community
activities, aiming to contribute to a cohesive community. We
encourage employees to participate in volunteer work in
the community. Our staff volunteer team has participated in
charitable events from time to time and gathered donations and
supplies for people in need. We also continued to make monetary
donations to Fu Hong Society this year.

Caring for the Environment

Promoting internal environmental awareness is important
to achieve an overall reduction of our carbon footprint. We
continued to participate in the annual Energy Saving Charter
co-organized by the EPD and EMSD in 2022. We share energy
saving tips with our employees by emails to encourage
behavioural change.
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RIE-HHERERHRS (&

The Company was awarded the Hong Kong Green Organization
Certification — "Energywi$e Certificate” and “Wastewi$e
Certificate” organized by the Environmental Campaign
Committee in recognition of the Company’s contribution and
commitment to energy conservation and waste reduction in
2022.

FADREHREEHEZETRRELGE
WBSRE — TS R TR S - U

Ll Lh
b g S

FiltR RN
Hong Kong

Green Organisation Certification

i g &
EnergywiSe
—Certificate—

" EEAFREN

Good Level

AR LT
Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited

We actively promote environmental awareness among our
employees through various communication channels, as well
as encouraging them to participate in green activities. We
participated in the Glass Container Recycling Chapter organized
by the EPD committed to support glass container recycling that
could help ease the burden on the landfills and turn waste glass
containers into reusable resources which can contribute to the
sustainable development of Hong Kong.

In addition to celebrating festive seasons with our employees, we
also put sustainability effort in different festivals. We participated
in the Lai See Recycling Campaign organized by Greeners
Action at every Chinese New Year and placed a box at office to
collect used Lai See. During the Mid-Autumn Festival, we also
placed a box to collect mooncake boxes and sent the boxes to
GREEN@COMMUNITY for recycling. Through these campaign, we
were able to minimize our impact on the environment, as well
as raise our employees’ awareness of the importance of waste
reduction.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

Green Organisation Certification

Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited

A AT 2B T E A R R S B
{1F L B B R R R B8 o
FHER O 2

Hong Kong

ok % th o
Wastewi$e

—Certificate —
LRI

Good Level

AR ]

[ 5 et ey B
Wiy B 31 Dirvamharr S22

- —|
— —

IMEBEEREERRENREEHEIRR
Bl IsBESSERRFREH HMBHA
THEREREZSENNRBISLQBNE
AEXFREA RO ABAKEERRN
B RERBESSBLLHAATBEANE
B REBNAURBERFELEM-

HAFREE-EEBRBAIN  TERAE
MEHBEETARERREH TEERE
MERRB RSS2 MEGETHEM
MEHOWERKRTE ARLERE—MA
EW AW ERBRNRIRE - ERAER K
MTEEERAERELKRERERS
TRABHEEFTGHTIRERE - BBRELEE
B BRMEMRVHRENEE TRSRE
EHRVENEZENER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In January 2022, we took part in Books for Love @ $10, a book
donation and fundraising event, co-organized by the Swire
Properties Community Ambassador Programme, the Agency for
Volunteer Service and the Boys' and Girls" Clubs Association of
Hong Kong. By joining this charitable event, we promoted the joy
of reading in a green way.

We continued our support to WWF Earth Hour by switching off
all lighting in our office for one hour on 26 March 2022.

We also donated 4 LCD screens and 5 desktop computers to
Caritas Computer Workshop while reducing computer and
electronic waste to landfills, we can also transfer reusable
computers to people in need.

Due to the impact of the pandemic, Donghua Machinery, Jiangsu
Machinery and Dekema did not hold any activities in 2022.

Caring for the Elderly

Apart from implementing green office initiatives, the Company
has also contributed love and care to the communities by
engaging in charitable activities.

In 2022, Hong Kong Headquarters took part in a volunteer work
to visit the elders in the Lutheran Elderly Center of Lek Yuen
Estate, Sha Tin with gift donations. They spent a happy Mid-
Autumn Festival with the elders by solving the lantern riddles and
singing songs.
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RE-(E8RELARS ()

ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX TABLE

E1E.S

Subject Area A - Environmental

FTEHBEA-RIE
Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1: B

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPIAT.1
R S AR S ARAT
KPI'A1.2

R AR RIS 1RAT .2

KPI A1.3
R AR IS IRAT 3

KPI A1.4
RARBEMIEIEA .4

KPI A1.5
RSB AIEIRALS
KPI A1.6

BSRE IS 1RA1.6

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRERKBEREIR KRN - AERBEEEYHNELSH @

(@ BUER; &
(b) EFTHETABBAFZENMBBARRRG
BIER -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

PERD TR AR AE R B B o

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

B (BE1) RERERE GE2) RERBHRE U8 kK WER) BE NS
ESBA - BERMTE) o

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

FRTEEAEEEMHEE UMEE) K WER BE WINSEEEM -BEKXMHH) o
Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

FTEEBEEEEYAES UWEE) &K QER) BE MINSESE[ - BEXMAH) ©
Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

HEFTET I E B R R BEDELEBRATRIB LR

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description
of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

WM ERIR A ENBEEEYN G E  RIEAATET L KR EE B 1R & & E D5 L B IRFTER
EXEY 7 BR o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI HER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEA2 : ERER
General Disclosure
— i B

KPI A2.1
RS AR RA2 1

KPI A2.2
RS AR IS 1RA2 .2

KPI A2.3
R AR IS IRA2.3
KPI A2.4
RREMIEIRA2 4

KPI A2.5
RS AR RA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BUERER (B1FFER - KR EAMRME) REBER -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total
(kWh in "000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
RENASNERER HMFER WS- folch) @EE UTETRENAE) REE
IS ESBU BEREHE) o

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BEKERTE ONSESEL SERMEE) o

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HAMFTET MBS RERA N B R R AETE LB RN T -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

A SREGE A AOR LRI B ER R URFEI LA KN E B R R AERGSEBRM
FREQ A 24 5% o

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

S AEEMRNEE (UMEEE) Kk NER SEEEMULE-

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EBEA3  REBERXAER

General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI A3.1
A S AR S RAS

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and natural
resources.

MEETAHRERRAEREMERZENER

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural

resources and the actions taken to manage them.
B EBEHRIRRERRAARERNEAR ERERNEEFRZENTH -

Aspect A4: Climate Change

EBmA4 . RIREE

General Disclosure
— M R

KPI A4.1
RAREMIEIZEASL

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

B REHERRAIEEHBETAEEFNENEARBRHEASENEE-

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those

which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
I BE R EEHBTAELERENEARGEHEBERT  RELHTH

Eams (@

96

97

98

92
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE-(E8RELARS ()

Subject Area B — Social
FTEHBEB—HHE

Employment and Labour Practices

BRERSETER
Aspect B1: Employment
/BEB1 : B
General Disclosure Information on: 101-105
—RIRE (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BRAF N EE BREREA  THERERP TERE 20t RERUREME
BREFN
(@) BR; &
(b) BFHETABEATZENMERERRRM
&K -
KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), age group 105
RARAENIETER 1 and geographical region.
BHR - EHEEE (2R RE) FEAAR RMER DR ESAH -
KPI'B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 106
BRI A RIE1RB1.2 BRI FiAR Rt E B DN EE IR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RIE-HHERERARS (&

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[BEB2: RRARZE

General Disclosure Information on: 106-109
—MRIRE (@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

ERRMZETHRERFERESRRHMEMEEEMN -

(@) BR; &

(b) BFHETABEAZENEREERRMN

BE R o
KPI'B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years 108
RARABNIEEB2.1 including the reporting year.

BE=F (AEEREE) SERAI TR ABKLEE.
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 108
BRI R M E1RB2.2 AT HBERIIEEH-
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are 106-109
R A NIETER2.3 implemented and monitored.

RPN B R R R R 2 2 B URBRRITRERS %
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RE-(E8RELARS ()

Aspect B3: Development and Training

fEmEB3 : R R IE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. 109
— IR E Description of training activities.

BRIEFHEB BT T/ER S 0 H 3 K 52 AE B BUR o f i B AIE S o
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. senior 110
R A NIE1EB3.1 management, middle management).

REFREELER WESREERE - FREERE) A 0NXRIIREB DL
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category. 110
A 4R AHERB3.2 BRI REESENE D SLEEFTMRIN TR -

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : & TAA|

General Disclosure Information on: 111
—RIRE (@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRAM LEE T a5 T :

(@ BUER; &

(b) BFHETABBEAXEZNHEREERRG

BBk o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced 111
R R A NIE1EB4.1 labour.

AR ST B ES 1B HIAY S MR LAY SR B T e a8l &5 T o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 111
RASEAE XI5 1RB4.2 ot 1E B BRI KR 1B N B R B A R B L AT ERER A 27 8% o
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RIE-HHERERARS (&

Operating Practices

SEEM

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[ETEBS : e EE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. 112
— R 2 58 BIEMHEENRIER TR -
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 112
R SR AE XI5 AEB5. 1 RHEE D HEEREE o
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the 112
R R AR WIS 1EB5.2 practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HiERAEAHERENES mERTEREANEEEHE  UREARITRER
Tk
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the supply 112
AR AN IE1EB5.3 chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
Tt A B R e SR S EIR BNV IRIG Fe it & R IR V1B ) MU AR R AT R Ba R 75 7% ©
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and 112
R AEWIE1ER5.4 services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

BEEREHERREESBRARERKRBHIEN  URBERRTRERS A
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BRIt ERERY

€=)

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

JEEB6 : EMEE
General Disclosure
— g B

KPI B6.1
B S AR RN 15 1RB6. 1

KPI B6.2
R S AR R 15 1286 .2

KPI B6.3
RS A A5 1RB6.3
KPI B6.4
RS AE R 15 1RB6.4
KPI B6.5
RS AR A0 15 1RB6.5

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods of redress.

BRFTRMERTRBNEREAZE2 BS REAARBEURBRGEN

(@ BUER; &
(b) BEFTHETABBAFENMBMEARRRG
=g

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

EEREEXERRYUTAZEHEREAMABRKMNE DL

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

RERMNEDRBRBNEFEE UREH S ZE -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights.
i 3t B A 8 T R 5 R o EE 1 B RA R 1B o

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
HitEESWMEBREREMEBIWAZRF

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

HEUH BB B RHRIE RFARER  URERRITRERT %
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BmEB7 : RED
General Disclosure

— RN

KPI B7.1
R SR AR5 1RBT 1

KPI B7.2
RS AE 51387 .2

KPI B7.3
RSB IE1ERT7.3

Community
#HE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE-HERERARS (8

Information on: 115-116
(a) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

AR IEHERE  BR  IEF RO AR

(@ BE;R
(b) BFHETAEEARENEMARRIRA
B o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer 116

or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERAAHETARHEERBTESENESHARGHNEE RFAER-

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are 115-116
implemented and monitored.

M E e M BB U BERITRER G %

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 115

HitREERE TiRHNREFEI -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

/EmEBS : HERE
General Disclosure
—fg i B

KPI B8.1
R SR AR N 15 1RB8.1

KPI B8.2
R S AR R F5 1B 8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where 117-119
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’

interests.

AU E2ERTREEMEMRFTENRREER EHIZBLEN MK

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs, 117-119
health, culture, sport).

EIEMEE WHE BRREEE - HSIER - BR XL -BH) -
Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

EEEHRBPABAER ERHRRE) o

117-119
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
BINZ BN S

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (PRACTISING)

9th Floor, Tung Ning Building
249-253 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 137 to 288, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code"”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHERE ()

BBt ER
MRBFFEERERMANEXZHAE BR
HARGAMBREANEIBRAEENSE
R-ZERRRRERMEIFBEGEGMBER
KEREAERFETEEN  UAHMATE
HZEFREHEBNER

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key Audit Matter
RREEEE

Impairment of goodwill
Refer to note 18 to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

w2H BEEEGRSMBRRWE18

As at 31 December 2022, the net carrying amount of
the Group’s goodwill amounted to HK$32,996,000
relating to the acquisition of KFE Hong Kong Co.,
Limited in 2013 which is engaged in trading of printed
circuit boards.

RIEZ_Z_HF+-A=+—H> S&EEN_Z—=
FWEBR_ERZEBERLAE (HUNEHRAR R
B5) EXmEREFETE/32,996,000% 7T °

As further disclosed in notes 2(6) and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements, determining whether
goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units (“CGU") to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU by considering the
budgeted sales and gross margin which are based on
past performance and management’s expectations for
the future change in the market and taking into account
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate its present
value. Key assumptions for the value in use calculation
are future cash flow forecast, growth rate and discount
rate, where small changes of them can result in a
significant change in the value in use.

MRS M BIRRMT26) 18 E—FIRE BEEEHE
EEORERHESEMENREES EACABENG
SIMER s EEREER SEREZEERBE
RERBEEEHDHARBCNTEARBEANTERHE
REFME EMbstTBHREREES BMAAEENRIKER
ERNEESBNEREUGERE stEEHAEEN
FTERZARRBERBEA - BEXRLERE - EZF
BEELRR/EE HEREEENEREH-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAMEBEZNAREMRBEEZER

HERE
Our procedures in relation to management'’s
impairment assessment included:

RO EEBEE ZRENGZREFEE

Obtaining the cash flow forecast prepared by
management, reviewing and discussing with
management on the major assumptions adopted
in the cash flow forecast for the CGU and
checking arithmetic accuracy of the forecast
calculation.

NEEEERENIRENTEN HEEEER X
HmAMRERBEAMREESBEURANT
R IREtERANEEESSER-

Comparing the growth rate, budgeted sales and
gross margin to historical results and reference
to the market information to determine their
reasonableness.

IR -TEEHE R EMKEBTZEEFILR
W2EHHBEE UMRERREESE

Assessing the discount rate used by management
in the cash flow forecast by benchmarking
against the required rate of return adjusted for
industrial specific factors.
DATERERAZABRNBELREAELE  HE
EERRSRIEAPPIANAEREEL TG
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
MRESNEE

Impairment of goodwill (Continued)

Based on the management’s assessment, no further
impairment loss on goodwill was recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2022.

RIFBIERE 257 . Eﬁgﬁﬁi_v::
+ZE=+—HLEFEZHREWHERALEEEFLE

& BB

The impairment assessment involves significant
judgments made by management and therefore is
identified as a key audit matter.

BB TG K B IR 8 R AY B K HI i [X]IEE #8238 7l 75 A
BESHFERE-

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEZNARERREZER

HEHE (&)

Reviewing the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management on the significant assumptions
including the growth rate and the discount
rate to evaluate the extent of impact of these
assumptions on the cash flow forecast.
BFREEEMNEARRK (BEERIRERX)
WENBRED UTEZSRREBESRE
AN ERE-

Evaluating the accuracy of historical cash flow
forecast prepared by the management by
comparing the historical cash flow forecast with
the actual performance; and
BERELRENETHEAELBRRFBETLER
MUFtHEEEEENRELREREFANE
M &

Evaluating the sufficiency of the disclosure of
impairment assessment by management in the
consolidated financial statements.

ML ERETRSHBERERPAET G 2 IEE
B



Key Audit Matter
REEEE

Valuation of inventories
Refer to note 23 to the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

wm2H BEERERSMBERERWE23

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has inventories
of approximately HK$450,811,000 which are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value ("NRV").
The Group carried out an inventory review at the end
of the reporting period and made necessary allowance
for obsolete and slow moving items so as to write off
or write-down inventories to their NRV after considering
the ageing analysis of inventories, historical sales
patterns, post year-end sales and selling prices of
inventories, market demand, technological changes, and
the Group's future plan of sale.
RIEZZHF+ZR=+—H> BEEENTFELNA
450,811,000 70 JH 2 A A B o] & 37 % & (TR &37%
B AREESKR EEENRSBARETIFESR
T HRENFHNY@RETIR T U ENERF UET
ZEREFENREIM - BEHELR FREFEHE
ERREB -THEBER EMESE UKk BSEBEREKN
HEST IR BESMEMAER TR FE-

The Group has made a reversal of written-down
inventories of approximately HK$5,459,000 to their NRV
for the year ended 31 December 2022.
BE_TE__F+_A=+—HLEFE> SEEHEMH
B fF §495,459,0008 T 2 A IR 3 E ©

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter due to the use of significant judgment
and estimates in identifying obsolete and slow moving
inventories and determining the NRV to assess the
amount of allowance/write-down.

R T EARAET (G5 2R # B REFFHNEE T
EEHEHEIEERTHEE MR FIEFM
REENGER SHRETFE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B HETR S (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEBZNARERREZER

FaftE
Our procedures in relation to management'’s
assessment on inventory provision included:

HPMEREZFERAIEZREFEE

— Inquiring and understanding from management
the inventory provision policy of the Group.

MEEEERNKRTHE BEENFEREFEBR-

- Assessing the reasonableness of the inventories
allowance/write-down made by the Group by
obtaining the aging analysis and slow-moving
inventory lists from management and discussing
with management on the basis of inventories
allowance/write-down.
MEEENESEFREDTRIERFERE
W EIRE R T S RGO R T
it BEEMEENEEREE MEARTEE

—  Performing testing on the inventory aging to
assess the accuracy of the basic data used to
determine the allowance/write-down and re-
performing the allowance/write-down calculation
to check arithmetic accuracy.
MEENEFIRETRE UL B IEH @ E
SR BEABIR RS ER WEMTERE
MR M B EEER S -

— Understanding from management the rationale
for the specific adjustments and assessing the
assumptions made where there are specific
adjustments on the inventories allowance/write-
down.

MEERETRETAZRNIER TEMEERE
/MORLE 5 T 5B EE R T AE L A9 R AR o

— Reviewing subsequent sales on the inventory
samples selected to assess whether the
inventories were able to be sold at prices above
their carrying values.

ERCENNTERAZ BEHENR L TEF
ERTARENEREENEBREREH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
RRESHEE

Impairment of trade receivables
Refer to note 24 to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

B2H BEEEGRGMBRRWE24

As at 31 December 2022, after netting off with an
aggregate impairment provision of approximately
HK$82,850,000, the net carrying amount of the Group’s
trade receivables was approximately HK$594,858,000.

A _E__F+R=+—H KRR REREBN
82,850,000 018 > EEEMEZEKHIENREF
{E#973594,858,000 7T °

Management applied judgment in assessing the
expected credit losses (“ECLs”). Receivables relating to
customers with known financial difficulties or significant
doubts on collection of receivables are assessed
individually for allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts. ECLs are also estimated by grouping
the remaining receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery, taking into account the nature of the customer
and its ageing category, and applying ECLs rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables.
The expected loss rates are based on historical observed
default rates and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort.
BIEENTHEREEHERERAE BHEMMBH
BERWEIERARIERETRNE LR BRNENHRIEES
BEEUREEEE EEBTEBAREBERREER

AT R TR IR ET D AME T TRREERBE I

HEFGWEINEIEY  EREZEER T E RHRESE
E'J’ﬂtﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfmfiéﬂa <FERAREINARIES BNEKRE
BER -FAHEBEXNEAREBANBTEREN LS
WiREERBBLHARNE HM A ERNGIERE B
AR EREITRE

We identified impairment of trade receivables as a key
audit matter due to its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the use of judgment and
estimates by the management of the Group in
determining the allowance for credit losses.

RS EZEERIEREH# SARESSEE ARNHE
HEaWBRETDEE UKREBEERER T H
M5t REEE S RIRIENEEHBERERE -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEBZNARERREZER

B BRI RERE
Our procedures in relation to management'’s
impairment assessment of trade receivables included:

HPMEREZRMEMEZIEFEE

—  Obtaining an understanding of key process on
how impairment is estimated by management;

EREEEGTIAENRRERE ;

—  Assessing the measurement of ECLs of trade
receivables by obtaining the understanding of
approach adopted by the Group;

BBTH BEEMRANA L TEEZEK
MIENTAIREERIBRIETE ;

—  Testing the ageing analysis of trade receivables,
on a sample basis, to the source documents;
V%TPIEZ}_SZTCF’Lﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁfﬁﬁﬁéﬁ-’i%%uﬁﬂﬁﬂ’\]

BREC DA 5

— Reviewing the reasonableness of the use of
ageing profile, historical settlement pattern,
historical default rates and forward-looking
information in the ECLs model;
ERERMEEHRRAPERRKEE BT
RER BEENXNAIREENNGEY ;

—  Checking the accuracy and the relevance of the
input data used in the ECLs model; and
BERACEEBREAPERANEARENE
MR &

— Testing the subsequent settlement of trade
receivables by tracing to the related supporting
documents including the bank receipts.

FEieE 7 HERERAXH B EIRIT W E B X
HEREEZRWRBEZYRFERERE I

=D



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

BIZEETRE (8
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHBERE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405
of the Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control;

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern;

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZBENRS (8

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Chow Chi Tong.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
Certified Public Accountants (practising)

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, gain and loss,
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Impairment loss on goodwill

Operating profit

Investment income
Share of results of associates
Loss on deregistration of
a subsidiary
Finance costs

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
— Equity shareholders
of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share — Basic

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
n‘/—l_ A l‘l& %

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE T _F+ _F=+—HIFE

WA
i & Rl A

EF

HMWA > Wi K &5 18 7% 58
DHE R

THER

B R ERBE

«(M%—E*U

BERA
BILBERBER
sEHH— R B AR 2 18
M ER

PRI A E

PRSI E R

FEEF

FEAEF
—FABREFEA

—IRERED

Notes

Mat

23(b)

18

11

12

2022

—_— ——

HK$°000
F#7

2,339,898
(1,967,594)

372,304
23,161

(170,462)
(195,245)

29,758

11,404
5,324

(13,415)

33,071

(14,234)

18,837

24,414
(5,577)

18,837

2.83HK cents 1l

2021
B -F
HK$°000
TAETT

3,075,305
(2,530,814)

544,491
6,646
(197,414)

(213,423)
(20,487)

119,813

6,255
5,140

(348)
(17,741)

113,119

(28,914)

84,205

89,732
(5,527)

84,205

10.41HK cents L

The notes on pages 147 to 288 are an integral part of these

B14TE28BEZMEB ARG M BRERZ

consolidated financial statements. —Z8 1D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ima 2N TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE S+ A=+ —HIFE

Note
Vi3
Profit for the year FEHH
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FEEMEE W)
income for the year, net of tax: NBRIRIA - 13

ltems that have been reclassified EEMAENEROERN

or may be reclassified subsequently EZEE@m2IEE :

to profit or loss:

— Exchange differences arising — B BN ER R TS IR R AT
from translation of financial EEXZEREL
statements of
foreign operations

— Share of reserves of associates —ELBE AT REE
Reclassification adjustments: BMOBERAE
— Release of translation reserve — s —ENEB R E R
upon deregistration of RERHEERY
a subsidiary

Items that will not be reclassified A EEHHEEER2EE !
to profit or loss:
— Surplus on revaluation of —BERMEEGRE
properties held for
own use

Total comprehensive (expense)/ EERE (ZH) kB EE
income for the year

Total comprehensive (expense)/ MEIERE (X H) URE4E%E :
income attributable to:

— Equity shareholders of —ERRBREFEA
the Company
— Non-controlling interests —JEERER

Total comprehensive (expense)/ FEEZE (ZH) WKFEHELE
income for the year

The notes on pages 147 to 288 are an integral part of these $5147ZE288H i 51 /B & 4=
consolidated financial statements. —&p 15 o
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2022
—=——

HK$'000
TET

18,837

(126,849)
(3,142)

(129,991)

7,452

(122,539)

(103,702)

(85,747)
(17,955)

(103,702)

2021
—E_—F
HK$°000
FET

84,205

37,306
934

348

38,588

16,787

55,375

139,580

139,892
(312)

139,580

MBBRERZ



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
kr e MR

At 31 December 2022
R CETHFF A=+ —H

2022 2021
—EF —ET—%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
k=3 FETT FET
Non-current Assets ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment L EN =Y 15 548,919 610,196
Right-of-use assets FEREESE 17 72,171 85,578
Goodwill [k 18 32,996 32,996
Intangible assets EmILEE 19 922 2,305
Interests in associates BrE AR = 20 39,483 41,524
Finance lease receivables FEWRERENIE 21 15,011 76,205
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE 22 22,998 28,722

Bank time deposit with maturity B A —FUEN
over one year RITEHATER 26(d) 1,120 -
733,620 877,526

Current Assets MEBEE

Inventories =78 23 450,811 542,429
Finance lease receivables FEWRERENIE 21 100,939 200,143
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWRIE 24 769,278 887,400
Other financial assets HthemEE 25 10,367 53,571
Current tax recoverable A HA ] I [B175 18 642 759
Cash and bank balances IR & K RIT4S R 26 559,793 406,057
1,891,830 2,090,359
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
FERBRRE (@
At 31 December 2022

S CE T HFE+/H=+—H

2022 2021
—ZE-= B —F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
&t FET FET
Current Liabilities mENBE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERIE 27 691,938 853,744
Contract liabilities =N ON=R| 27 94,147 77,064
Bank borrowings RITER 28 225,127 289,469
Lease liabilities HESE 29 15,701 15,283
Current tax payable KERFE(IFRIE 4,276 10,683
1,031,189 1,246,243
Net Current Assets MENEEFE 860,641 844,116
Total Assets less EEHEBRTEBER
Current Liabilities 1,594,261 1,721,642
Non-current Liabilities ETREEE
Bank borrowings RITER 28 2,468 11,698
Lease liabilities HESE 29 25,003 36,186
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE 22 28,394 33,234
55,865 81,118
Net Assets BEEFE 1,538,396 1,640,524

] 40 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

Equity i
Capital and reserves attributable to ZA&A T REIFAE AFEN

equity shareholders BARKfHE

of the Company:

Share capital &N

Reserves (B
Non-controlling Interests JEVER TS
Total Equity EmEE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 137 to 288 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
30 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:

TANG TO
DIRECTOR
-

The notes on pages 147 to 288 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

FEMBERRR (@)
At 31 December 2022

SCECHFFHA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= TEZ—4F

Note HKS$000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FAET
30 609,027 609,027
713,095 801,782

1,322,122 1,410,809

216,274 229,715

1,538,396 1,640,524
FI37TE28BBZHEEMERRN_T =

FZR=tHESSSHAETLRETH I
ATIEERREE

TANG YU, FREEMAN

&
DIRECTOR
0

F147E288EB 2B R GEHHREZ

— Bk 7 o

—=— —

—_—=
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EARBEBE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEr - HF A =+—HIFFE

Balance at 1 January 2021 RIBZ-5-F—-B#kK
Profit for the year FERA
Other comprehensive income/(expense) EEEMRENE/
for the year: (ZiH)
Share of reserves of assaciates NI
Surplus on revaluation of properties BRYEEHREN
held for own use
Deferred taxation adjustment BILRERE

Exchange differences arising from translation of BB EHHBREE
financial statements of foreign operations EE7ERER

Release of translation reserve upon FE-HENEATN
deregistration of a subsidiary HERRERY

Total other comprehensive income for the year  EEE 2 E K%

Total comprehensive income/(expense) A/ i) 8%
for the year

Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary LE-BRBLIHHER
without loss of control MEKEEHE

Balance at 31 December 2021 RIEZ-%

TZRZ+-RER

Details of other reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Share
capital
fek
HK$ 000
TEm

609,027

609,027

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT

KRERERE AR
Other Retained
reserves profits
HftifhE RBEF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TEm T#m
170,151 489,448
- 89,732
934 -
15,699 -
(402) -
33,581 -
348 -
50,160 -
50,160 89,732
2,291 -
222,602 579,180

Total
Bt
HKS'000
Tz
1,268,626

89,732

934

15,699
(402)

33,581

348

50,160

139,892

2,291

1,410,809

BMBWRRME3IIAN-

Non-
controlling
interests
FERER
HK$ 000
FEr

231,357

(5,527)

1,762
272)

3,725

229,715

Total
equity
#ilfE
HK$ 000
T#m
1,499,983

84,205

934

17,461
(674)

37,306

348

55,375

139,580

961

1,640,524

FEERFFEZ HM#EHEEFBHNR



Balance at 1 January 2022

Profit for the year

QOther comprehensive (expense)/income

for the year:
Share of reserves of associates

Surplus on revaluation of properties

held for own use
Deferred taxation adjustment

Exchange differences arising from translation of
financial statements of foreign operations

Total other comprehensive expense

for the year

Total comprehensive (expense)/income

for the year

Dividend paid to the non-controlling

shareholders of a subsidiary

Deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary

without loss of control

Balance at 31 December 2022

Details of other reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

REDEHR (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

RZB-__#-F—-B&%
EEHA

FEAMRE (Rd) /
W :

BiEBEATRE

ERNREERS

Eitmanz
BEENEBHBRRR
ELZEREE

FEEMREZLAE

EERE (i) /KalE

BA-ENBARFER
RERSE

RIEHE-ENBARER
MELEEHE

RZBZZ%
TZRZ+-RER

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Share
capital
%
HKS'000
A7

609,027

609,027

FRERENE AR
Other Retained
reserves profits
Hfttfta fREE
HKS 000 HKS 000
A7 A7
222,602 579,180
- 24,414
(3,142) -
1,326 -
(1,228) -
(113,117) -
(110,161) -
(110,161) 24,414
(2,940) -
109,501 603,594

Total
a5
HKS 000
FET

1,410,809

24,414

(3.142)

7326
(1,228)

(113,117)

(110,161)

(85,747)

(2,940)

1322122

B BREME3IR-

The notes on pages 147 to 288 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

147i288§\zﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ:\%

Non-
controlling
interests
R
HKS 000
&7

229,715

(5,577)

1,603
(249)

(13,732)

(12,378)

(17,955)

(854)

5,368

216,274

HE_F__F+_HA=+—HILFE

Total
equity
Rl
HKS'000
AT

1,640,524

18,837

(3.142)

8,929
(1:477)

(126,849)

(122,539)

(103,702)

(854)

2,428

1,538,396

FERRAFEZHMEEEB S BHRNIE

MBBRERZ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

maRTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE S+ A=+ —HIFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Bank and other interest income
Finance costs
Impairment loss on goodwill
Realised and unrealised gain on
other financial assets
Loss on deregistration of
a subsidiary
Share of results of associates
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Reversal of allowance
for impairment of
bad and doubtful debts, net
Written back of inventories, net

ﬁmiﬂi:ﬁg‘]

FRIR AT E A

RS BEAE

RIT R EMF] B A
MBER

BEREBIE
HiheMEEZ R
Fe R W =
SEH—ENEASZBE

Y= ENSIE S
ME BB RREBITE

ERREENE
A
D BB R 2

RIZARBIE D BFER

FERED &P

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

Notes
HtaE

18

20

o

23(b)

2022
—E__fF
HK$°000
FET

33,071

(2,085)
13,415

(9,319)

(5.324)
59,698
16,041
1,383

(610)

(12,134)
(5,459)

2021
—ET—F
HK$'000
T#ET

113,119

(1,911)

17,741

20,487

(4,344)

348
(5,140)

59,935

16,086

1,383

(416)

(16,616)
(1,094)



Operating cash flows before
changes in working capital

Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in finance lease

receivables

Decrease in trade and other

receivables

Decrease in trade and other
payables and contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong profits tax paid

Overseas tax paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increase in pledged
bank deposits

Purchase of property, plant and

equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interest received

Net proceeds on disposal of other

financial assets

Net payment for other financial

assets

Dividend received from associates
Repayment from associates
Increase in bank time deposits with
maturity over three months
Proceeds from disposal of

a subsidiary

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
LeaRERExk (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

EEREREHAZ
HERTR

FERED (gm)
FEW R B TH ERUIB
L ()

B 5% Kk HMEWRIRR D

B 5 M HMERIER

GHaERLD

REeEHELEZRE
ENEBNER
B BN

RERHEEZREFE

REE
BRI IRITERIEM

BEVE -BERRE

HEME BB KR&RHEZREA

BUA 2

HEHMERMEEZ MBFE

ST EMEREEFER

WEREHE R BIRE
BEABZEM

IR BE=EAN
IR1T EHAfF ARG 00

HE—RBNBASRE ZIA

RETBHEE (ER) 2

(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES R&B%E

2022
—EZZ

HK$000
TET

88,677

54,317
143,120

68,635
(79,312)
275,437

(3,418)
(17,726)

254,293

(17,887)
(32,541)

2,575
2,085

49,531
1,772
2,980

(4,594)

3,921

HE_F__F+_HA=+—HILFE

2021
—EF-—%
HK$°000
TAETT

199,578
(78,060)
(56,838)

1,523
(10,210)

55,993

(1,446)
(17,884)

36,663

(2,122)

(39,765)

2,357
1,911

2,182
(45,586)

1,528

1,532

(3,875)

961

(80,877)

ZZ T ZHF £ Annual Report 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
meaREmERk (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BEr - HF A=+ —HIFFE

2022 2021
—E-C e
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Vok=3 FET FAET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES FLEEED
Repayment of bank loans BERIBITEM 33 (264,625) (203,244)
Interest paid BEFHE 33 (9,891) (13,442)
Capital element of lease rentals BENHAEREHNAZ IR
paid 33 (16,281) (17,685)
Interest element of lease rentals BNEERENF EEHD
paid 33 (3,524) (4,299)
New bank loans raised MIBIRITER 33 194,319 180,842
Dividend paid to the non-controlling B 1 — &M /8 A B FE &
shareholders of a subsidiary RS (854) -
Proceeds from deemed disposal BIEHE—HNBARESR
of interest in a subsidiary without TSk & IZEHIHE 2 5
loss of control 39 2,428 -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING RE;EENIFERAZIREFEE
ACTIVITIES (98,428) (57,828)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN HERFAEEE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3E10, 7 GRiL) 52458 159,786 (102,042)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S#REKRREEE
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 390,497 485,532
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EZRMER %
RATE CHANGES (25,488) 7,007
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HF#&RERREL%E
AT END OF THE YEAR 26 524,795 390,497

The notes on pages 147 to 288 are an integral part of these fF147F288BEZMEBAGSHBERRZ
consolidated financial statements. — & 15 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited is a public limited
company domiciled and incorporated in Hong Kong and its
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
address of its registered office is 10™ Floor, Billion Plaza 2,
No. 10 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The principal activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 42.

Saniwell Holding Inc. (a company incorporated in Cook
Islands) is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(1) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations (“Int”), issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Listing Rules. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of interest in leasehold land and buildings
where the Group is the registered owner of the property
interest and certain financial assets, which are carried at
fair value.

e B HRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE _E_ _HF+ _HA=+—HIFE

LM
KV AR 2 IRA B Th i & A 5E R AL
T2 ARARAFE > TER B8P
Ebe

FRB R/ —EREZERAT - sEMMhiL
RBBNERVERABHIORERE
G210 - HEIEMBARN ZEEX
B E ISP 42 0

Saniwell Holding Inc. (Rl 52 8t &5/
M BBRAE) AARABREERA
ao

FEEHBREE

MR EGMBREREBZIEG SN
RPN TX FRABARBPI ILEEHR
EFMEBRFMEFERNEMER-

(1) HwREE
AABREMBAT CUTHENE
EB)NGREHMBREREREES
S AERMGIN(EBMHREE
8]) (BRE(EBEHER) R (R
B)) BBAREHRAKR(RT
HAYHRERN - AIFEHBR
RERFTE(ETRADBERRKE
X - AEEFBZEEGFTER
BEHN T -FEUHFBRRER
RELMAEZRE URAEED
MEEDEMEEAZEE LM
REFHRERERRE TR/
EENEGMRATEEYRME
HAEET o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(1) Basis of preparation (Continued)

2. FEGHBRBEE (&

(1) wRREE @)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of
HKFRS that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

RBE(BEEVMBREERDER B
BEEAERREEGMHREE Bl
B EETHRNERUKREE
BRE-WARIHBNEREE  (F
t # B ~ {5 AR ER o {5 5T AN AE R
BERBDKEELERNZEETA
BERTRABEENEMEAR
FREL  BRAGRBA T FIA1EH
e KK ENEEN A RER
EEBEENHEER BRERA &
BZEEEAE

et AR R R G IFE| T LURSS -
WEEHEStHES] EHET A
Eiﬁ’@’%ﬁ%%@?\@f%,ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
58 g EHEETREST HE T AR
RARBEHDEELE HRATZE

A 72 2 BAAN SR SR HA TS 1E 1T FESD o

EEBHEAERNAREYBRE
BEEXEN(EBVBREER)
BARGEAEREMZETEEE
RTEMI EE 4P ET 5 ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and the entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

—  has power over the investee;
- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

—  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

IR e MBS ERRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE - A+ A —HILFEE

2. TEGFHHERBE (&

(2)

e Ra
REVBRERBELTATREMR
BRABPMMENBERNMBRER B
KRBT EUTRIER BIEGE
Gl

— HEKRELHBEGE

- RREZERREHEHD
BERHR EAZTEBRNERS
B S K

- BEARERHE
BETT°

FERB®

HEBRBERKRE LMERZ=
BERNEP-—EBEIZRLRE
g AAEESEHTEEEEES
WRET °

H—ERBARZEEARKE
ERESHZWNB LR ZERR
2 BRte > W A E R KM
BRBZEHEZEKLL - BREM
B HAERRNGENRERER
EAEEIABESNBLABER
I RERBERHERB AT
WA K5t AR E IR am & o

Ao kHEMEERmZ&EEB
BEREARARERE ARIFERE
moMBABZEEmWEBEET R
BEXRBHEAE AN RIFERET
BfE R g s RIFERER IR
J&5 M AT BR ©

HEEFEE KHHBABHMFHR
RIFLAE WEH G BERAR
EENEFER -2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

BFE—

==

ETF+ A=A —HIFEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRS).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 (note 2(9)), when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture (note 2(3)).

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

2. TEGFHERBE (&

(2)

=ERA &)

FAEERZREADBEERXZ AR
ZFREEBERARBEE - 8F&
o WA -AXRREREDR

FEFREENBLEZHERE
&
FEBRNBARZEA RS
NESHMUTBERAERMBAK
RERRE RIESREZZ AN
AEBENEDEFERERKR
HESHBURBRKE QT 248
MEmEF AR IFEREDS
PRENHERRENRQRTEE
ZENEREREERENREED
HRLRBRAADERE A

EXEBRREHIE QT BIES
TR > 2 5 I 18 m FE SR I UG B R
REQAFEEREAREERA
FEENBBEAGNNBATDEE
(BEEE) RaBUREMIFE
lREZNRIREEZ B ZEREE
B BERHEMEEREERDEZ
MEASARMNMATE  RAW
FrEEEERHEZWE QR
ZIEMEERNE R A EAR (B
RER(EBYBREENZRTE
SHABEXEN D EE RN
BES—E#m) - ERNEAR
RENEANREAFEBERERS
ERRZEREBNGStEREER
MR/ RB(BEBEMBREENDS
o5t (Ff5E2(9)) ETMBERH A
FEE S WER RMERAT R
BERE (W5E203)) 2RERHE
ORI AR A ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
benefits respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

= A
A
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

(3)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depend
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
in accordance with HKFRS 9, or HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
at that date.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy

decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
F 5k R M5 (49

= A
Z/TEI

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(3) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee's net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment.
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associates or the joint ventures, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associates or the
joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(3) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and the joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence is lost, is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (note 2(9)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses, unless classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(4) Property, plant and equipment

Interests in leasehold land and buildings held for own
use where the Group is the registered owner of the
property interest is stated at their revalued amount,
being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation
is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed
in profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Revaluations on properties held for own use are
performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that
the carrying amount of these assets does not differ
materially from which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_F__F+_HA=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(4) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2. FEGHBERE &

(4) ME -BERSRHE (@)

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated separately
in equity in the property revaluation reserve. The only
exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the
revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a deficit
on revaluation in respect of that same asset had
previously been charged to profit or loss.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost or revalued amounts to their residual values (if any)
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Ownership interest in leasehold Unexpired term of
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held for own use unexpired term of

the leases, if shorter

FRERED FIERA & F 11
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Plant and machinery 5 — 10 years e = R 14 83 5E104F

Motor vehicles 3 - 10 years AE 3E104

Z— T~ %R Annual Report 2022

157



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(4) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2. FEGHBRBEE (&

(4) ME- -BER=E (@)

The assets’ residual values (if any) and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An item of property, plant and
equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset.

Assets under construction represent buildings,
structures, plant and machinery and other fixed assets
under construction or installation and are stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses, and
are not depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction, installation and testing as well as
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation. Assets
under construction are reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item
and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus
is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained
profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note

2(10)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(5) Leases
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(5) Leases (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(10)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change
in the Group's estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(5) Leases (Continued)
(iij) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with note 2(23)(ii)(a).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies
the exemption described in note 2(5)(i), then the
Group classifies the sub-lease as an operating
lease.

(6) Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(6)

(7)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Research and development
Research expenditure is recognised as an expense
as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects
(relating to the design and testing of new or improved
products) are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are fulfilled:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

(i) management intends to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

(iii)

there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset
will generate probable future economic benefits;

(v) adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(7)

(8)

Research and development (Continued)
(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period. Capitalised development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point at which
the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis over its
useful life.

Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2(10)(ii)),
assets that are acquired separately.

on the same basis as intangible

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Financial assets
(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the

following measurement categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

—  those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments
in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

See note 40(a) for details of each type of financial

asset.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those

assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded in profit or
loss. Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income or other income using the effective

interest method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"): Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’
represent solely payments of principal and

interest, are measured at FVTOCI.

in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains/(losses) — net.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income or other income using
the effective interest method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated income

statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE - A+ A —HILFEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FECHBERE (&
POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Financial assets (Continued) 9) EREE &)
(iii)) Measurement (Continued) (iii) FE (#&

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Assets
that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at FVTPL and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in
the consolidated income statement within other
losses/gains, net in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established. Changes in the fair value
of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in other
gains/(losses) — net in the consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4 A
W 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the following
items:

—  financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and bank balances, trade and
other receivables); and

—  finance lease receivables

Financial assets measured at fair value including
other financial assets are not subject to the ECLs
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRMEE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Br - T HF =+ —HIFFEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (10) EEFIEREERE &)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () THTAELZIEEER

2. 35# = n‘l’ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁj# (‘é‘%

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

—  variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

—  finance lease receivables: discount rate used
in the measurement of the finance lease
receivable;

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs:
expected to result from possible default events

these are losses that are
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expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECLs model applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and finance
lease receivables are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the

reporting date.

For all other financial instruments,
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available

without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the

technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor's ability to meet its

obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status

and credit risk ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECLs amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt securities that are
measured at FVTOCI (recycling), for which the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value reserve

(recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2(23) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance)

of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset

have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or finance lease receivable is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE_ZF_—

F+ZHB=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets (other than ownership

including

interest in leasehold land and buildings held
for own use carried at fair value);

— investments in subsidiaries and associates
(except for those classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale) in the Company’s statement
of financial position;

—  goodwill; and

— intangible assets.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for
use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of

impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

= A
ARG H

155 R & MIsE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(11) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

R E "+ HA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(12) Government grants

2. TEGFHERBE (&

(12) BT 4E AL

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

(13) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE_ZF_—

F+ZHB=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(13) Fina

ncial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees issued at the time
of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm'’s length transactions for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group's policies applicable to that category of
asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(13)(iii) if and
when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of
that guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(13) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised at
fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair
value, such contingent liabilities are recognised
at the higher of the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation where appropriate,
and the amount that would be determined in
accordance with note 2(13)(iii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that
cannot be reliably fair valued or where not present
obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed
in accordance with note 2(13)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-F-—F+ A=+ —HUEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FECHBERE &

POLICIES (Continued)
(14) Inventories and other contract costs
(i) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less applicable
variable selling expenses.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE - A+ A —HILFEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(14) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)
(ii) Other contract costs

2. TEGFHHERBE (&

(14) ZEREMEAIRE (@)
(i) BEME#EE

Other contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer or
the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer which
are not capitalised as inventory (see note 2(14)(i)),
property, plant and equipment (see note 2(4)) or
intangible assets (see note 2(8)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained
e.g. an incremental sales commission. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when
incurred if the costs relate to revenue which will
be recognised in a future reporting period and the
costs are expected to be recovered. Other costs of
obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract or to
a specifically identifiable anticipated contract;
generate or enhance resources that will be used
to provide goods or services in the future; and
are expected to be recovered. Costs that relate
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically
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other costs that are incurred only because the
Group entered into the contract (for example,
payments to sub-contractors). Other costs of
fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised
as inventory, property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

BFE—
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(14) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

(ii) Other contract costs (Continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of the contract cost
asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for the goods or services to which the
asset relates, less (ii) any costs that relate directly
to providing those goods or services that have not
yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is set out
in note 2(23).

(15) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 2(23)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets
are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(10)(i) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 2(16)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see note 2(23)). A contract
liability would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see

note 2(16)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(15) Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)
For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a
net basis.

(16) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset (note 2(15)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses.

(17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(10)(i).

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and
cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

= A
ARG H

155 R & MIsE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(18) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction (net of tax) from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity shareholders until
the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income
tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company's equity shareholders.

(19) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
(if any) measured in accordance with note 2(13)(i),
trade and other payables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

2. TEGFHERBE (&

(18)

(19)

g2
BEREE SR

BTMRONINBREEREGZ
I8 B A Th B AR A HE R ) 2
SRE R IE) Z R e

HERMEEQADBEERART 2R
mRA (EFRM) XM ZR
B (BEEAE Nz BEERGERE
(OERFTEN) ) RERBRERA
ABEZRE TG EERMDK
EE CBEMETHHERLE-HA
BRMNEBKE LI EHRET R
ERIFTRER 2 B (0 BRI
ZERBRERZRERBRMAE
IR E) StARRBAREFE AR
izt o

85 R EMENRIE

B REMBARIEBEDTRAT
BERE BT IRM EE2(13)()5t
BEZzUMBREEaEN BHRHEM
BNREERZBENAAR &
IR B AEKR > B AE A
fRe



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE - A+ A —HILFEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBERE &
POLICIES (Continued)

(20) Bank and other borrowings (20) SRIT R EH & =X

Bank and other borrowings are initially recognised at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction
costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset
or financial liability, including fees and commissions
paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies
by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Bank and other borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Bank and other borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

(21) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(21) Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE - A+ A —HILFEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(21) Income tax (Continued)

2. TEGFHHERBE (&

(21) FriE#t (&)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-E -+ -A=+—AULFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FETHBERBE (&

POLICIES (Continued)

(21) Income tax (Continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(22) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution plans under
the mandatory provident fund scheme, the ORSO
scheme and state-managed retirement benefits
scheme are charged as expenses as they fall due.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit attributable
to the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

(iii) Share-based compensation

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in share option reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the Hull White Trinomial Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(22) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged or credited to the income
statement for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share capital) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(23) Revenue recognition and other income

(i)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied or service
performed, stated net of rebates and returns.
The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity; and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below. The Group bases its estimates of returns on
historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customers, the nature of transactions and the
specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of products

Revenue from the sale of goods directly to the
customers is recognised at the point that the
control of the inventory have passed to the
customers, which is primarily upon the acceptance
of the products by the customers. The customers
have full discretion over the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customers’ acceptance of the products. The Group
collects cash or bank acceptance notes from the
customers before or upon deliveries of products
through banks. Cash or bank acceptance notes
collected from the customers before product
delivery is recognised as contract liabilities (note
2(15)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(23) Revenue recognition and other income (Continued)

()

(ii)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Installation services income

Installation services income is recognised when the
relevant services are provided.

The Group’s obligation to repair or replace faulty
products under the standard warranty terms, which
cannot be purchased separately and serve as an
assurance that the products sold comply with
agreed-upon specifications at the time of sale.

Finance lease income

Interest income from the finance lease is
recognised on a basis that reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the net investment in the
finance lease.

Other income

(@) Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT

2. EE# = n‘l’ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁj# (‘é‘%

(23) Wz
(i)

iR R EMKRA ()

W it FE BT ()

ZERIRB A
ERBUADRERHESR

BIAR TS & FEST o

FEBEEEIREFTEER
FRRIEE N BHEREE M (K
FERGERTIIERBEER
BEFHEEmEHERT
B ERBBIFRE)

MEREWA
MEBAENEBRANERZE
REREERER FRER K
Z B BEAERHREK -

(i) EttigA

() REHETHEWES
W A Th # AE 29 Z I
BERAHES W EME
FERMEREEEEM
EEM@EEANAXTF
LIHESS - Fr#a T 2 THE
B ¥% HF 7% 4B B FE U AR
BP T AR AR ER 2 A A ER
DB T HESS - A
TR BRI &5t H1
MREER A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_F__F+_HA=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(23) Revenue recognition and other income (Continued)

2. FEGHBERE &

(23) W m bR R EMBA ()

(ii) Other income(Continued)
(b) Handling and services income are recognised

(i) BEmEA (#)
by MIKRBHWATEZE

when services are provided. MR B

(c) Interest income is recognised as it accrues () FEBEWATIHASERF
using the effective interest method. For AR o B 50 LU 85 AL
financial assets measured at amortised cost KEENETMEELN
or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit- NREEBEFTEEHES
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied FAHEMEEm K E (EH

to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(10)(i)).

(d) Dividend income is recognised when the
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shareholder’s right to receive payment is AZHERAEREREER
established prior to the end of the reporting REGEEBSEIIWE
period. =i

(24) Dividend distribution

Final dividends proposed by the Board are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Articles grant the Directors the
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
F 5k R M5 (49

g= AN
07 =]

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(25) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group's top management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria. A discontinued segment is
separately presented from continuing segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(26) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group's presentation
currency. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss, except
those arising from qualifying cash flow hedges
or qualifying net investment hedges which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities, such as equity instruments
held at FVTPL, are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as financial assets at FVTOCI,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

#HE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

TE T T A=A —HIFFEE

POLICIES (Continued)
(26) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iiij) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group

entities (none of which has the currency of a

hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional

currency different from the presentation currency

are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the
translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(26) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii)) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when gain

or loss on disposal is recognised.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the year-end closing rate.

(27) Related parties

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or
(3) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group.

e MBS ERARMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
Br - T HF =+ —HIFFEE

2. I# = n‘l’ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁj# (‘é‘%

(26) SMEEE ()
(i) EEZE] ()

ERBEERE REBIA
BAREFENBREREBEER
EREZHPTANEES
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R#;ﬁ R E % YR

S0 1L R 5 P AYE
?Zﬁ%ﬁlﬁcé‘a?&.:/’éﬁ’l\%i‘%
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m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—E g+ _HA=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(27) Related parties (Continued)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(2) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in note 2(27)(i).

(7) A person identified in note 2(27)(i)(1) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(8) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

There have been a number of amendments to standards
effective in 2022. Amendments which are applicable to the
Group include:

. Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual
Framework;

° Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020,
Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41;

e Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use; and

. Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract.

The application of the above amendments in the current year
had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The assumptions, estimates and judgments are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(10). The recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates and assumptions. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of goodwill
and the impairment (if any) in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Estimated impairment of goodwill (Continued)

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and
also to choose a suitable discount rate and growth rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The net carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
December 2022 was approximately HK$32,996,000
(2021: HK$32,996,000).

More details of the impairment assessment are given in
note 18.

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables and
finance lease receivables

For trade receivables and finance lease receivables,
the Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for ECLs as prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires
the use of the lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables and finance lease receivables.
The loss allowances for financial assets are based
on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgment in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. A considerable
level of judgment is exercised by the Directors when
assessing the financial condition and credit worthiness
of each customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE - A+ A —HILFEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4, EEGHEFRAER (2

JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(iii) Provision for inventories (iii) FEEE
The Group reviews the carrying amounts of inventories rEEBTS—SAERATEEE
at the end of each reporting period to determine ZIREE UREEMEERS R
whether the inventories are carried at lower of cost R EE2(14) Pl & ST EUR AR &
and net realisable value in accordance with the KO EREMEPREHEAR
accounting policy set out in note 2(14). The Directors EERBEEUEFEEZRITT RN
estimate the net realisable value based on the current BEKRGGIEBITEBEFIE T
market situation and historical experience on similar fAfRZzNERIEMI B LVEFE
inventories. Any change in the assumptions would R B I OB 2 A8 FE [B] 5 > 6 (Al It
increase or decrease the amount of inventories write- HERER ZEEFE

down or the related reversals of write-down and affect
the Group's net asset value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-E -+ -A=+—AULFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5.
(a) Revenue
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents
the amounts received and receivable for goods sold
to customers, less returns and discounts and interest
income from finance lease receivables during the year.
An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Revenue WA

Sales of goods EmiiE

Installation services for machinery 11 22 2 AR 75

Revenue from contracts with KEELGHZWE
customers

Finance lease income MEHREWA

Total revenue HBULA

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major products is as follows:

Trading of industrial consumables TXEHERES
Sales of plastic products TR mIEE
Sales of machinery 145 10 2 5

Sales of printed circuit boards ED R 4R B& AR 35 &
Installation services for machinery 141 22 5 BR 75

The timing of revenue recognition of all revenue from
contracts with customers is at a point in time when
customers obtain control of goods or services.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT
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A REBZIWADHTUWT :
2022 2021
—ECfF BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
2,319,064 3,025,320
4,221 7,271
2,323,285 3,032,591
16,613 42,714
2,339,898 3,075,305
WA 35
REIZERENSBENEREN
WA -
2022 2021
—E-C TEC—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
431,729 501,130
445,895 554,370
863,480 1,175,910
577,960 793,910
4,221 7,271
2,323,285 3,032,591
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBmRERME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE - A+ A —HILFEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WMAKRDERE (&
(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (b) oEPIRS

The Group manages its business by a mixture of
both business lines and geographical location. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s top management
for the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the Group
has identified, on a product basis, the following four
reportable segments.

(1) trading of industrial consumables;

(2) processing and manufacturing of plastic products;
(3) manufacturing of machinery; and

(4) processing and trading of printed circuit boards.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's top
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis
to that segment. For example, segment assets may
include inventories, trade receivables, right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment. Segment revenue,
expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except
to the extent that such intra-group balances and
transactions are between group entities within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms
as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets and corporate expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

5.

The segment results for the year ended 31 December

2022 are as follows:

Industrial Plastic
consumables products
TEHER NG
HKS 000 HKS$000
FET FET
REVENUE WA
External sales HIMEE 431,729 445,895
Inter-segment sales (Vote) DB E (W) 23,998 116
Total revenue EETON 455,727 446,011
Segment results RS 32,687 29,211
Unallocated corporate Fankz
expenses TtEER
Operating profit =t
Investment income BEWA
Share of results of associates ~ FE{EEE AR £
Finance costs HHBER
Profit before tax BRHAIRR
Income tax expense FIERER
Profit for the year FERF
Note:

Inter-segment sales are determined at prevailing market rates.

204 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT

Machinery
i
HKS'000
T

867,701
3,081

870,782

799

WARDBERE (&

(b) AERERE ()

DEEE - BERER (B)

HE_Z__

Printed
circuit Other
boards  operations
RIS IR HitgE
HKS'000 HKS'000

FE7 FA7z
577,960 16,613
= 8
577,960 16,621
(14,759) 4,943
=2

F+=A=+—8
LEEZHBEEANT

Eliminations Consolidated

it
HKS$'000
TEm

(27,203)

(27,203)

o A
=]

HKS$'000
TET

2,339,898

2,339,898

52,881

(23,123)

29,758
11,404
5324
(13,415)

33,071
(14,234)

18,837
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December

2022 are as follows:

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Current tax payable
Borrowings

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Capital additions

Depreciation and amortisation

Allowance/(reversal of
allowance) for impairment of
bad and doubtful debts

Share of results of associates

Interest income

Finance costs

Income tax expense

Other non-cash item:
(Reversal of write down)/
written down of inventories

Industrial
consumables
THEER
HKS$'000
FET
BE
AHEE 318,251
BEREER
RANEZz L £EE
REEELE
&
Ak =K 84,766
REEMRE
B
XADEzLEEE
LABESE
Httgr
BEAREM 6,483
e RS 5,475
RERAE
B/ (@R
2
EEHEABEE =
FEUA 125
HHER 406
ERER 7,852
HEthFREEER .
FE GReE) /
R (398)

Plastic
products
TRRG
HK$'000

FET

337,080

116,221

13,226
16,931

280
734
1,854

IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_F__F+_HA=+—HILFE

WARDEBRSE (&

(b) HEEE (4
PEEME FERAM (&

S _E__HF+ZRA=+—HZ2
NEEERGENT !
Printed
circuit Other
Machinery boards  operations Consolidated
W ERIRER HitEE &8
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
1,033,017 425,009 264,180 2,377,537
39,483
208,430
2,625,450
436,415 142,453 44,339 824,194
4,276
227,595
30,989
1,087,054
16,347 4,189 1,634 41,879
24,246 24,626 5,844 77,122
(11,457) - (679) (12,134)
5,324 - - 5,324
677 542 461 2,085
6,475 3,114 2,686 13,415
(1,062) 933 4,657 14,234
(5.063) - = (5.459)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IRRMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-E - g+ At HIEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5.
(Continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

WARDBERE (&

(b) DEPIRE &
PEEE EEREE (B)
HE_Z-_—HF+-"A=+—H

The segment results for the year ended 31 December

2021 are as follows: EFEZDEEEEWNT
Printed
Industrial Plastic circuit Other
consumables products Machinery boards operations  Eliminations  Consolidated
TEHER EELR i ORISR HitgE g &a
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL FET FET FEr FET
REVENUE WA
External sales HIMEE 501,130 554,370 1,183,181 793,910 42,7114 - 3,075,305
Inter-segment sales (Vote) DB E (W) 27,857 260 3433 - 4 (31,554) -
Total revenue EETON 528,987 554,630 1,186,614 793,910 42,718 (31,554) 3,075,305
Segment results RS 44,763 31,285 50,432 (19,670) 39,957 - 146,767
Unallocated corporate Fankz
expenses TEER (26,954)
Operating profit =t 119,813
Investment income BEWA 6,255
Share of results of associates ~ FEMEIHE ABI %% 5,140
Loss on deregistration of SE-ENEAR
a subsidiary B8 (348)
Finance costs HHBER (17,741)
Profit before tax PRiREDRR 113,119
Income tax expense FEHER (28,914)
Profit for the year FEERR 84,205
Note: Wiz

Inter-segment sales are determined at prevailing market rates.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December

2021 are as follows:

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Current tax payable
Borrowings

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Capital additions

Depreciation and amortisation

Allowance/(reversal of
allowance) for impairment of
bad and doubtful debts

Share of results of associates

Interest income

Finance costs

Income tax expense

Other non-cash item:

(Reversal of write down)/
written down of inventories

Impairment loss on goodwill

HE

NEEE
NG5
FANkZEXEE

&ff
PEER
FHEARE

&

RANEZERER

HtE R
BREM
RS
RERAE
B/ (98

A= UNCE
MEHA
HHER
FERER

RS ER

& (HAeE /
HER

BERERR

Industrial
consumables
TEHER
HK$ 000
FEn

334,356

107,810

6,841
5,402

10

78
401
10,461

(3,633)

Plastic
products
padiek-
HKS000
FAT

330,963

115,011

8,632
15,534

173
5,285
3,262

BE__ZF_——

4= A
wRE

WARZEERS (&

F+ZHA=+—HIEFE

(b) DERERE ()
DEHBEE BERER (&
R-_Z-_—F+"HA=+t—HZ

NEEEREGENT !
Printed
circuit Other
Machinery boards operations  Consolidated
B EDRIRERAR Htvgg &a
HKS000 HKS000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FAET
1,099,893 525,802 521,359 2,812,373
41,524
113,988
2,967,885
510,766 204,078 40,255 977,920
10,684
301,167
37,590
1,327,361
29,504 6,066 102 51,145
24,096 26,481 5,891 77,404
(3,955) - (12,686) (16,616)
5,140 - - 5,140
1,000 554 106 1,911
4,957 3,998 3,100 17,741
2,403 2,098 10,690 28,914
2,539 - - (1,094)
- 20,487 - 20,487
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-F-—F+ A=+ —HUEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5.

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)
Geographical information
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong,
Mainland China, other Asia-Pacific countries, North
America and Europe. The Group’s trading of industrial
consumables division is located in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The manufacturing of plastic products,
machinery and printed circuit boards divisions are
located in Mainland China.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical
market is as follows:

Hong Kong 55
Mainland China R g
Other Asia-Pacific countries Hhss KEXR
North America J6 3
Europe BUM

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT
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(b) DERERE ()
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FAEENEBURER FER
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MeAEBMZ THHEREZLER
UREBBRABEAM EBER G
P R EN R 4R B th & RIEFE 85!
BR R E A

FEBNBWAZRMETHZE D2
DIETF

2022 2021
—ECHF B4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET
313,799 356,623
1,644,553 2,164,007
294,037 434,691
4,625 30,154
82,884 89,830
2,339,898 3,075,305



5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)
An analysis of the Group's property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, goodwill and intangible
assets (“specified non-current assets”), and additions to
specified non-current assets, by the geographical area in
which the assets are located is as follows:

IR e MBS ERRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE - A+ A —HILFEE

WARDERS (&

(b) DERERE ()

HMEEK ()

AEEOYME - -BERRE EH
REE -BEREVEE (H5EF
RBEE)) RIEEFRBEEZIE
AREBEEFREMES 220l
o

Additions to
Specified specified
non-current assets non-current assets
EEFRBEE IEEIEREEEZIER
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C 2 IZETZZ 4
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FAET FHET FAET FAET
Hong Kong &5 162,529 176,114 1,010 473
Mainland China R A # 492,479 554,961 40,869 50,672
655,008 731,075 41,879 51,145
Information about major customers FEEREN

No customer of the Group has individually accounted
for over 10% of the Group’s total revenue during
the year (2021: Nil) and no information about major
customers is presented accordingly.

AEEHBEENELAGHAERE
AW ABERBBI0% (T - —
F8\E) RIEZINFTEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-F-—F+ A=+ —HUEE

6. OTHER INCOME, GAIN AND LOSS, NET 6.
Other income Hug A
Gross rental income from YERKREZEE N A

properties and equipment
Handling, tooling and sales of BRI TH KIHERER
scrapped materials

Government grants BT L

Sundry income Hg A

Gain and loss, net W2 R B5 18 5 2B

Gain on disposal of property, HEYZE- BB REE
plant and equipment Z W

Exchange gain/(loss), net ERWE, (B518) F

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT

HAUA > W K 5183 28

2022

—EZZ

HK$'000
TET

2,827

2,116
6,841
5,120

16,904

610
5,647

6,257

23,161

2021
=
HK$ 000
FAET

2,008

1,695
5,669
1,452

10,824

416
(4,594)

(4,178)

6,646



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBIRRMEE (@

INVESTMENT INCOME

Bank and other interest income

Total interest income on financial
assets not at FVTPL

Realised and unrealised gain on other
financial assets

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:
Bank borrowings wholly repayable
within 5 years
Lease liabilities

Total interest expense on
financial liabilities not at FVTPL

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE_F__F+_HA=+—HILFE

7. BEWKA
2022
HK$°000
FHET
IRIT R EAF B U A 2,085
WIER A FEEE2EEEH
FABRDZERMEEY
R B U A 2,085
HittsmEEZEHIR
R R BIR W 9,319
11,404
8. MBEH
2022
—E-=
HK$°000
FET
HTIEEEENFE
BRAERNEZEZ
RITHER 9,891
HEESRE 3,524
WIER A FEETE2EEED)
SAETZZERmAE
BB H 13,415

2021
R
HK$'000
FAET

1,911

1,911

4,344

6,255

2021
TR
HK$°000
TAET

13,442
4,299

17,741

Z— T~ %R Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR e M B ER R MY EE ()

AR e

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—E g+ _HA=+—HIFE

212

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Profit before tax is arrived at after
following:

Staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments)
— Salaries and other benefits
— Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Total staff costs

Reversal of allowance
for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts, net
Auditors’ remuneration
— Group auditor
Depreciation and amortisation on:
— Property, plant and equipment
— Ownership interest in
leasehold land and buildings
held for own use
— Other owned assets
— Intangible assets
— Right-of-use assets
Research and development
expenditure
Short-term lease payments

9. BE¥HiAIEA

charging/(crediting) the

EIE (BEEFHE)

—#rE R EMET
—RIREF] 5B HR

BB T RA

RIZARIB (B [ 53 R

TZ 2B B =
— S BB
E R
—E- -BERRE
—ERHEE L RIEFY
PRE##Em

—HMWBEEEE
—BEEE
—ERREE

Mg

SRS

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

2022
—E__fF
HK$°000
FHET

329,966

45,592

375,558

(12,134)

2,848

16,275
43,423

1,383
16,041

65,810
2,085

BRI EDEF BN GTA) THRE

2021
—ET—F
HK$°000
TET

377,548

38,116

415,664

(16,616)

2,848

15,990
43,945

1,383
16,086

66,177
2,077



10A.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(i) Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments of each Director are set out as below.

For the year ended 31 December 2022:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBIRRMEE (@

For the year ended 31 December

2022

HE_F__F+_HA=+—HILFE

10AEFEH R
() EEHE
SLEEZMERIINT

ILEFRE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
REAAREESE FRAFATAEMBATER) BEEAAREHE

Employer's
contribution to

BE_ZE-_—_+-H=+—H

Allowances  a retirement
Discretionary  and benefits benefit
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme Total
ExH
2ER RIEER
s fig RETEAL BWER HEEE &t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FE7 FET FET FET
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tang To BREE - 1,560 316 - 108 1,984
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman BBEE - 2,080 631 - 18 2,729
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Kan Wai Wah BRELE 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Qu Jinping (Note 1) EETLE W) - - - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFATEE
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan Yt 168 - - - - 168
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin (Note 2) PEBRE Wi2) 54 - - - - 54
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei (Note 1) BERLE W) - - - - - -
Mr. Lam Kwok Ming (Note 3) WEBB & E (Ht3) 10 = = = = 10
Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin (Note 3) TRERE WH3) 10 - - - - 10
302 3,640 947 - 126 5,015
Notes: Wiz
1. During the year, Messrs. Qu Jinping and Huang Zhi 1. REBEESTFEERASTELEDN

Wei waived their directors’ fees under their letters of

appointment.

2. Mr. Cheng Tak Yin resigned as an independent non- 2.
executive Director with effect from 24 November 2022.

3. Messrs. Lam Kwok Ming and Lee Wai Yip, Alvin were 3.
appointed as independent non-executive Directors with
effect from 24 November 2022.

None of the Directors received or will receive any
emoluments in respect of a person accepting office as a
director during the year.

$o

BBIUIFRITES-

3L T LA B B 7R WS I AE R A = o

ZES O REREFAREWRE

MEBETCH_E__F+—A8
T+ OB EHEEIIERNITE

MEREERFRBELLERA"T
T THE+—RAZtHBRERE

FROBETAEEIEMAEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

10A.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)
(i) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021:

1WA EE®IN RER (&)

(i)

EEME @)
BE"_Z-_—H+°"HB=+—H
EFE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

AEAREES FRATARSERBELAREY) BECAARKNS

Fees
ik
HK$'000
FET
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Tang To BREE -
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman BREE -
Non-executive Directors FHUTEE
Mr. Kan Wai Wah BEELE 60
Mr. Qu Jinping (Note 1) EEF R4 (Wst1) -
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTEE
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan ority 168
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin PEBERE 60
Mr. Ho Wei Sem (Note 2) MEREE W#2) -
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei (Note 7) BEREE W) -
288
Notes:

1. During the year, Messrs. Qu Jinping and Huang Zhi
Wei waived their directors’ fees under their letters of
appointment.

2. Mr. Ho Wei Sem resigned as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 1 August 2021 and
waived his director’s fee during his term of office under
his letter of appointment.

None of the Directors received or will receive any
emoluments in respect of a person accepting office as a
director during the year.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT

Salaries

b
HK$ 000
FET

1,524
2,032

Employer's
contribution to
Allowances  a retirement

Discretionary  and benefits benefit
bonuses in kind scheme Total
BEH
BER  BiET ‘
METEA BUER HEE Bt
HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FiEn FiEn Fér FET
1323 - 105 2,952
2,645 - 18 4,695
- - - 60
- - - 168
- - - 60
3,968 - 123 7,935
Miat -

1. REEETARERETELEDN
ZREE RENFRARERRE

2. [ARFEERZE--—FNA—
HEREBIFNTES RE
HEZEEE RINEHARE KRR

FAMETNESHAEMEEH
3L 77 U B 310 s WAL BRAE fe) Bl <& o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10A.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the Directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2021: same).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services (2021: same).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2021: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements and
in the heading of “Related Party Transactions” of the
section of "Report of the Directors” of this annual
report, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company's business to
which the Company was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year (2021: same).

e MBS ERARMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

#HE

1A EZEFEEN R tE=

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

TE T T+ A= —HIEFEE

(#)
EHRNER REERIER

FER EEFELIF T WEE
RARENNERERN (T2 =—
F R o

MERESRFERE=SZMGZ
RE
REE-TE__F+-B=+—
HIEFE AARTEMRENES
RBMEERE =S GHAE (C
T—F EE e

BRANES ZFEFZREHE
ERMEBEARTAZEM %
EREEMRZZER

REE-_T-__F+-/B=+—
HEFE #SEUNEE NZEE
FZREREEARMEBERSR
HAZER EERKREMNRZ %
BCEZ—FER) -

=

t

ERRZ RHAEGHZEKRE

Bk

BRI RS M BRI AT R FR

EEEREZIENTREM AT
ZIREANRBENRAB SRS
ARBDBEREEBTILEAAT
REPITNATREFERNEE
mAEBEAREAMNERNENE
ARBNAFENERNRS 25
FEHN (CEZ—F MR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

10B.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 10B.EERBARAX
2022 2021
£ —E T4
HK$000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Wages, salaries, allowances and fresTE 2R

other benefits HihzH 329,966 377,548
Pension costs — defined contributed plans  3RKIEFI5T &I 2 # 1,779 2,063

Pension costs — social securities RIKEFFHE Z AL
in the PRC FENTERES 43,813 36,053
375,558 415,664

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2021: two) were the Directors, details of whose
emoluments are included in note 10A to the consolidated
financial statements. The emoluments of all of the five
individuals with the highest emoluments for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

Fees B

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e B REMERN
Discretionary bonuses BIBIEAT

Pension fund BIRE

Pension costs — defined contribution plans RAK@FIEHEI 2 =

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

BREAEFMZES

ﬂs%lf%‘@ﬂ%ﬁfﬁfgézqﬂ’ﬁmﬁ
T —F W) hES HEMT
AEEZINE BTN GRS BREM
HI0ABE_S-_—_FR_ZT-—fF
+BA=+—HLEEERSMEN AN
EBENMSEIWT

2022 2021
—E-= —EC—fF
HK$000 HK$ 000
TET THET
7,927 7,366
5,325 8,483

343 311

13,595 16,160



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10B.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued)
Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
Their emoluments are within the following bands:

Emolument bands B < &8 &
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 B TE
2,000,000 7T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 BT E
2,500,000 7%
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 TE
3,000,0007& 7T
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 E
3,500,000 7%
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 &
4,000,000 71
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 =
5,000,00078 7T

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the Directors
or other members of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join, upon joining the Group, leave the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_F__F+_HA=+—HILFE

108.lEE@FIH (&)
RELfUFHMZzES (&)
BEZME T FTIAER

Number of individuals

BE#E
2022 2021
s B —F
1 —
1 1
1 2
2 —
= 1
= 1
5 5

BE_ZE__FR_F"_—F+°A
Zt+—HLEFE AEEHERTAR
SERIEE P A AR
T UMERRSIREFEMA S RINAEE
B Sl Rk R A S By 2 S S A R R A

&e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-E -+ -A=+—AULFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. A1 EIREHR

218

Hong Kong profits tax

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for 2022 is
calculated at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary of

the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the Two-

tiered Profits Tax Rate Regime. For this subsidiary, the first
HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

The PRC enterprise income tax

(i)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Regulation on the Implementation of
the EIT Law, the rate of the PRC companies is 25%. The
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to the PRC
income tax at 25% unless otherwise specified.

(iij) High and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE")

According to the EIT Law and its relevant regulations,
entities that qualified as HNTE are entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15%. Certain of the
Group's subsidiaries are qualified as HNTE and are
subject to the PRC income tax at 15% for 2022.

The 15% preferential tax rate applicable to HNTE is
subject to renewal approval jointly by the relevant
authorities, upon expiry of the three-year grant period,
according to the prevailing income tax regulations.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

EATER

RIS _EERNERLMEANMS
SRR G IZERE165% (T2 Z—
F116.5%) FAH BT AER MK
BABERMERMAS THEERAT
Gk o 5% B B A B B9 E 2,000,000 7T FE R
FROEFIE 8. 25% NI EHIR » M T
ZHERBRB R LL16.5% R R o

PEEXEFRFR

() RB(RETERBRZE) (R
FRISIED D) RAEEFRSIUEE I
&G > REABRRNEKIT525% °
BB EREEIN > REBMURFE
BY B /B8 2 B 7B 25 % B9 1R =R B 4
FREIFT1SHR ©

(i) EHEAMEFE
RB(EEMRERZE) REAERR
BN EeMERMEXEERNELR
ERERIS%HNEEMFSRREK-
FEENETHEBRASD TS
RMEEER RS2 _FHR
15%BIFR TGP EIPT 1SR

BRARBHRMEXMNIS%ER
MEAE = F & T H 2 H R A K AE
RBRBRTHOMMERIERL
EETTHR L



11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Tax charge comprises:
Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
Current year
Over-provision in prior years

The PRC enterprise income tax
Current year
Over-provision in prior years

Deferred tax (note 22)
Deferred taxation relating to the
(reversal) and origination of

temporary differences
Impact of change in tax rates

Income tax expense for the year

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBmRERME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE - A+ A —HILFEE

MIEX HEE .
FHAIRIA
BERAMENR
REE
FFEEZR

PEEEMRER
REE
TFEEZR

IRIEMIA (ffat22)
RERER P8 REEXY
IEIEFR TS

RESHTE

FEZAMEHRER

M. FRIFIRER (#)

2022
—EZZ

HK$000
TET

1,918
(12)

1,906

15,169

(1,659)

13,510

(1,182)

(1,182)

14,234

2021
—EF-—%
HK$°000
TAET

2,388
(124)

2,264

18,677
(2,294)

16,383

7,373
2,894

10,267

28,914

Z— T~ %R Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11.
The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using

FRSIER (&

FEBBFRRANGA B LUERRES AT
w2 AR R ELE ZIEmME A

the domestic taxation rates applicable to profits of the 2Mh
consolidated companies as follows:
2022
HK$°000
FET
Profit before tax PRI AT EF 33,071
Tax calculated at the domestic income WU ZAHFFEE16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) (ZE-—F :1165%) 518 5,456
Tax effect of share of results of e =—YNCIESEap =P
associates A (878)
Tax effect of expenses that are not ST E PSRRI A BF A AT
deductible in determining MENEZHREBE &
taxable profit 2,857
Tax effect of income that is not ST IE FE SR AR A B HE R AR
taxable in determining HWABREBEZ 2
taxable profit (613)
Over-provision of current tax REEXRHARIBREH
in current year, net LR AR 194
Over-provision of current tax BREFERPRIERE
in prior years, net EZ- (1,671)
Tax effect of temporary differences/tax KD ERMEER MG
losses not recognised BEERE 2 15,708
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses  fERBEKRER ZIRIE
previously not recognised BEZE (915)
Impact of change in tax rate MEEFHLE -
Additional deductible allowance for  Ff 2% & R AIEE MR TSR
research and development expense (8,687)
Effect of different tax rates of THMAEHEREE Y
subsidiaries operating in other MBARMEER 2 &
jurisdictions 2,783
14,234

220 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

2021

BT —F

HK$ 000
THET

113,119

18,665

(848)

7,295

(606)

603

(2,418)

5,827

(3,259)
2,894

(5,485)

6,246

28,914



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

13.

The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company is based
on the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December
2022 attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
approximately HK$24,414,000 (2021: approximately
HK$89,732,000) and on 861,930,692 (2021: 861,930,692)
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 December
2022.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue for both years.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

Tax effects relating to each component of other
comprehensive (expense)/income are as follows:

12.

13.

2022

—ECCE

Before tax
amount
RRiRA
k.l
HKS$ 000
FET
Share of other comprehensive B BE AT EM
income of associates 2ENE (3,142)
Surplus on revaluation of properties ~ ERY¥EHBER
held for own use 8,929
Exchange differences arising from BEENEBUHERRE
translation of financial statements EEZERER
of foreign operations (126,849)
Reclassification adjustments: EMHERE:
Release of translation reserve upon FE-HNB AR
deregistration of a subsidiary HERRHER W =
(121,062)

Tax
expenses

REER
HK$'000
FET

(1,477)

(1.477)

IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-F - &+ A+ AUIEE

sREHN-—EFK
RABIREFEARESRETERE
RBATRAABRERE AEBGE
EEEE T "F+B=+—81t
EEZmMNEA24,414,0008 7T (ZF
— —4F 1 #989,732,0008 ) REE_
T _F+A=+—HIEFERNBEHE
T EP%861,930,6928 (T ——4
861,930,692/%) 5t & -

MR MEFERTEETEETZER
oA EZSSRETR AT

FFEENKFRERZEMEE
(2ih) M
BRMAM2E 1) WES AR S
ZRBYENT

2021

“ET-F
Net-of-tax Before tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount amount expenses amount
mriRE PRIRE MkHRE
&8 &% HEEAR £
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FEr FET
(3,142) 934 - 934
7,452 17,461 (674) 16,787
(126,849) 37,306 - 37,306
- 348 - 348
(122,539) 56,049 (674) 55,375

Z— T~ %R Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e MR (@)

W 3

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

14.

15.

DIVIDEND

14. g8

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (31

December 2021: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COST OR VALUATION

At 1 January 2021

Exchange realignment

Transfer from right-of-use assets upon
exercise of purchase option (note 17)

Reclassification

Additions

Disposals

Adjustment on revaluation

At 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022

Exchange realignment
Reclassification

Additions

Disposals

Adjustment on revaluation

At 31 December 2022

Analysis of cost or valuation:
At 31 December 2022

At cost

At valuation

At 31 December 2021
At cost
At valuation

RAS G

e

ER8E

R R R
ERRARET (1217)

578

FE

BREREE

HE
BRERE

RZEZZH+ZR=+-H

BAREEZ T
RZEZZF+ZRA=+-H
BRAE

it

RIEZ-5+ZF=+-H
N
iafE

Ownership
interest in
leasehold land
and buildings
held for own
use

BAEE
THRkEFH
FiA#ER
HK$000
FET

439,312
8,902

82

1,317

449,613

(26,783)

(6,731)

416,099

416,099

416,099

449,613

449,613

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

EFETEFIREEE

B=+—HLEERBARE
F+ZA=+—H: 8| -

15. ME - -BERKRE

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment

i KE
e
HK$'000
TEr

194,554
5,073

2,404
7,510
(7,148)

202,393

(15.334)

8,716
(1,491)

194,284

194,284

194,284

202,393

202,393

Plant and
machinery

BERNES
HK$'000
TEr

649,646
13,962

8,519

12,630
(29,330)

655,427

(42,177)
16,065
21,913

(11,873)

638,755

638,755

638,755

655,427

655,427

Motor
vehicles

RE
HK$'000
TEr

31,657
609

2,236

(3,103)

31,399

(1,799)

1,912
(1,184)

30,328

30,328

30,328

31,399

31,399

Assets
under
construction

ERIR
HK$ 000
FEr

2,336
314

(2,404)
17,307

17,553

(1,488)
(16,065)

17,553

17,553

— - — —

—

Et=

—=—_

—

Total

M
HKS 000
TEr

1,317,505
28,860

8,519

39,765
(39,581)
1317

1,356,385

(88,181)

32,541
(14,548)
(6,731)

1,279,466

863,367
416,099

1,279,466

906,772

449,613

1,356,385



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE - A+ A —HILFEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % B E R (=
(Continued)
Ownership
interest in
leasehold land
and buildings Furniture, Assets
held for own fixtures and Plant and Motor under
use equipment machinery vehicles construction Total
BRHEE
THREFH RS
iR ELH BERER HE HRIR af
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND  BetifE R
AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2021 RZ®2--%-B-H - 171,217 526,298 24,817 - 722,332
Exchange realignment ERHRE 154 4343 10,145 455 - 15,097
Transfer from right-of-use assets upon RITEEE R
exercise of purchase option (note 17) EREEESY (HH17) - - 2,609 - - 2,609
Depreciation provided for the year FERERE 15,990 9,671 31,681 2,593 - 59,935
Written back on disposals HER R - (6,963) (27,984) (2,693) - (37,640)
Eliminated on revaluation ERY 6l (16,144) - - - - (16,144)
At 31 December 2021 and RZE_-£+°A=1+-H
1 January 2022 R-ZE--&£-A-H - 178,268 542,749 25,172 - 746,189
Exchange realignment EREE (615) (13,155) (32,020 (1,307) - (47,097)
Deprediation provided for the year FENERE 16,275 9,090 31,842 2,491 - 59,698
Written back on disposals HERRR - (1,311) (10,164) (1,108) - (12,583)
Eliminated on revaluation Bt (15,660) - - - - (15,660)
At 31 December 2022 RZE_ZE+ZA=1+-H - 172,892 532,407 25,248 - 730,547
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31 December 2022 RZE-ZZH+ZA=+-H 416,099 21,392 106,348 5,080 - 548,919
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-F+°A=+-H 449,613 24,125 112,678 6,227 17,553 610,196
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

= A
ﬁ/Tl:l

RAF5ER RN EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

#HE

15.

—E T F /A= —HUEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The ownership interest in leasehold land and buildings of the
Group were revalued as at 31 December 2022 on the open
market existing use basis by Cushman & Wakefield Limited,
independent firms of professional valuers. The surplus
arising on revaluation attributable to the Group has been
credited to other comprehensive income for the year and
is accumulated separately in equity in property revaluation
reserve.

Depreciation expense of approximately HK$44,452,000
(2021:
in cost of sales,

approximately HK$44,037,000) has been expensed
approximately HK$907,000 (2021:
approximately HK$814,000) in selling and distribution costs
and approximately HK$14,339,000 (2021:
HK$15,084,000) in administrative expenses.

approximately

Had ownership interest in leasehold land and buildings
been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortisation, the carrying value of leasehold land and
buildings would have been approximately HK$272,104,000
(2021: approximately HK$304,508,000).

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s ownership
interest in leasehold land and buildings held for own
use with an aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$124,500,000 (2021: approximately HK$159,970,000)
were pledged to secure certain bank borrowings granted to
the Group (note 38).

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

15.

ME - -BER=E (&

HERITERAB (B2 HEHER)
NI ZHF+"RA=+—H>LRT
REAMHBZEE AXEERRE LI K
BFNmEEEGRETEG - FEHM
EEZRBRBEEALNFEAMEE N E
BB RPN EEHBEHER -

WEBERLAA44,452,0008 7T (ZF
— —4 1 #944,037,000% 7T) BE W st
AR B E A > 49907,0008 7T (Z
—%F 1 #£9814,0007870) RO HE R
K2#914,339,0008 T (ZE - —F 1 4
15,084,000 7T) iRITEE A ©

BEAETHRIEFOMAEER U
AR REHITE R #HE > HE T &
BFZIRITIREBENA272,104,00058 70
(Z=T——4 : #9304,508,00058 7T) ©

RIZEZ_ZHF+"_R=+—H &x&EH
BRRISMm B AEAE LM REFHNRE
R HERMmEAI%A124,500,00078 7T
—&E T —4 :49159,970,00057T) °
EARTFAEBBRBIBTERZER
(MFzE38) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's properties measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

IR e MBS ERRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE - A+ A —HILFEE

16. XL TEEE

(i)

AFEERE

TEREIINBESEEHFRFAES
EENYMEZATEE LZ(E
AYHHREEL ) H1358 AFE
BAEMAEZATEE=ZRER
BhRETEERGE - RATER
SAENEZERIDESEN TG
ERZEZMABBZIRELERE
BUYBRERE :

—RBREE: EERAF - ERE
AHE BRFEAREEENS
BREBRTHZREHERE) 5
BZRVEE

BERMEE: @ﬁﬁ%:#&@)\
g BIREEINFEF—REBRZIE
BEAYME BXREAEARTT
BERBUARRB sSTEZAFEE.
THHEHARBELEN SR
ZEABIE -

B-EREE  KAEATITEREE
BBt EZ AT EE.

Z— T~ %R Annual Report 2022

225



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—E g+ _HA=+—HIFE

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES

(Continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continu

Recurring fair value
measurement of assets:
Ownership interest in leasehold
land and buildings held

for own use

Recurring fair value
measurement of assets:
Ownership interest in leasehold
land and buildings held

for own use

ed)

RN AT B
HEAE:
EAELIR
BPORARR

RENATRE
HERE:
SREALIR
B R

226 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

()

31 December
2022

RZEB_Z
+=ZB=+—H
HK$'000
FAET

416,099

31 December
2021
N
+ZA=+-H
HK$'000
FET

449,613

16. MELAFEEHNE (&

AFEERE E

Fair value measurement at
31 December 2022 categorised into
RZEBZ"F+-A=+—8H
ATAEHRIENTHHE

Level 1

F—EB=X
HK$ 000
FET

Level 2

BIER
HK$'000
FET

Level 3

F=EX
HK$000
FET

416,099

Fair value measurement at

31 December 2021 categorised into
RZE-Z—F+"A=+—H
NTBEFEFEUTHE

Level 1

B
HK$'000
F#T

Level 2
FIEBR
HK$'000

FET

Level 3
EZER

HK$'000
FET

449,613



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022,
there were no transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

All of the Group’s ownership interest in leasehold land
and buildings held for own use were revalued as at
31 December 2022. The valuations were carried out by
independent firm of professional valuers, Cushman &
Wakefield Limited, which is a world-wide commercial
real estate services firm with recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued. The
Group's property manager and the chief financial
officer have discussion with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuations
are performed at the annual reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

Valuation techniques

fhE Rl

Ownership interest in leasehold (a) Direct comparison approach

land and buildings held for

own use BEELEBRHER
BERAETHRIEFTH
PrEEED (b) Income approach

WA EA

IR e MBS ERRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE - A+ A —HILFEE

16. MELAFEEHNE (&

(i)

(ii)

Unobservable input

TABREYE

(Discount)/premium on quality

AFEERE B

N _EBE_—FR_B__F+Z
BE=+—HEERILREEHEZ
BoZEXAINRFE=ZBRELH-EF
ATEEREEHzEREL |
REAERZBR RBREEEH

=7
a1 ©

FTEXASEEZZBEREE LM KIZ
FHREEEaRN T
+TTRA=t—HESTEMRH-ZEM
TFRBIzFXGEM-BER
TERAE (RRMENEERME
BRHEABDEEEREMRYER
BRAMEGLER) Tl -REE
RERA AEEZYELERERE
MEREENFEEGRZRR
oA REE(ENE 5% ©

E-ERATEEHEEN

Range

#E

-10% to 5%

of building

BTHE

Capitalisation rate

BARER

8 Grin) /RE -10%%E5%

4% to 7.5%
4%%7.5%

Z— T~ %R Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE_ZF_—

F+ZHB=+—HILFE

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES
(Continued)

(i)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
(Continued)

(a)

The fair value of properties located in Hong Kong
is determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis,
adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to
the quality of the Group’s properties compared
to the recent sales. The valuations take into
account the characteristic of the properties which
included the location, size, view, floor level, year
of completion and other factors collectively. Higher
premium for higher quality properties will result in
a higher fair value measurement.

The fair value of properties in the PRC is
determined using income approach by the
capitalisation of the net rental income derived
from the existing leases and/or achievable in
existing market with reversionary income potential
by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates.
Capitalisation is estimated by the valuer based on
the risk profile of the properties being valued. The
higher the rates, the lower the fair value. Prevailing
market rents are estimated based on recent lettings
within the subject properties and other comparable
properties. The lower the rents, the lower the fair
value.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

16. MELAFEEHNE (&

(i)

FZERAFEEFEEN (@)

(a)

UREBBNYMEZATEE
ERERLEGHEAIEE &
TFEZ2ZHLERY X HH
EZEBVPHEREE WA
EEYEEEFLRBNH
HRE-EEHEEERDE
ZHE% BEYMEZME B
M REB BB EMRFNK
HMERSE > —HMUAZE -
HRNEEEMEIZERS
wEFTUERERSEZAT
EBEstEHE-

ERENDEZ RN FERB
WASEZRBEEALER
RIRBEBEOR " HERMTR
BRRBAREBHNZFEZI
ABEXE - EREREEMEZ
REVENRBRRERT G R
RS A FEBEGE-FT
THAEREMERAME
L= ER T B E RS o
MR AFEERE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
R E "+ HA=+—HIFE

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES 16. MEALAFEETE &

(Continued)
(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
(Continued)
(b) (Continued)
The movements during the year in the balance
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as
follows:

(i) F=ZBRL2TFEEFAEEHN (&

Ownership interest in leasehold BERAE T KRIEFH

land and buildings held FrE#ERR
for own use:
At 1 January w—A—H
Additions NE
Exchange realignment ER
Depreciation provided for the year EEFTERE
Surplus on revaluation B RER
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H

Surplus on revaluation and currency adjustment of
ownership interest in leasehold land and buildings
held for own use is recognised in other comprehensive
income in “property revaluation reserve” and
“translation reserve” respectively.

(b) (&
FEZBRRNFEBEFZNEG
BERAEERNZEHUWT :

2022 2021
—E-_fF —EC—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
449,613 439,312

= 82

(26,168) 8,748
(16,275) (15,990)
8,929 17,461
416,099 449,613

BERHELMREFHMARRE
mZEHEGREBRAEE D
BRNEMEERET XS
fhEEIMUE R

Z— T~ %R Annual Report 2022

229



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBlRRME (B

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FREEE
Land use Plant and Land and Motor
rights machinery  buildings vehicles Total
ITERE BERES ITHREF RE wE
(note a) (note b)
(Hiita) (Ht5tb)

HK$'000 — HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
TET FAT TET TET TET

cost 3%
At 1 January 2021 <\_7_ F—HA—H 57,821 11,589 70,581 608 140,599
Exchange realignment R 1,714 369 1,831 - 3,914
Additions /d\% - 2,007 9,373 - 11,380
Transfer to property, plant and R{TEE B #EE
equipment upon exercise of ~ BEME -HEK
purchase option (note 15) = (HEE15) - (8,519) - - (8,519)
Written off 1 - - (6,531) - (6,531)
At 31 December 2021 and RZBZ—fF
1 January 2022 +ZB=+—H&
—E-"#—HF—H 59,535 5,446 75,254 608 140,843
Exchange realignment ERFE (5,094) (461) (5,918) - (11,473)
Additions NE - - 8,696 - 8,696
Modification of lease term HERMIEET - - 642 - 642
Written off 24 - - (7,721) - (7,721)
At 31 December 2022 i
+-B=+—H 54,441 4,985 70,953 608 130,987
ACCUMULATED Reti &
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2021 RWZE-—&—F—H 18,671 2,353 25,754 183 46,961
Exchange realignment ER A 579 82 697 - 1,358
Depreciation provided FEINERE
for the year 1,249 924 13,791 122 16,086
Transfer to property, plant and FA{T155E B &
equipment upon exercise of BB &
purchase option (note 15) = (WaE15) - (2,609) - - (2,609)
Written off 1 35 - - (6,531) - (6,531)
At 31 December 2021 and RZBZ—&
1 January 2022 +ZRE=+—HK
- "%#—HF—H 20,499 750 33,711 305 55,265
Exchange realignment ERHE (1,821) (88) (2,860) - (4,769)
Depreciation provided FERERB
for the year 1,206 615 14,099 121 16,041
Written off 1 5 - - (7.721) - (7,721)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZEZZ
+ZA=+—H 19,884 1,277 37,229 426 58,816
NET BOOK VALUES REREE
At 31 December 2022 RZEZ-Z
+-B=+—H 34,557 3,708 33,724 182 72,171
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ—&
+-A=+—H 39,036 4,696 41,543 303 85,578
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17.

18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_F__F+_HA=+—HILFE

17. EREEE (&)

Note a:  The land use rights had a remaining lease term of Wizta: THMERENFGHERRI0E
between 10 to 50 years. At 31 December 2022, none S50F - R B _F+_A=+—
of the Group’s land use rights were pledged to secure B AEEETIHMERESIER
certain bank borrowings granted to the Group (2021: O ERKR T AREBBRIEITER
approximately HK$3,217,000) (note 38). ZER(CTEZ—F 43,217,000

&) (Mfat38) °

Note b:  The Group has leased several land and buildings for Wizt AEBCHEA ST REBFE
offices and factories. Lease terms are negotiated on an WMAEREERR HEGRRZE
individual basis and contain a wide range of terms and BB BN > 6 & A [B) B 8RR Az 16
conditions. Tenures of the leases range from 1 to 10 HFoFHEAIEI0F
years.

GOODWILL 18. B &

HK$000
FAET
cosT 9783
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 A BT —F—HF—H~
and 31 December 2022 BT —F+"_HA=+—HBkK
TECF+-"H=+—H 53,483

ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT ReHRE

At 1 January 2021 N ZEZ—F—HF—H -

Impairment loss recognised for the year KEECHEBAERRE 20,487

At 31 December 2021 ATET—F+"HA=+—HK

and 31 December 2022 —_E__F+”"A=+—H 20,487

CARRYING AMOUNT IREE

At 31 December 2022 R-ZEB__#+”"A=+—H 32,996

At 31 December 2021 A TE_—F+"H=+—H 32,996

Z— T~ %R Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. & (&

232

The amount represents goodwill arising from the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited
("KFE") in 2013. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill has been allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit, representing KFE, a subsidiary in the processing and
trading of printed circuit boards segment.

The recoverable amount of this cash-generating unit is
determined based on a value in use calculation which uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and a pre-tax
discount rate of 18.4% (2021: 20.2%) per annum. The cash
flows beyond that five-year period have been extrapolated
using a steady 3.0% (2021: 3.0%) per annum growth rate.
This growth rate is based on the printed circuit boards

EEEAR _—_E—=FRKEHEZ
ERNEEEERAD (MBE-E)) H
100% & Atz m & 4 o BUE R 2 MU
BESEZERIIBEEEEN ) BNR
RERARIN TR B 5 DM B AT 1H e
—#o

ZIREELEBUNAIIRCISIEIRESE
BEEE ERAENEEBIEN
FEAMBEBE EFEX5H18.4% (=

T —H:20.2%) WRATAEIRE - 2
BHESERSNSEIERERERA3.0%
(CBZ—5% :3.0%) WEEBRERHE
Bogit EREZEMVENRBIAZRARMIIT
HIBRTEA > M A48 EN R 4R BS ki 0 T

industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the average TERNFHRMAEBEX -FEEARAEE
long-term growth rate for the printed circuit boards industry. MWEMBARKRKERESRA S REHME

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate

SHER HhEEREHEREN XY

to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include BHEIGFRENHBE ZEZBER
budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimations are based REEEEHMGERNTEH -ES18
on KFE's past performance and management's expectations EEAERNEENTTEEFERT  EH

for the market development. The Directors believe that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the carrying amount of KFE to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of KFE.

The Directors reviewed the carrying value of the goodwill,
taking into account an independent valuation report
prepared by a professional valuer, Cushman & Wakefield
Limited. Based on the assessment and the valuation report,
the Directors are of the opinion that no impairment loss
is needed for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$20,487,000).
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ZEBRBRIGERHR _ENREEE
BBHR RO EEE-

EECENEENEREEE BRFEE
IREEMGEM-BERRTERAEZ
B GERS RETHMGHERS
REE_Z__F+_-_HB=+—HIF
E BERLAEEREFREREE (ZZ
Z—%F :20,487,0003& 7T) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

COST
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2022

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2021
Amortisation for the year

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022

Amortisation for the year

At 31 December 2022

CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021

Customer relationship is amortised on a straight-line basis

over its useful life of 10 years.

IR e MBS ERRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE - A+ A —HILFEE

X 2

RZE-F—-H—RA-
“EI-F+A=t—8BkK
“EIHF+ZA=1t—H

Rt
RTE - —F—HF—H
FEHH
N_E_—F+B=+—HK
—EF—RA—H
FE#
RZE-__H#+"B=+—H

AREIE
TR HF+-RA=+—H

AZE-—F+ZA=+—H

Customer
relationship
EFRR%
HK$'000
FHET

13,831

10,143
1,383

11,526
1,383

12,909

922

2,305

ERRERBEREIRIEEREN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20.
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR > BANE
Share of post-acquisition profits and ~ DEUREE®R 2 5 F) KR
reserves, net of dividends received (OBBEWRE)
Amounts due from associates JE U B A B Rk IE
Less: allowance for impairment of B RIBERBERE

bad and doubtful debts

(@) Amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In
the opinion of the Directors, the amounts will not
be repayable within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period and are accordingly classified as non-
current assets. The individually impaired receivable of
approximately HK$5,749,000 (2021: HK$6,278,000)
is mainly a debt due from an associate which is of
age over three years. The other amounts due from
associates do not contain impaired assets.

(b) Interests in associates at the end of the reporting period

include goodwill of approximately HK$313,000 (2021:
HK$313,000).

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

B

BAE S

2022 2021
s B —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
7,680 7,680
31,803 31,393
39,483 39,073
5,749 8,729
(5,749) (6,278)

= 2,451

39,483 41,524

FEWREE A 2 RIBNREKE
R EANERIBEEEERR
BEERA WHRBEBUAGRRELS
B+ ZEBRWERE WIMEIER
& E o (BRI EW I E A B RIE
F1E 495,749,000 T (Z & = —
& 16,278,000 7T)  FEHNZ
BEABNARERE BB =FH
Bk o EAthFE U B A B FIB I R
BEEREEE-

RREEER BE QAT RGEEE
EREE9313,0008 T (& - —
£ : 313,000 7T) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBmRERME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE - A+ A —HILFEE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. BHERNEELS (B
Details of the principal associates of the Group at KEBXEHERAINRZIZEZZ
31 December 2022 are as follows: +-B=+—HZEBWT:

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation/ registered capital
registration attributable
Name of associate and operation to the Group Principal activities
AV FEBEAG
=R E R EMES
BE QR %E FRiZ it 75 E{EZ LA FEER
%
Suzhou Sanguang Science & The PRC 21.1 Manufacturing of industrial
Technology Co., Ltd. machinery, equipment
and supplies
FRIN=HREZRBBRAE E TERM RER
TXAmRE
Guangzhou Potop Experimental The PRC 22.5 Manufacturing and trading
Analysis Instrument Co., Ltd. of the experimental
analysis instrument
BNTERERSMESREBRLAT  HEH ERDMBRRERES
The above table lists out the associates of the Group which, M ERERBERBDILEREERAE
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results HAFEEERN L EEBFXREETFER
of the Group for the year or form a substantial portion of BEEFEMMKRT

the net assets of the Group at the end of the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. BHE AT EE (i)
In the opinion of the Directors, the associates of the %%5@%7&%2%%@5%%%@%
Group are all individually not material. Aggregate financial FBER AEBEZHMERNBDGEUHE
information in respect of the Group's associates is set out BI&RFIMT
below:
2022 2021
-F== T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Aggregate carrying amount of REEHBRRPEFIEEKX
individually immaterial associates in ~ B&E AR SEREE
the consolidated financial statements 39,483 39,073

Aggregate amounts of the Group's FEBRGEBMEATDGEEE
share of those associates

Profit from continuing operations FERE 2w A 5,324 5,140
Other comprehensive (expense)/income EfthZ2mE (ZH) U (3.142) 934
Total comprehensive income WermEml = 2,182 6,074
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BImRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-F - &+ A+ AUIEE

21. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 21. EINRL &

Minimum lease receipts

REHEEWRA
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—-F
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Amounts receivable under FEWmERERE
finance leases: o I
Not later than one year —FER 64,676 152,773
Later than one year and B_ERE
not later than five years 15,725 82,542
80,401 235,315
Less: Unearned finance income & : RBIRHUFHFUA (3,969) (16,931)
76,432 218,384
Overdue finance lease AHAENRERE
receivables FIE 46,092 65,860
Present value of minimum REHAERAZ
lease receipts REEE 122,524 284,244
Less: Allowance for impairment 8 : RIZERBEZEE
of bad and doubtful debts (6,574) (7,896)
115,950 276,348

Less: Finance lease receivables & : I AREBEZ

under current assets FEWmMERE
A
Non-current finance lease ERFERMERE
receivables A

The Group has entered into finance lease arrangements with
their customers. The terms of finance leases entered into for
periods ranged from one to three years.

1= Eh1E

™I

Present value of
minimum lease receipts

REAEWRAZIRE
2022 2021
—E-C —_E_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr
61,376 141,408
15,056 76,976
76,432 218,384
N/A RER  NAREH
76,432 218,384
46,092 65,860
122,524 284,244
(6,574) (7,896)
115,950 276,348
(100,939) (200,143)
15,011 76,205

EEARERHRIIMERAELH -ME

HEENETHRA—FF =

—=— —

—_—

=4Fo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBHREME (&)

7 N =1

For the year ended 31 December 2022

#HE

21.

—E T F /A= —HUEFE

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts are as follows:

Balance at 1 January n—B—B#eR
Exchange realignment ERFEE

Impairment loss recognised MRz RERE
Unused amount reversed [l # R B A 8L ZA

Balance at 31 December

At 31 December 2022, the allowance for credit loss
represents lifetime expected credit loss recognised for
finance lease receivables under simplified approach. Details
of impairment assessment of finance lease receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 40(b)

(iv).

All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and there were no
unguaranteed residual values in connection with finance
lease arrangements or contingent lease arrangements of the
Group that need to be recorded as at 31 December 2022
(2021: Nil).

Finance lease receivable balances are secured over the plant
and equipment leased. The Group is not permitted to sell
or re-pledge the collateral in the absence of default by the
lessee.

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the
contract date for the entire lease term. The effective interest
rates are ranging from 4.9% to 16.1% per annum (2021:
from 2.7% to 26.9% per annum).

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

R+ZRB=+—RB%8k

\

21. R EBERERE (&)

RIZRHERBESBERIOT

2022 2021
—E-C =B
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
7,896 20,171
(643) 411
1,682 3,461
(2,361) (16,147)
6,574 7,896

RIEZF+-RB=+—H GEEB
BEERARBESLEIMERRERE
MIERRNEREREEEEFE 8
ETETTF+"A=+—HIEEEAR
RN B B B8 2R E T E
Mt 5E40(b)(iv) ©

FrEMAHKRE—EEENEREE
RIEZZF+ZRA=+—HBAEEL
BETDEGANEREZRHRINATE
ZHHNERRERGE (CEZ—5F .

L
diE) o

RN ERERRRRESEE 2 i
RBEFERE - ERBANRBEN £
ERENSHEREMBRAFHRTR-

NEHEMNXRNARREE HER
REBBEIRN SEEMNENL 9%
Z16.1% (ZEBEZ—F  EMER2T%E
26.9%) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE - A+ A —HILFEE

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

The following are the major components of deferred tax

22 RERBEE BR
UTAAEMERDNELRBELE
(B WEERBREAEEREFE

assets/(liabilities) recognised by the Group and movements

thereon during the current and prior years: 2 &H)
Intangible
assets arising  Decelerated  Revaluation
from business tax  of land and Tax
combination  depreciation building losses Others Total
EBGH
Ef2 Wi Tk
BREE  WERRE BFER REeRE Hitr Lk
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 RZE_-%5-A-H (610) 755 (20,522) 2,244 24,211 6,078
Exchange realignment ERBEE - - (264) - 615 351
Impact of change in tax rate RS- FIE - - 2,048 - (2,894) (846)
Charged to equity RERNRE - - 2,722) - - (2,722)
(Charged)/credited to income RUEE G08) /BN (Hat11)
statement (note 11) 228 86 - (2,244) (5,443) (7.373)
At 31 December 2021 and RZBZ-F+°R=+-H
1 January 2022 RZE__£-F—-H (382) 841 (21,460) - 16,489 (4,512)
Exchange realignment ERHE - - 785 - (1,374) (589)
Charged to equity i daeilcs - - (1.477) - - (1.477)
Credited to income statement ~ RUTERFIA (#is#11)
(note 11) 228 78 - 208 668 1,182
At 31 December 2022 RZFZZE+ZA=+-H (154) 919 (22,152) 208 15,783 (5,396)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(Continued)

For the purposes of consolidated statement of financial
position presentation, certain deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
have been offset in accordance with the conditions set out
in HKAS 12. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position:

EIERMIRE E
JEMIEAE

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the
following unutilised tax losses available for offsetting against
future taxable profits for which no deferred tax asset is
recognised:

Tax losses expiring: HMIEE 1R 5 HA
Within 5 years RAEFRN
Over 5 years =y ke
Without expiry date mEIERE

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in
associates are insignificant.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

22. 5

RIERIREE &R (&

Riza BRI R 2R BIRE(E
BB EAD) BRI EHEERERE
IRIERIBEEE/ (BR) KBHEH T
N B 2N iEaHBRRRANE
RIBERER DT ©

2022 2021
B BT —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
22,998 28,722
(28,394) (33,234)
(5,396) (4,512)

BRAARIRIARE E’JLL%?ELE%E

GHEMEBRARNEE P EE
%R@%'J“IEB%ZL%‘EEEEO

ERZEFEE%

REEEER  AEBBUTRBAR
TRES IR ] A (R4 8 B R FE SR AR A M

EIEDIRIERIBEE
2022 2021
—E-C B —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET
73,356 49,928
159,746 86,687
397,469 364,498
630,571 501,113

REERAB R AMNEREEZT A

Ep



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BImRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-F - &+ A+ AUIEE

23. INVENTORIES 23. 78
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (a) IFEFMBRAXRFPHNEEERE

position comprise:

2022 2021
—E-C T4
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trading inventories and B EFEREMN M
finished goods 224,947 190,400
Work in progress TR 66,923 114,520
Raw materials R 158,941 237,509
450,811 542,429
At 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of R _HF+"RB=+—H'%%
inventories that were stated at fair value less costs E2REELNEAFEERIES
to sell is approximately HK$136,951,000 (2021: B 2SR B 497%136,951,000%8 7 (Z
HK$151,340,000). £~ —4£ 151,340,000 7T) %
BRo
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as b) BMRARIZTAAEGZNEFES
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: EOMAT
2022 2021
—E-= == S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Carrying amount of inventories sold B H& & &I EREE 1,973,053 2,531,908
Write-down of inventories FEIMER 655 18,576
Reversal of write-down of 17 & MR o] 33
inventories (6,114) (19,670)
1,967,594 2,530,814
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. B 5 R HMEWKRRE

2022 2021

—EC —ET—fF

HK$'000 HK$°000

FAET FAET

Trade receivables B 5 EWEIE 677,708 871,298
Less: allowance for impairment of B RIBERBERE

bad and doubtful debts (82,850) (106,000)

Trade receivables, net BB HRIE T 594,858 765,298

Bill receivables TR EUEIE 70,507 35,942

Total trade and bill receivables B 5 KREWEIERIEAE%E 665,365 801,240

Other receivables HhpE W =E 82,842 65,685
Less: allowance for impairment of B RIBRBERS

bad and doubtful debts (15,289) (16,705)

67,553 48,980

Prepayments TETRR 36,267 37,153

Amounts due from related parties FE U B Es 5 2 =18 93 27

769,278 887,400

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade EENAEFHEMBBWRIEZ REE

and other receivables approximate to their fair values. All HENTEERL B85 REME

trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or WO R TE TR HA R 1 — £ P9 UK [B] 3 78 50 75 B

recognised as expense within one year. %o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBmRERME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE - A+ A —HILFEE

24. B R EMEWRIE (&
AEMBTHES 2 THEEHIA0
XEN0R - BARAEBMEEBER
MESREREEREL SRR
SR HIEEA0(b)(iv) e RIREAEE R » 1%
HEOMEONMRPIERAERENE
SREWZERIERE DT

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The Group grants an average credit period of 90 days to
120 days to customers. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills
receivable are set out in note 40(b)(iv). An aging analysis of
the trade and bills receivables at the end of the reporting
period based on the invoice date and net of allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debt is as follows:

2022 2021

s =B

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 to 3 months EFE={FEH 434,595 550,778
4 to 6 months HEXRM@EA 127,088 156,189
7 to 9 months tENEA 54,012 52,790
Over 9 months tBiE L E A 49,670 41,483
665,365 801,240

The movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and

doubtful debts of the Group are as follows:

FEBNWRIBRAERE Z ST
o

Trade receivables

2022 2021

- B £

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Balance at 1 January N—HA—B#8R 106,000 112,031
Exchange realignment B AR (8,059) 2,996
Impairment loss recognised R BERE 2 7,708
Unused amounts reversed (o] 435 >R B A5 8h 2 (10,928) (10,307)
Uncollectible amounts written off 3 1~ BT U [B1 B9 FRIE (4,165) (6,428)
Balance at 31 December R+ZB=+—H#&ex 82,850 106,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-E -+ -A=+—AULFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24,

Balance at 1 January R—B— B4

Exchange realignment TE S EEEE
Impairment loss recognised M 2 BB 18
Unused amounts reversed (O] 5 R B 3 8 ZE

Balance at 31 December R+ZB=+—H#&%
The above allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful
debts is a provision for individually impaired trade receivables
and impaired other receivables. The individually impaired
trade receivables mainly represent sales made to the PRC
customers which have remained long overdue. The impaired
other receivables relate to debtors that have been long
outstanding without settlement or having any business
relationship with the Group. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

Included in trade and other receivables are the following
amounts denominated in the following currencies:

United States Dollars E7T
Renminbi NS
Japanese Yen Hot

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

BEZ R EMEBKRIEA (&

Other receivables

H{hFEWFRIE

2022 2021
= =B
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
16,705 17,544
(1,416) 492

= 15
- (1,346)

15,289 16,705

Et R IR AR E B 2 8 5 B RUEREUR
TRIE e B (B H th FE W IR 4 o ()
EREREREZRFEETEZAHE THEH
BERZBHRMER - BERENEMER
MRRERPAR M ERERREEMA
EBRGR - AEEN LIRRIWTRIER
ERSErgiRsige SR %Hk-

B RHAMBURBERBE®EMT

2022

—_— ——

18,830,000
531,232,000
160,308,000

2021

26,436,000
531,257,000
210,520,000



25.

26.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Measured at FVTPL

Unlisted equity investment (note a)
Unlisted unit trust funds (note b)

Notes:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE - A+ A —HILFEE

25 HithEmBEE

2022 2021
—E-C —E 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
BMAFBEFERHES
s ABE
JEEFRERIKE (Bita) 2,549 7,085
ELEFEBEMNEFEES (WWatb) 7,818 46,486
10,367 53,571

(a) The investment engaged in providing environmental service in
the PRC.

(b) The fair values of the unlisted unit trust funds were based on
net assets value of the investment funds at the end of the
reporting period provided by the financial institutions.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank time deposits with maturity over
three months but within one year
(note (a))

Pledged bank deposits
(note (b)) (note 38)

Cash and cash equivalents (note (c))

B ZIRITER

(H1&Lb)) (B5%38)
RWERIRSEE FHatc)

(@) REFEIZFEPERERHIRFER
%%0

(b)y JFLTEMUEEEETNATEERE

RERMBEERETIRSEEHERR
BEETHNPEEEE.

26. & RIRITHEER

AR =EE U L—FLURN
IRITEMER Wfat @)

2022 2021
- —E—fF
HK$°000 HK$000
FAET FAET
10,122 7,339
24,876 8,221
524,795 390,497
559,793 406,057

Z— T~ %R Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—E g+ _HA=+—HIFE

26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Bank time deposits with maturity over three months but
within one year
Included in bank time deposits with maturity over three
months but within one year in the consolidated statement of
financial position are the following amounts denominated in
the following currency:

Renminbi AR

(b) Pledged bank deposits
Included in pledged bank deposits in the consolidated
statement of financial position are the following amounts
denominated in the following currencies:

Renminbi AR
Japanese Yen Hit

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRERIRS

Included in bank balances and cash in the consolidated
statement of financial position are the following amounts
denominated in the following currencies:

United States Dollars E7T
Renminbi AR
Japanese Yen Bt
Euro Dollars BLIT
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26.

RERIRITER (B

(a)

(b)

(c)

IR =EAUNE—FURIRIT
EHER

R HRRERARINPES=EA
ME—FUANBRTERERZRE
BT

2022 2021
—E-C T4
9,000,000 6,000,000

B ZIRITER

REEMBRRERPERRZRGTE
MZRBEEWT

2022 2021

—E-C B —F
15,358,000 6,721,000
130,980,000 -

RERFE%E

2022 2021

—Z2-C T —4F
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

524,795 390,497

RFEMBRRIRPBITEHRRIRS
ZREBEBMT :

2022 2021
—EICE BT —F
14,473,000 10,229,000

322,938,000 171,863,000
32,733,000 116,586,000

51,000 180,000



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRMEE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

Notes:

(d)

Bank time deposit with maturity over one year

Included in bank time deposit with maturity over one year
in the consolidated statement of financial position is the
following amount denominated in the following currency:

Renminbi

AR

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

()

Trade and other payables

Trade and bills payables B 5 R ENEEMIE

Accruals and other payables

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
trade and other payables approximate to their fair
values. All trade and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are
repayable on demand.

#HE

26. IREKRIRTT

Bz

(d)

THEER ()

CE g A=t —HULEE

—_ <

AR —FULNIRITERER
RiIREHMBRARPEBHES—F N
ERSRTEMERZRBERNT ¢

2022 2021
—E_F 2%
1,000,000 -

27. B REMEMRIEANER

PR RN R EMEN IR

() B RHEMEMRIE
2022 2021
—E_C T
HK$°000 HK$°000
TET T#ET
551,446 697,510
140,492 156,234
691,938 853,744

EFERnESREMEMREZ
FREEREAFEEHEL-FIBE
FREMEMRBERBRN —F
A HER DM EHIRERST
{3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(i) Trade and other payables (Continued)
The aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills
payables at the end of the reporting period based on
the date of invoice is as follows:

27. BB REMEBARE GHER
(#)
() E5REMERRE &
RREEHED AEERETAH
WEBRENRERBZIRESD

0 to 3 months ZE={EH
4 to 6 months mEREAR
7 to 9 months Tt EZHEAR
Over 9 months BiEE A

Included in trade and other payables are the following

amounts denominated in the following currencies:

United States Dollars ETT
Renminbi AR
Japanese Yen =iy

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT

WU

2022 2021

—E-C —EC—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET

419,145 480,862
100,104 147,803
16,206 21,583

15,991 47,262
551,446 697,510

EEREMEBMRIERESEN

N
2022 2021
s B —F
6,326,000 6,049,000
550,554,000 614,672,000
91,035,000 137,424,000



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

R E "+ HA=+—HIFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/CONTRACT 27. B REMEMNRIE SHEE
LIABILITIES (Continued) (#)
(i) Contract liabilities (i) SHN&E
2022 2021
- BT £
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Billings in advance of AW IE
performance 94,147 77,064
When the Group receives a deposit before the AR S BT 4 EEE R A AT R
production activity commences, this will give rise to S ANAERESNHERE
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the SO EEWNARDAL - AEET
revenue is recognised. The Group receives deposits BRI BREERNNGTEERE
on acceptance of orders on a case by case basis with 1BRMMER

customers before work commences.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue BHE_ZTZ-_"_F+"HA=+—H
recognised in the current year relating to contract FFEERN BFEYEHA8EHEAN
liabilities at the beginning of the year is approximately WA FE B4 464,700,000 T T8
HK$64,700,000. The amount of billings in advance of WHIB & EERT—SENERE
performance received is expected to be recognised as BRI o

income within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS

Non-current JETRED

Bank loans RITE™
— secured —BHEH
— unsecured — g

Current mE

Bank loans RITER
- secured —BEH
— unsecured —EIE

Total borrowings HEAE

None of the Group’s bank loans as at 31 December 2022
(that are repayable more than one year after the end of
the reporting period but contain a repayment on demand
clause) that have been reclassified as current liabilities (2021:
HK$4,050,000).

These loans are callable by the lenders, but the management

does not expect the lenders to exercise their rights to
demand repayment in normal circumstances.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

. fE 1EI TA
2022 2021
s B —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
2,468 6,700
= 4,998
2,468 11,698
29,232 44,957
195,895 244,512
225,127 289,469
227,595 301,167

RZEZZF+"A=+—H &*&H
TWHEBTER (BRESEEREN—
FREE BHAIBREERENG
P ERIEREEER S EARER
(ZEEZ—% : 4,050,000 7T) °

BRARREREZEER BEEEAE
HRAATE—RERTAEITHEHEERE
MEREEER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-F - &+ A+ AUIEE

28. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 28. SRITERR (&
The maturity of the bank borrowings based on the scheduled RIFER HEBREMZERERGER
repayment date set out in the loan agreements ignoring the 2B RATNERBZEEEST
effect of any repayment on demand clause are as follows: mr
2022 2021
T B
HK$000 HK$°000
FAET FAET
Within 1 year —FRQ 225,127 285,419
Between 1 and 2 years —F_F 2,468 13,280
Between 2 and 5 years _EhREF - 2,468
227,595 301,167
The non-current bank borrowings are stated at amortised IEMENIRITIERAE DA AR
cost.
The weighted average effective interest rate as at 31 RITERN 2 _F+"B=+—H
December 2022 for bank borrowings is 6.21% per annum ZMEFHEBRFEXR621E (ZF
(2021: 2.65% per annum). T—F  FEBEXA265E) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in the

28. SR{TE™ (&
SRR E AU RS EHENT

following currencies:

Hong Kong Dollars BT
Renminbi

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

Floating rate TR

S—F R EIE

— expiring within one year

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities
subject to review at various dates during 2022.

Bank borrowings are secured by certain ownership interest in
leasehold land and buildings held for own use and land use
rights of the Group (note 38).
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2022 2021
—E-C —E—4F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
199,665 240,799
27,930 60,368
227,595 301,167
KEBRBAZEEBRENT :

2022 2021
—E-C =4
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FET
352,352 277,440

—FRNEREEENEERE AR
“EC_FHRNAR A RRETEE

IRITERUANEESBDERMAE LMK
TEF BIPT B R S - (5 PR R /R 4
(H15£38) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the
current and previous reporting periods:

e M BImRME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_F__F+_HA=+—HILFE

HEER
TRR\REEEEF AR REHE
BOTH & B EO I BR & 40 B HAATR

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
ZEZCEF T8
+-B=+-H +-B=+—-H
Present Present
value of the value of the
minimum Minimum minimum Minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
RIEHE RIEHE REHRE RERE
S ZHE Fi THZRE Tl
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FAET FAET FET FET
Within 1 year —ER 15,701 18,280 15,283 18,725
After 1 year but within 2 years —FBREZER 12,161 13,694 14,184 16,542
After 2 years but within 5 years _EBRBRLER 12,842 13,537 22,002 23,881
25,003 27,231 36,186 40,423
40,704 45,511 51,469 59,148
Less: total future interest expenses B RRFBRATH (4,807) (7,679)
Present value of lease liabilities HESERE 40,704 51,469

The Group leases office properties, factories and plant and
machinery. Leases are negotiated mostly for terms ranging
from 1 to 10 years and rentals are almost fixed for the said
term.

At 31 December 2022, lease liabilities of HK$1,616,000
(2021: HK$4,217,000) are secured by the lessors’ charges
over the leased assets.

REEBEBBMAYE S TR E
W - BOFRIU—E+FETHD
oM@ ERBAFHARE-

RIEZ_HF+-_B=+—H &&ER
ZHE&BESRHE1,616,0008T (ZE
——£ 14,217,000/ 7T) BUEEEE
ERFTHMEA

Z— T~ %R Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-E - g+ At HIEE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. R&
2022 2021
—g_C S
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares Amount shares Amount
BB R & BE  ZERERE G
HK$'000 HK3$'000
FAET FET
Ordinary shares, issued and BETRBREEK !
fully paid:
At 1 January R—B—H 861,930,192 609,027 861,930,692 609,027
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 861,930,692 609,027 861,930,692 609,027
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the FMTEELEREZERZMN AL N ER
Company's residual assets. BEo

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT



31. OTHER RESERVES

Balance at 1 January 2021

Share of reserves of associates

Surplus on revaluation of properties
held for own use

Deferred taxation adjustment

Exchange differences arising from

translation of financial statements

of foreign operations
Release of translation reserve upon
deregistration of a subsidiary
Disposal of partial interest in a
subsidiary without loss of control

Balance at 31 December 2021
and 1 January 2022

Share of reserves of associates

Surplus on revaluation of properties
held for own use

Deferred taxation adjustment

Exchange differences arising from

translation of financial statements

of foreign operations
Deemed disposal of interest in a
subsidiary without loss of control

Balance at 31 December 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_F__F+_HA=1—HIFE

31. Hfth{zE

Property
revaluation Translation
reserve reserve Others Total
MESEHE ER G Hith k]
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
R-E-—FE—F—HER 87,928 81,544 679 170,151
S AT RE - 934 - 934
BRYEEGRRR
15,699 - - 15,699
FILRIERE (402) - - (402)
BEEIERYBRRBEEY
EREE
- 33,581 - 33,581
HE-ENBADRLERGE
B - 348 - 348
HE-BHRBARARHG
BamEREEbE - (209) 2,500 2,291
RZBZ-H#+ZA=1+—H
kZEZ-_FE—R—B#iR 103,225 116,198 3,179 222,602
B E AT - (3,142) - (3,142)
BRYEEEER
7,326 - - 7,326
RIERBAR (1,228) - - (1,228)
BEEBNERYFRRFEEY
EREE
- 113,117) - (113,117)
BEHE-RRBAT
BamEREEbE - (234) (2,706) (2,940)
RIBZZE+ZA=1+—H
@5 109,323 (295) 473 109,501
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 32.

COMPANY

(a) Company-level statement of financial position

Non-current Assets ETRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERZE
Interests in subsidiaries Mg A B m

Current Assets RENEE
Other receivables HAuhEWzIE
Cash and bank balances B KMIR1T Eﬁ?

Current Liabilities REIBEE
Other payables Ht T IE
Amounts due to subsidiaries R B A B RIS
Bank borrowings RITIEN

Net Current Liabilities REIBEFE

Net Assets BEEFE

Capital and Reserves (note 32(b)) BARKFHE (a£320)

Share capital &N
Retained profits = 88 i A
Total Equity HEREE

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 30
March 2023 and is signed on its behalf by:

TANG TO
DIRECTOR
£

256 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

TABMBIRRER
(a) HEREMBARAER

2022
———

—_— ——

HK$°000
TET

236
1,147,455

1,147,691

830
47,325

48,155

1,085
133,335
64,050

198,470
(150,315)
997,376
609,027
388,349

997,376

2021
—EF_—F
HK$'000
FAET

274
1,166,517

1,166,791

722
81,890

82,612

1,186
142,153
81,575

224,914

(142,302)

1,024,489

609,027

415,462

1,024,489

KRB BERRER T =
Bt HEESESHETRE
FIE - THTIIEEAREE

TANG YU, FREEMAN
HER

DIRECTOR

£



32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement in components of equity of the

(c)

Company
Balance at 1 January 2021 RIEZ-5—F—H4&H
Loss for the year FEBH

Balance at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022  RZE-—&+-A=+-Hk
ZE"E-F-H&#

Loss for the year FEBS
Balance at 31 December 2022 RZEBZZ
+ZB=+—-B#&i

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company, as calculated under the provisions
of Part 6 of Companies Ordinance, was approximately
HK$388,349,000 (2021: HK$415,462,000). After
the end of the reporting period, the Board did not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil).

e MBS ERARMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BFE _E_ _HFf _HA=+—HIFE

32. X ABMBRAR (&

(b) ZAEEHEBE

(c)

Share capital Retained profits Total
R fREER @t
HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000
FET FiEr FiEm
609,027 420,204 1,029,231
- (4,742) (4,742)
609,027 415,462 1,024,489
- (27,113) (27,113)
609,027 388,349 997,376

# B 5k

A B _F+_RB=+—H"'1&
B (R BMER) 5 75 88 3 B9 1% ST &t
B AR HESIKTRERFEA
B 6 5 49 4388,349,0008 7T (Z
T~ —4 1 415,462,000 7T) o ;®
GEHB EEEIFERBIREE
EE_"_F+ZA=+—HIt
FERBERE (CE-_—5+_A4
=+—H:8|-

Z T~ Z F£ 4R Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—E g+ _HA=+—HIFE

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 33.
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash

changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are

liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will

be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 January 2021

Changes from financing cash flow
New bank loans raised

Repayment of bank loans

Bank loans interest paid

Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest element of lease rentals paid

Total changes from financing cash flows

Exchange adjustments

Other changes

Increase in lease liabilities from entering
into new leases during the year

Interest expenses (note &)

Total other changes

At 31 December 2021

RZE_-F—-F—-H

REMERBHRERZED
MBRITEN
BEFITEN
ERRITERAE
ENEERENAEED
ERHEERE R SHHR

REBEZHRERZEDBE

Hfh&g

REERTUMHEEMZME
HERAR

HEER (W3

EfhEaAE

R-B--£+-A=+-H

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT

KRERETHNERREME

ER R

TERFINEEENREREEHAE
MaEnEs) RS hIFRENE
Ho-REMETHNEEREHRER

B ARENIEE

BE
/)ILE@

RAEEENGES

RERERTROBAREMETHH

REMmEe

Bank
loans
RITE
HK$ 000
FET

322,344

180,842

(203,244)
(13,442)

(35,844)

1,225

13,442

13,442

301,167

Lease
liabilities
HE&E
HK$'000
FET

55,839

(17,685)
(4,299)

(21,984)

1,405

11,910
4,299

16,209

51,469

Total
&t
HK$ 000
FET

378,183
180,842
(203,244
(13,442

)
)
(17,685)

(4,299)
(57,828)

2,630

11,910
17,741

29,651

352,636



33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

At 1 January 2022

Changes from financing cash flow
New bank loans raised

Repayment of bank loans

Bank loans interest paid

Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest element of lease rentals paid

Total changes from financing cash flows

Exchange adjustments

Other changes

Increase in lease liabilities from entering
into new leases during the year

Modification of lease term

Interest expenses (note 8)

Total other changes

At 31 December 2022

St 2=

REMERHRERZED

MERTEM
BEETEM
BRRITERAE

ENHERENAZED
ENHEERE0F SEH

REBEZHRERZEDBE

ERBE

Hfh&g

AEER UM EMEMEY

HEAR
HERRET
MEER (Hit8)

HthE8meE

RZB-Z&+-A=+-H

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_F__F+_HA=+—HILFE

ENHIER (&)
Bank Lease
loans liabilities
RITEM fgaf
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
301,167 51,469
194,319 -
(264,625) -
(9,891) -
- (16,281)
- (3,524)
(80,197) (19,805)
(3,266) (3,792)
- 8,666
- 642
9,891 3,524
9,891 12,832
227,595 40,704
e —

—_—

33. REMEZHNEREREMRE

Total

AL
=)

HKS 000
TET

352,636
194,319
(264,625)

(9,891)

(16,281)
(3,524)

(100,002)

(7,058)

8,666
642
13,415

22,723

268,299

F £ Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE T+ HA=+—HILEE

34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period,

the Group had

contracted with tenants for the following future minimum

lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases:

Not later than one year
Later than one year and

not later than five years
After five years

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure:
Contracted but not provided for

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

—ER
ES_ERF

LE®

BARXH:
BEMNERFELERE

The Group does not have any litigations or claims of material

importance and,

so far as the Directors are aware, no

litigation or claims of material importance are pending or

threatened by or against any companies of the Group.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT

4, RETHEKIE
RB|ELAER AEBSERATEEZ
AEaR THREE VESRANT
2022 2021
T B
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
1,437 1,196
2,610 1,795
- 68
4,047 3,059

35. EARKIE

2022 2021
—_E =T —F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
20,152 19,819

36. AAE

AEBUESRERNHFANEEZRR-

T4k 28 26 P A > 3t 4 7

BUHAEERN

NERAEBRARNEZRR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

37. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme (the “"ORSO Scheme”) which is registered under
the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
426 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.
Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to
the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice
of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or
after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5.0% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5.0%
to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the
length of service with the Group.

Employees who are employed by subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed pension scheme operated
by the Chinese government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute 16% — 20% of payroll costs to the pension
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the pension scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement
of approximately HK$45,592,000 (2021: HK$38,116,000)
represents contributions payable to these schemes by the
Group in respect of the current accounting period. As at 31
December 2022, contributions of approximately HK$187,000
(2021: HK$78,000) due in respect of the reporting period
had not been paid over to the schemes.

e M BImRME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_F__F+_HA=+—HILFE

37. BAEF 5T E

A& B [F) By 2 BRI (B 22 RN ET 81K
By (BB EAFIEL26E) TEMBELE
MR8 (THERAKREE) KR ZF
TRF+_ARERFIMERAREE
RBI R I By R B EH R B (TR A=
stE))) MBS BNEERAERY
BEEDH MBAGEEABE -RARE
SR Z AR X RRETEIRNE 2
BE  AJ#HETEFRENBERASE
HEBRIBEEFE BN T F
TR —HIAZEMATEENES
WAMARIEE 58

MRE B 2B AEBUMERTE
A E D Z R s EIHR BB
A —EE MR-

BERKSERSAHRBEEREER:
RESNERXTEHRLABESZR
ELHA BRBFEME -

FEBETEZWEARNES HTPE
HEEEZEARENATEEFEZE
BotEMBRARABUNETIERANE
DZTAREZTAAREFTEIHER A
EE 2 ME—FEDRILATE T 5T EIR H
PREBMHRR

BIEREERARAZEHIK
#45,592,0008B T (Z&EZ—&F .
38,116,000 7w) " RERAEB R L E
STHEEEEEEHENER PN IE
T IHF+ZRA=4+—H"£187,0008 T
(ZEZ—4 78,000 7T) WHEZ®
REHEEIBMARE LSBT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—E g+ _HA=+—HIFE

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the end of the reporting period, assets with the following
carrying amounts were pledged by the Group to secure
general banking facilities:

Ownership interest in leasehold BAEE L RIEFH
land and buildings held for FRA
own use

Land use rights st fes PR AE

Plant and machinery R 5= Ko % 23

Motor vehicles HE

Bank deposits RITHER

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT

38.

BEERR

RESEED AEE R T URE
EBEFfENEEFRR UBEGTEE

Bz —fRIRTTIEERR

2022
—E__

HK$°000
TET

124,500

3,708
182
24,876

153,266

2021
g
HK$000
FAET

159,970
3,217
4,696

303
8,221

176,407



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

R E "+ HA=+—HIFE

39. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF EQUITY INTEREST IN 39. RIEHEEREKRERIE (RE

DEKUMA RUBBER AND PLASTIC TECHNOLOGY BIRAE (MERIE)) Z
(DONGGUAN) LIMITED ("DEKUMA")

In 2022, Dekuma and a connected person (the “Investor”) AR o ERER-RREEAL
entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant to which (MGEHE ) TURENZE BIL 8E
the Investor agreed to inject approximately RMB2,024,000 EZRIEREREFTE£2,024,000 A R &
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,428,000) into Dekuma. (&1 492,428,000387T) c:RBE =15
Upon completion of the subscription, the Group's effective TRE AEEFEERNENSRER
equity interest in Dekuma decreased from 100% to 85%. FH100% FIEE85% 5% X 5 B Bl JE#
The transaction has been accounted for as an equity BEGHNEZTZARUNT

transaction with the non-controlling interests as follows:

HK$000

FAET

Consideration received for deemed disposal MBREHESWEHKE 2,428
Carrying amount of deemed partial equity RIEBHEXR D REREE

interest disposed (5,368)

Release of translation reserve RIEHERRERFEER L

upon deemed disposal 234
Loss on the deemed disposal recognised REEEANERRIEHE Z BB

within equity (2,706)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—E g+ _HA=+—HIFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Financial instruments by categories
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the accounting policies
for financial instruments have been applied to the line
items below:

Assets as per consolidated REEHERRS
financial statements ZEE

31 December 2022 _ECCE

+ZA=+-H

Other financial assets HEtemERE

Finance lease receivables EREERERE

Trade and other receivables BARHEMERRE

Bank time deposit with HEHBEA—FENLH
maturity over one year RITERER

HHAR=EAUL—F
URBETEREM

Bank time deposits with
maturity over three months
but within one year

BHEARTER

RERREEE

Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT

2. HERBREEREMIAZA

FEE
(a) HERBAZEMIA

ERM(E B RS ER)HE

Financial
assets at
amortised cost

BEBHN A E
NERMEE
HKS000
FET

115,950
723,435

1,120

10,122
24,876
524,795

1,400,298

Financial

assets at

FVTPL
NATEEHE
BHEZH: AEE
MeEmEE
HKS'000

FAT

10,367

10,367

TRIAGHBREEANTYE
=

Total

B
HKS$000
FET

10,367
115,950
723,435

1,120

10,122
24,876
524,795

1,410,665



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BFE _E_ _HFf _HA=+—HIFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. MEEREERERMIAZA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TEE (&)

(Continued)

(a) Financial instruments by categories (Continued)

(a) ZHERBENZEMIR (BB

Financial Financial
assets at assets at
amortised cost FVTPL Total
NUATEEHE
REHENAE BEEHHABRR
NEMEE NemEE wm
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Assets as per consolidated Rz ERBHRRS
financial statements ZEE
31 December 2021 5T &
+ZA=+-H
Other financial assets HteREE - 53,571 53,571
Amounts due from associates G =YNSIE ¥ 2,451 - 2,451
Finance lease receivables R ERERE 276,348 - 276,348
Trade and other receivables BH REMERTIE 850,247 - 850,247
Bank time deposits with HMEA=RBANL—F
maturity over three months HABRTEREN
but within one year 7,339 - 7,339
Pledged bank deposits BIRRETER 8,221 - 8,221
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkFEEE 390,497 - 390,497
1,535,103 53,571 1,588,674

Z T~ Z F£ 4R Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEr - HF A=+ —HIFFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Financial instruments by categories (Continued)

40.

MERBREREREMIAZA
FEE &)

(a) HERENZEMIA (&

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
Y 8 A A
HEZERMAR
HK$000
FET
Liabilities as per consolidated Wiz BERERPZEE
financial statements

31 December 2022 —E-__HF+ZH=+—H
Trade and other payables B2 R EMEARIE 691,938
Bank borrowings RITER 227,595
Lease liabilities HEaRE 40,704
960,237

31 December 2021 —E_—F+”"A=+—H
Trade and other payables B2 KR EMERIE 849,562
Bank borrowings RITER 301,167
Lease liabilities HEaRE 51,469
1,202,198

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk arising in the normal course of its business and
financial instruments. The Group’'s risk management
objectives and policies mainly focus on minimising
the potential adverse effects of these risks on the
Group's financial performance by closely monitoring the
individual exposure as summarised below.

(i) Foreign currency risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi, Hong Kong
Dollars, United States Dollars and Japanese Yen.
Such exposures arise from sales or purchases
by subsidiaries other than the subsidiaries’
functional currencies. This currency exposure
is managed primarily through sourcing raw
materials denominated in the same currency. In
addition, certain recognised assets and liabilities
are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the entities to which they
relate. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy.

Certain assets and liabilities of the Group are
principally denominated in US$. HK$ is pegged
to US$, and thus foreign exchange exposure is
considered as minimal.

At 31 December 2022, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against the RMB, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,329,000
lower or higher (2021: post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,459,000
lower or higher). There will be no impact on other
components of equity.

IR e MBS ERRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

#HE

SECTFf A= —HIFEE

HBREEEREMIAZA

FEE &)

(b) MBEREZR
FEENEBARZSEVHAR
mHERE (BEINERRE - FRE
BREERRER - EERBRR—&K
EHBEBRARERETMIEERZRE
BExAR AEENAREESR
EFERITEZEBERYERN TE
AR EINBERILAER
MBERFEMZNETEETE-

(i)

SFEE R
KEBFARZINER Z R £
E%AE@’%‘ Bt ETKkH
TToZERBILRAAWB AR
LUK B A B Z T BE & & LLSh
ZEBETEEmMES LB
R B Th I B 5 48 B B DUAE

BEBINEZEMEEE S
S EPERBZEERER

BIEWIEUAFEEEINAE
EAFEEM - AEEHEBA
Al MBS R IR ©

AERZETEEREGRE
BUETASTER(-BTHA
SETHNY o AU SMNE E R TR
EEH -

WZIEZZHE+ZA=+—
HMBTR ARKERE
%, 5510% M A Hfh
“%ZT o EEZRRE

i A 7 9 /DJ'JEXIEB#”]TEE/:—J
,%’31 329,000 T (Z& = —
FBREREA fEE/m,iﬁ
1,459,00078 7T) o #Em By E th
DR BEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2022, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against the YEN, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,000 lower
or higher (2021: post-tax profit for the year would
have been HK$429,000 higher or lower). There will
be no impact on other components of equity.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to each of the Group
entities’ exposure to currency risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management'’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the
next annual reporting date. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$
and the US$ would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the US$
against other currencies. Results of the analysis as
presented in above represent an aggregation of
the effects on each of the Group entities’ profit
after tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE - A+ A —HILFEE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. P HEEREEREMTAZA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TEE (&)
(Continued)

(b) BAFERAMBEER &)
(i) FEE LR

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk

Except for bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents (note 26), the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets. The Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate time deposits
and lease liabilities. The management will take
appropriate measures to manage interest rate
exposure if interest rate fluctuates significantly. The
management considers the fair value interest rate
risk to the Group is low.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Prime or HIBOR
arising from the Group’s borrowings denominated
in HK$ and RMB.

Borrowings at floating rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at
fixed rates and finance lease receivables expose
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Details
of the Group’s borrowings and finance lease
receivables have been disclosed in notes 28 and 21
respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. In order to
manage the cash flow interest rate risk, the Group
will repay the corresponding borrowings when it
has surplus funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for the floating rate bank borrowings at the end
of the reporting period. For floating rate bank
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole

year.

At 31 December 2022, if interest rates on
HK$-denominated borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$989,000 lower/higher
(2021: post-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$1,185,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate

borrowings.

At 31 December 2022, if interest rates on
RMB-denominated borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$140,000 lower/higher
(2021: post-tax profit for the year would have
been HK$180,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate

borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for financial instruments in existence at that
date. The above changes in interest rates represent
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until
the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE - A+ A —HILFEE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. U EERREEREMIAZA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TEE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) BAFEAMRREZR &)
(iii) Price risk (iii) 1E1&E
The Group is exposed to equity securities at 7S 6 B m B A T EE 5T
FVTOCI price risk in its financial assets. As the AEMEZEREZEMEE

(iv)

Group's policy is only to invest on such investments
by its surplus funds, the exposure may not have
significant impact on the Group’s financial position.
The Group is not exposed to commodity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivable and cash and bank balances. The
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables,
finance lease receivable and cash and bank
balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with cash and bank balances
since they are substantially deposited at state-
owned banks and other medium or large-sized
listed banks. Management does not expect that
there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

The Group has large number of customers and
there was no concentration of credit risk. The
Group has monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverability
of these receivables at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

(iv)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward looking information. Especially
the following indicators are incorporated:

° internal credit rating;
e external credit rating;

e  actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
change to the customer’s ability to meet its
obligations;

e actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor/customer;

e  significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the customer, including
changes in the payment status of customer in
the Group and changes in the operating results
of the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

R E "+ HA=+—HIFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4. BB REREEREMIAZA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TEE (@)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) BAFEAMRREZR &)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued) (iv) EEERE (&
(a) Trade receivables (a) BZEWIE
The Group applies the simplified approach to NEBERBENAERR
provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which (BB BRESEA) S
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss IR ENTRIEEEE
provision for all trade receivables. TR R E R TR
BEZBERMEESE
WRIEFEBRNERES
Eitadio K
The loss allowance for trade receivables was B EWRIEN B E
determined as follows. The ECLs below also HETEMT - T X TEH
incorporated forward looking information. EEBETEIAEMY
Bik}o
2022
—E”C
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEER REERH BiERE
% HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET
0 to 3 months LE-{88 0.5% 436,988 (2,393)
4 to 6 months mEAER 1.2% 128,568 (1,480)
7 to 9 months tENER 4.2% 56,396 (2,384)
10 to 12 months +Z+ZM@E8 2.5% 14,768 (363)
110 2 years —E°F 5.7% 34,281 (1,966)
2 0 3 years “E=F 55.3% 4,696 (2,596)
Over 3 years BE=F 98.8% 72,518 (71,668)
748,215 (82,850)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IRRMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-E - g+ At HIEE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. BEEAREEREMIAZA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TEE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) BAFERABEER &)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued) (iv) EEE (&
(a) Trade receivables (Continued) (a) BZEWIIE ()
2021
—ET-f
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BRIEER RE4E BERE
% HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
0 to 3 months TE-fR 0.9% 556,048 (5,270)
4 to 6 months mE7;REA 1.0% 157,843 (1,654)
7 to 9 months tENEAR 2.5% 54,145 (1,355)
10 to 12 months +E+_f8R 3.7% 24,827 (908)
10 2 years —E_F 14.7% 19,361 (2,854)
2 10 3 years _E=E 92.6% 11,610 (10,756)
Over 3 years BRE=-F 99.8% 83,406 (83,203)
907,240 (106,000)
(b) Finance lease receivables (b)y FEWMERERE
The Group applies the simplified approach to NEBERBILNAER
provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which (EBMBEREEN)E
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss IRAENTRIAEEEE
provision for all finance lease receivables. FHRREE ) ZER RNFTER

R 75 AR A R R
EHEMENEFERRE
i E R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

R E "+ HA=+—HIFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

2. MERBREEREMIAZA

FEE &)

(b) MBRERREZER (@)
(iv) EEmEE (&)

(b) Finance lease receivables (Continued)
The loss allowance for finance lease
receivables was determined as follows. The
ECLs below also incorporated forward looking

(b) EWRREBEERE (#B)
FEWRERERBNE
BEEHEEENT - TX
BHEEBERTESH

information. BB R o
Not overdue Overdue Total
KaH B &t
2022 ZgZC
Expected loss rate RfEEx 0.3% 13.8%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SREEE (F571) 76,432 46,092 122,524
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BEEE (FET) (230) (6,344) (6,574)
Not overdue Overdue Total
PRl B At
2021 —2T-F
Expected loss rate BHRHEEE 1.0% 8.8%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SRE#E (FE71) 218,384 65,860 284,244
Loss allowance (HK$000) BERE (FET) (2,131) (5,765) (7,896)
(v) Liquidity risk (v) FTEELRE

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the parent company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

FEBEBETENEETHE
iR AEEAEHRTEE 8
ERZEGFNERRENE
BERUBAEASHNERES
BROEMHERBAZERETE
AT KE IZAKEEREE
FEHEDAUFE - AEEN
HREEHEZENRRER
FRRBEEER REES
BrEERE URRETE
REASHAERMNEE KA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(v) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The tables below categorised the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period from the end of the
reporting period to the contractual maturity
date. The tabulated amounts are the contractual
undiscounted cash flow payments of the Group.

At 31 December 2022 AR C
+ZB=+-H

Trade and other payables B REMENHIE

Lease liabilities HESR

Bank borrowings RITER

At 31 December 2021 RIBZ—F
+ZB=+—H

Trade and other payables B REMELTE

Lease liabilities HEBR

Bank borrowings BITET

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT

40. UHBEABEEREMIAZA
FEE &)

(b) HBRERRE (&)

(v) HEELTRERE (&
TERBREBEBSHEELAESL
FHEZHR TR S &R
ZzEmMEEZEME AR
BTN S RPNEEDA
EBZENIFMREERE -

Less than
1 year
DIME
HK$000
FAET

691,938
18,280
237,877

948,095

849,562
18,725
295,845

1,164,132

Between

1 and 2 years
1825
HK$'000
FAET

13,694
2,513

16,207

16,542
9,436

25,978

Between

2 and 5 years
2E5F
HK$000
FAET

13,537

13,537

23,881
2,490

26,371

Total
st
HK$'000
FET

691,938
45,511
240,390

977,839

849,562
59,148
307,771

1,216,481



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets measured at FVTPL

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the carrying value
of the Group's financial instruments measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

e MBS ERARMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BFE _E_ _HFf _HA=+—HIFE

HBREEEREMIAZA

FEE &)

() XAFEEE

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IRRMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE—E g+ _HA=+—HIFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. BEEAREEREMIAZA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TEE (&)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement (Continued) () 2XFEEHE &
(i) Financial assets measured at FVTPL (Continued) (i) AFEEFEHABEZHA
Em 2 EMEE (5)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NEBEZE (&

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2022 categorised into

KZEZZF¥+-B=+—H

ATEEHEEUTIE
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ATEE E-BR FZEBR BZER
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Other financial assets HitEpERE
- Unlisted equity investment —ErTRERE 2,549 - 2,549 =
- Unlisted unit trust funds —JFLmE
EtEE 7,818 - 7,818 -
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2021 categorised into
R-®-—F+-B=+-8
NFBEFEEUTHE
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ATERE E—EX FIEX E-EBXR
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Other financial assets HtEmERE
- Unlisted equity investment ~FLHERRE 7,085 - 7,085 -
- Unlisted unit trust funds —JELMEM
EEE 46,486 - 46,486 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets measured at FVTPL (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair values of unlisted unit trust funds,
principal guaranteed and non-guaranteed
investment funds in Level 2 are based on net
assets value of the investment funds at the end
of the reporting period provided by the financial
institution.

The fair value of unlisted equity investment in
Level 2 is based on fair value of initial subscription
cost adjusted by market movements for the
corresponding period from the date of subscription
up to the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and
2022, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2021 and 2022.

#HE

e MBS ERARMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
CE T T Ff /A= —HIFFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

g A
[ =Ra

155 R & MIsE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(d) cCapital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total
debts ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total capital. Total borrowings include
current liabilities and non-current liabilities. Total capital
includes total borrowings and total equity as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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FEZ] U IR R A SR [E1 3R - [F) B 3k
BHMBEOENN D TERFRE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

R E "+ HA=+—HIFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. P HEEREEREMTAZA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TEE (&)
(Continued)
(d) Capital risk management (Continued) d) BEERBER &
The total debts ratios at 31 December 2022 and 2021 NIE - _FR-_E-_—F+C
are as follows: B=+—HzZ#HBaFEthEs
2022 2021
- B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current liabilities mEas 1,031,189 1,246,243
Non-current liabilities EREEE 55,865 81,118
Total borrowings &AL KA 1,087,054 1,327,361
Total equity HmAEER 1,538,396 1,640,524
Total capital BRAEEE 2,625,450 2,967,885
Total debts ratio HEEBE=E 41% 45%
Certain entities of the Group are subject to loan NEFEFLERESBRERIRE
covenants. There is no material non-compliance with BUBREAREREHEERFEEN
those loan covenants. =P
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E _E_ —HF+ _HFA=+—HIFE

41. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH
RELATED PARTIES
During the year, the Group had significant transactions with
the following related parties, together with balances with
them as at the end of the reporting period, details of which
are as follows:

Company controlled by certain HETESKRERE

Directors and their relatives: b2k il /N =1 I
Management fee paid (note /) BIEEXXH (W)
Associates: g /N1
Balances due to the Group ERARERZERR

(note ii) (B atii)

Remuneration of key management ZEBETEEEAES
personnel of the Group (note iii): B (B7aii) :

Salaries and other short-term < R EL 55 HA
employee benefits EE=H

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT

a1. RS EITZ R B REER

AEER AEBRATIERSETZ
BEARG  BRNKREEE B ZEERET

BUF

2022

g
Note HK$'000
K&t FET
996
20 -
11,168

2021
=
HK$ 000
FHET

996

2,451

14,555



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

41. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH
RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Further details of Directors’

and the chief executives’

emoluments are included in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Notes:

(@)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

The prices of the transactions were determined by the
Directors with reference to prices for similar transactions with
unrelated third parties.

The balances are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Key management personnel whose profiles are included in the
section of “Directors and Senior Management's Biographies”
of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company was a party,
and in which a Director had a material interest, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant

transactions with related parties during the year or

significant balances with them at the end of the reporting
period.

REMBRRMEE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Br - T HF =+ —HIFFEE

4. BRAKTGETZR 5% KRG

(&
BEERTEBHNENE—
b & BAFSIRERMITE100

TEBIE

ez -

Hﬂai@r

ZERSZNERRKEEFSEZUIEME
BZFETRURZNEREBERE

(i) ZEEHA/BIET REREEEER

\Eh‘%

(i) AEBMTEEEABEREINELFR
EEREREEAEBHEIZMH-

(iv) BREMIRBESN B ERNEERER
B AREEEEREAEARD Y
NP BHHTUZEMERELY -

Br LA BR SN AN GFE SRR 5 M H
hMERRG  RAERSEFEBRBEFL
BAERERER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE BRI (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-E - g+ At HIEE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42. FEMBATIFHE
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 R_E__F+"_B=+—H'FEMR
December 2022 are as follows: BABFEUWT :
Percentage
Place of Issued and of equity
incorporation/ Place of fully paid attributable to
Name of subsidiary registration operation share capital the Company  Principal activities
b YN
R,/ BETR FE1L R HE
o) YNGR s b BRRE B EEEH
Cosmos Grand Plastics Co., Ltd.? The PRC The PRC HK$56,000,000 100.00  Processing of plastic products
BRAREEEXERATY HE HE 56,000,000/ 7T ABRRMT
Cosmos Machinery Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100.00  Investment holding
KEKHMAERAS EE B 10,000,0003 7% REER
Cosmos Machinery International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$32,000,000 100.00  Investment holding
KRB HERERAR EE B 32,000,000% 7% REER
Cosmos Machinery (Dongguan) The PRC The PRC HK$5,000,000 100.00  Trading of machinery
Trading Co., Ltd.@ HE HE 5,000,000 7¢ BHES

KB (R=) HEBRRAT

Cosmos Machinery Technology The PRC The PRC US$25,000,000 100.00  Manufacturing and
(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.?! HE HE 25,000,0003 75 trading of machinery
KEEWRE C1E) BRATY BRNERES
Cosmos Machinery (Wuxi) The PRC The PRC HK$5,000,000 100.00  Trading of machinery
Trading Co., Ltd.® HE HE 5,000,000 7T BRES
KEEH (BH) HEBRRFY
Dekuma Rubber and Plastic Technology The PRC The PRC RMB25,725,353 85.00  Manufacturing and trading of
(Dongguan) Limited® hE HE 25,725,353 AR ¥ machinery
BEREGERE (RR) BRAFY HRRERES
Dongguan Cosmos Plastic The PRC The PRC RMB 10,000,000 70.00  Manufacturing of
Products Co., Ltd.*@ FE HE 10,000,000 A R & plastic products
REAFRZHAZERAF ABRRRE
Donghua Machinery Ltd.*’ The PRC The PRC RMB146,199,955 75.56  Manufacturing and
REBRWBRRTY HE HE 146,199,955 AR 1 trading of machinery
HRREEKRES

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT



(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

W38 2 5 78

Gainbase Industrial Limited

BEBEXARAT

Grand Technology Products Limited

BERKERERAR

Guangzhou Melco Industrial
Supplies Co., Ltd.?
EMNTmEEIERMARREY

Karmay Industrial Limited
EEEEARAT

Karmay Plastic Products (Zhuhai)
Co., Ltd.*@
EEREHEG GB) ARRAAY

KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited
BRZERREBERAT

Melco Industrial Supplies
Company Limited
ERIERHERAT

Melco Industrial Supplies
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd*@
ERIESEM (BB ARAFY

Shenzhen Gainbase Printed
Circuit Board Co., Ltd.*@
FNFBEGREIRERAEY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRMEE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Wi/
75

Hong Kong
R

Hong Kong
&8

The PRC

TE

Hong Kong
e

The PRC
F

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
X

The PRC
F

The PRC
+

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
operation
E=d b
Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
&BE

The PRC

TE

Hong Kong
)

The PRC
E

Hong Kong
)

Hong Kong
B

The PRC
E

The PRC
FE

#HE

— e

—_ <

F+ZHA=+—HIEFE

2. TEMBABRFE (&

Issued and
fully paid
share capital

BRITR
BERE

HK$10,000
10,0007 7T

HK$9,500,000
9,500,00078 7T
US$400,000

400,000% 7T

HK$55,000,000
55,000,000 ¢

HK$16,800,000
16,800,000/ 7T

US$7,800,000
7,800,000% 70

HK$1,500,000
1,500,000/ 7T

US$600,000
600,000 7T

HK$140,000,000
140,000,000 7T

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
YN

FE 1
Bt

52.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

52.00

100.00

100.00

52.00

Principal activities

TEEE

Trading of printed
circuit boards

EIRIS IR E 5

Investment holding

REER

Trading of industrial
consumables

IXHERED

Investment holding
and trading of plastic
products

REAZRKRIEHRESR

Processing of
plastic products

EBRMMT

Trading of printed
circuit boards

ENRIS R E 2

Trading of industrial
consumables

TEHERER

Trading of industrial
consumables

IXHERED

Processing of
printed circuit boards

ENRIAR B AR N T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—E g+ _HA=+—HIFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Place of
Name of subsidiary registration operation
B/
MEAE AT U E Y g
Welltec Machinery Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong
EABMERAT e s
Wuxi Grand Tech Machinery The PRC The PRC
Group Ltd.? H HE
EBHRERNERERATY
Wuxi Grand Machinery Sales And Service  The PRC The PRC
Co., Ltd.? T E

EHRBEMEEREERATO
* For identification purposes only
Notes:

(@) The companies are registered in the form of wholly-owned
foreign investment enterprises.

(b) The companies are registered in the form of sino-foreign
cooperative enterprises.

(c)  The company is formerly known as Wuxi Grand Plastic Machine
Manufacture Co., Ltd.

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results
of the Group for the year or form a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group at the end of the year. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt capital at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT

2. TEMBABFE (&

Issued and
fully paid
share capital

BREITR
BERE

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000/ 7T

US$9,586,000
9,586,000 7T

US$2,850,000
2,850,000 7T

*

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company  Principal activities
YN
FE{L AR #E
B FEEH

100.00  Trading of machinery
BB

100.00  Manufacturing and
trading of machinery

Mt -

(a)

HRREEKRES
100.00  Investment holding
REER
(EXEE il
AEBLEAMBIBEELE -

REELEMATINEERE

ZAPIHBEESEREERREARA

UEMBRABTENRERDR /AT EASE
EXEAEBNREANFEREETER
EEFEZEKREMHMIIER LI EM
MEBABFIEEIIRRETR

RERNEFEEMAMFEHA > ZMHER
B T EAIEF R A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IREMFBEIRRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE - A+ A —HILFEE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42. TEMBATIFRE (&)
(Continued)

The following table lists out the information relating to all TRIHTERBEERRABMEFA
ShEAEAMNIEERER (TFEERE
1) B U T RN B E R

HRRIHERNARDBRZ 2T

subsidiaries of Major Success Company Limited, which has
material non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised
financial information presented below represents the

amounts before any inter-company elimination.

2022 2021
g —E—fF
HK$'000 HK$000
FETT FAET
NCI percentage EEREZB DL 48% 48%
Current assets MENEE 309,896 384,829
Non-current assets EREEE 115,801 141,774
Current liabilities REARE (128,814) (182,008)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (19,923) (36,189)
Equity s 276,960 308,406
Carrying amount of NCI JEERERREE 133,071 148,165
Revenue WA 577,960 793,910
Loss for the year KREEKEEE (18,203) (25,182)
Total comprehensive expense 2EY HAEEE (31,446) (20,875)
Loss allocated to NCI DEEIFERER ZEBIE (8,738) (12,088)
Cash generated/(used in) from KEEHEL (ER) 2RE
operating activities 47,251 (9,347)
Cash used in investing activities SEEMER RS (6,842) (8,577)
Cash used in financing activities MEEEERCRE (18,724) (21,228)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4= A

RE BRI (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE T+ HA=+—HILEE

43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
and a new standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2022 and which have not been early adopted in these
consolidated financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
(BEEEHER) B 1R
(BEBMBREER)BBEBRE2R 2B

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

S BRIKE

43,

BE_T__F+_HA=+—H
LFEEEEMERRERZE
AMEST - MET R KRR EBNER

87 488

=
BEEZSERAVBRRTEAHBL &
HESHHAGEEMZERBEE_Z
_THFF+A=T—BLEFENREN
BRNZEREMBRRNLKRERM
ZHEAMEST R —IEHE] R — (FEM
BREENIE 17 REEHN % ES
HAREEBRAZERBIENTRIE !

Effective for
accounting

periods beginning
on or after
RTFIBHEHEER
MMz st iR ER

1 January 2023

- =F—HF—H

Amendments to HKAS 8
(BEHEBER) F8R 2 &3]
Amendments to HKAS 12

(BEEEEN)E125 2]

Amendments to HKAS 1

(BEEGHER) B 1B

Amendments to HKAS 1

(BEAGHER)FB 1R 2B

Hong Kong Int 5 (Revised) Presentation of
Financial Statements

EA(RRE)S (BiThR) MBRERNER

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

(BEEMBREEL) E105R
(BBGER) F285R 2 BT

Amendments to HKFRS 16

(BEEMBREEL) F1658 2 B3]

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact

Definition of Accounting Estimates

FEHEEE R

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

1 January 2023
“Z=F—F—H
1 January 2023

ERE-—RZEENEEREGENRLERE “Z-=fF—HF—H
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
BEDERRPAIERD —Z_mE—RB—H
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
BRANFERBEE “Z_mME—-F—H

Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

ERABAEIBRERKRZEHERN D

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture

REERABENTNAERDZBNEELERRA

1 January 2024

“ENFE-B—H
To be determined

e

5E

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

ERARMNEEERE

1 January 2024
—Z_HWE—HA—H

FEREFETIHEEEREEEARR
BT E -HERAL BESHE
i RAELEEI NN REN GG ME
WREEFERTE-

on the consolidated financial statements.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KR4 E2AR AT



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e lmR

Revenue

Profit before tax

Taxation

Profit for the year

Non-controlling interests

Profit attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBRRR

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total equity

Non-controlling interests

LION

BRI ADE R

R

FEERN

FERED

FARREREAELS
il

\
/
e
e
=
[

FERED

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A FMHHE

2018
“T-N\E
HK$'000
FHT
2,682,452

108,219

(19,467)

88,752

14,700

74,052

2018
“T-N\E
HK$'000
FHT
2,731,693

(1,331,408)

1,400,285

216,716

For the year ended 31 December

BE+ZA=+—-HLEE

2019 2020
“E-hE C—T-THE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
F#ET FHET
2,344,923 2,432,021
39,075 35,423
(14,191) (9,545)
24,884 25,878
9,129 6,300
15,755 19,578

At 31 December

®+ZB=+—H

2019 2020
_E-hE C"E_EE
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHBT FHT
2,603,889 2,834,678
(1,217,448)  (1,334,695)
1,386,441 1,499,983
214,772 231,357

2021
—_EC—-F
HK$'000
FHET
3,075,305

113,119

(28,914)

84,205

(5,527)

89,732

2021
_E_—F&
HK$ 000
FHT
2,967,885

(1,327,361)

1,640,524

229,715

2022
—E-_CE
HKS$'000
FET
2,339,898

33,071

(14,234)

18,837

(5,577)

24,414

2022
o=

—_— T ——

HK$'000
FET

2,625,450

(1,087,054)

1,538,396

216,274

Z T~ Z F£ 4R Annual Report 2022
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GLOSSARY
5A) 5

In this report, unless the context otherwise specifies, the following expressions have the following meanings:

RABER  BEXESBMEN TIARREBUTESE

“Articles”
M(E=F24HA )]

“Audit Committee”
BZEEY)

“Board”

EEg)

"CG Code”
(ZEEARTRI)

“China”, “Mainland China"” or

“PRC"

e E Py sth ) 3T R

"CMEL Code”

(KRB EZETRI

“Codo”

=SE]

“Committee of Executive
Directors”

MITEFEEE)

“Companies Ordinance”

KUNCIECSIIDN

“Company”

/NI

the articles of association of the Company

FABZ (SRR )

the audit committee of the Company
KRB ZENEES

the board of Directors of the Company

EANUNSIE 3=

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

(LR M &+ PR~ (EEEBTAD

The People's Republic of China, for the purpose of this report, shall exclude
Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan
REARHAME iAREMES > AEEEE - PERFFHIITHRERGE
the Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and Relevant Employees of
Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited, revised from time to time thereafter

(RAKMEXERADEEFRAMEEETIESFS T BRATFER)

Codo Development Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability, a substantial Shareholder (as defined under the SFO)
BEERBBRAR —BREBEAMBLZBERAE —LETEREK (RIE(E
R ERE RG] ) E &)

the committee of executive Directors of the Company

AABDRTEFEZES

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
CABMERRLY (BB EHIFE622F)

Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and the Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 118)

RAEMEEBRAT  REBEMRILZBRAT REARGEBIPAERLE
m (RS 1 118)

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT



“Cosmos Holdings'

NEEZS:
"Director(s)”
===y

“Group”

TAREE

" HK$ "
Bl

“Hong Kong”
r&#8)

“Hung Cheong”
'Hung Cheong |
“Listing Rules”
M{EmRAID
“Model Code”

MR TR

“Nomination Committee”

MevZEg)

“Remuneration Committee”

FMZEEg)

U

GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)
A5 (48)

Cosmos Machinery (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, a controlling Shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules)

REHW (ZER) BRAT REBEMBUUZBRRE  —REERKR (R
(EHRB)EE

the director(s) of the Company
KRBESE

the Company and its subsidiaries
KRB RENB AT

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B BBEEEH

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEFBEIITHE

Hung Cheong Realty Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cosmos Holdings
Hung Cheong Realty Limited» —RBIREBRLZFHETMMIIZEBRAT > KE
ERZz2ENBERE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
R (EB 5 EmRAD)

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

(EARAD MR+ Z(EHETAEFTETIESIZRESTA)

the nomination committee of the Company
RABIZRLEES

the remuneration committee of the Company
RABZNEES

ZZ T ZHF £ Annual Report 2022
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GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)
A5 (1)

“RMB”
TAR®

“Saniwell”
I'Saniwell

“SFO"
(e85 R HAE IR B )

“Share(s)”

A7 |

“Shareholder(s)”
MRG =R

“Stock Exchange”
B 32 P

“Tai Shing”

lTai Shing |

“US" or “United States”
EE

Ilus$ll
=7l

"EN"
=5

"op

M% |

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AR REDEZEE

Saniwell Holding Inc., a company incorporated in the Cook Islands with limited
liability
Saniwell Holding Inc.» REREEFMMKIIZ B R AE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(FEFRIEHRM) (B EFIES715)

the ordinary share(s) of the Company
KABZEBER

the holder(s) of the Share(s) of the Company
KRBRDFTFEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEBMARZMBIRAF

Tai Shing Agencies Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability, a substantial Shareholder (as defined under the SFO)

Tai Shing Agencies Limited» —BIRN ABE X HEHMBIIZBRAR —%E
RN (REBE(EFRBERG) EE

the United States of America
EMERERE

United States Dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
En EEZEATER

Japanese Yen, the lawful currency of Japan
Hio HRZ AEE

per cent.

Bt

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AR T2 AER AT
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